
 1

 

 

                         CITY OF BISHOP 
  CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA     
City Council Chambers - 301 West Line Street - Bishop, California  

 
NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact the City Clerk at 760-873-5863. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. (28CFR 13.102-35.104 ADA Title II) 
 
Any writing that is a public record that relates to an agenda item for open session distributed less than 72 hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection at City Hall, 377 West Line Street, Bishop, California during normal business 
hours. Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).  Copies will also be provided at the appropriate meeting. 
 
Members of the public desiring to speak on a matter appearing on the agenda should ask the Mayor for the opportunity to be 
heard when the item comes up for Council consideration.  NOTE: Comments for all agenda items are limited to a speaking time 
of three minutes. 
 

MONDAY, MARCH 26, 2012 
7:00 P.M. 
 

INVOCATION 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  This time is set aside to receive public comment on matters not 
calendared on the agenda. When recognized by the Mayor, please state your name and address for the record and please limit 
your comments to three minutes.  Under California law the City Council is prohibited from generally discussing or taking 
action on items not included in the agenda; however, the City Council may briefly respond to comments or questions from 
members of the public. Therefore, the City Council will listen to all public comment but will not generally discuss the matter or 
take action on it. 
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS 
(1)   Updates on department activities will be given by the Department Heads 
 A.  Fire Chief Ray Seguine 
 B. Police Chief Chris Carter 
 C. Public Works Director/City Engineer Dave Grah 
 D. City Administrator/Community Services Director Keith Caldwell 

  
CONSENT CALENDAR – NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered 
routine by the City and will be acted on by one motion. 
(2) 

 FOR APPROVAL/FILING   (a) Fund Transactions – 7/1/11 – 2/29/12 
   (b) Personnel Status Change Report  

(c) Request to Surplus Unclaimed Found Property – BPD020-12  
(d) Designation of absences – Councilmember Ellis 

 FOR INFORMATION/FILING 
 Agendas (e) Planning Commission – March 27, 2012 
   (f) Water and Sewer Commission – March 13, 2012 
 Minutes (g)  Water and Sewer Commission – January 10, 2012 
 Reports (h) Public Works Report January 2012 
   (i) Public Works Report February 2012  



 2

 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
(3) ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW – CROSSFIT GYM – 162 WILLOW STREET – A public hearing will be 

held to hear and consider public input on the Draft Negative Declaration to allow Crossfit Gym to set aside 
the commercial parking requirements for gymnasium occupancy pursuant to Bishop Municipal Code 
Section 17.48.070 at 162 Willow Street which is located in a C-2 Zoning District (General Commercial). 

 
(4) CDBG DESIGN APPLICATION – A public hearing will be held to discuss the submittal of an application 

in response to the 2012 State Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Notice of Funding 
Availability (NOFA) and to solicit citizen input. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
(5) NEGATIVE DECLARATION – CROSSFIT GYM – 162 WILLOW – Consideration to adopt the Negative 

Declaration to allow Crossfit Gym to set aside the commercial parking requirements for gymnasium 
occupancy pursuant to Bishop Municipal Code Section 17.48.070 at 162 Willow Street which is located in a 
C-2 Zoning District (General Commercial). 

 
(6) RESOLUTION NO. 12-10 CDBG GRANT APPLICATION– Consideration to adopt a resolution to 

approve an application for funding and the execution of a Grant Agreement and any amendments for the 
2012 Allocation of the State Community Development Block Grant and approve a Subrecipient Agreement 
(Exhibit A) with the Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc. (IMACA) to assist in utilizing the 
2012 State CDBG funds – Administration. 

 
(7) Appointment of Parks and Recreation Commissioner to four year term – Administration. 
 
(8) ORDINANCE NO. 538 – AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO CITY FEES/CHARGES – 

Consideration to adopt the ordinance amending Title 3 Revenue and Finance Chapter 3.22 entitled “Fee and 
Service Charge Revenue/Cost Comparison System” of the Bishop Municipal Code – Administration. 

 
(9) RESOLUTION NO. 12-11 – Consideration to adopt a resolution amending and restating fees and charges 

for City services for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 – Administration. 
 
(10) SUNRISE MOBILE HOME PARK – Consideration to approve the state budget for Sunrise Mobile Home 

Park for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 - Community Services Department. 
   
(11) GENERAL PLAN 2011 ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT – Consideration to approve the General Plan 

2011 Annual Progress Report – Planning Department. 
 
(12) LADWP PARKING LOT LEASE – Consideration to approve Los Angeles Department of Water and 

Power lease BL-1481 for eight city parking lots – Administration. 
 
COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
(13) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Keith Caldwell, City Administrator, pursuant to 

Government Code § 54957.6(a) – Bishop Employees Association, Bishop Police Officers Association, 
Mid-Management, Management. 

 

REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION IF REQUIRED 
 
ADJOURNMENT  - Monday, April 9, 2012 - 4 p.m. Study Session/7 p.m. Regular Meeting – Council Chambers 



 

                                  CITY OF BISHOP 
                STUDY SESSION AGENDA                                          
     Council Chambers ‐ 301 West Line Street ‐ Bishop, California  

 
NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact the City Clerk at 760‐873‐5863. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. (28CFR 13.102‐35.104 ADA Title II) 
 

Any writing that is a public record that relates to an agenda item for open session distributed less than 72 hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection at City Hall, 377 West Line Street, Bishop, California during normal business 
hours. Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).  Copies will also be provided at the appropriate meeting. 
 

Members of the public desiring to speak on a matter appearing on the agenda should ask the Mayor for the opportunity to 
be  heard when  the  item  comes  up  for  Council  consideration.   NOTE:  Comments  for  all  agenda  items  are  limited  to  a 
speaking time of three minutes. 
 

MONDAY, MARCH 26, 2012                                                              
4:00 p.m. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  ‐ NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:   This  time  is  set aside  to  receive public comment on matters not 
calendared on the agenda. When recognized by the Mayor, please state your name and address  for the record 
and  please  limit  your  comments  to  three minutes.    Under  California  law  the  City  Council  is  prohibited  from 
generally discussing or taking action on  items not  included  in the agenda; however, the City Council may briefly 
respond to comments or questions from members of the public. Therefore, the City Council will listen to all public 
comment but will not generally discuss the matter or take action on it. 
 

SCHEDULED DISCUSSION 
1. CDBG Grant Application – Larry Emerson 
2. Tri‐County Fairgrounds Update – Jim Tatum 
3. Discussion on increasing number of Parks and Recreation Commissioners to seven ‐ Stottlemyre 
4. Current 7:00 p.m. agenda items 
5. Future agenda items 
 

DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS 
1.  Fire Chief Ray Seguine 
2.  Police Chief Chris Carter 
3.  Public Works Director/City Engineer Dave Grah 
4.  City Administrator / Community Services Director Keith Caldwell 
 

DISCUSSION 
1. Councilmember Jim Ellis     
2. Councilmember Jeff Griffiths     
3. Councilmember Laura Smith 
4. Mayor Pro Tem Susan Cullen 
5. Mayor Dave Stottlemyre 
   
ADJOURNMENT – To City Council meeting scheduled at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers. 
 









 

3/22/2012 4:44 PM 

AGENDA PLANNING FOR UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 

MON – APRIL 9, 2012 MEETINGS 
4:00 PM 
• Effects of election consolidation on annual reorganization 
• Bishop population sign 
 
7:00 PM 
• Proclamation – Sexual Assault Awareness Month 
• Proclamation – Child Abuse Prevention Month 
• Quarterly Citizen Award – 1st Quarter 
• Recognition of Bishop High School Junior Varsity Mathletes League Champions 
• Appoint two Council Members to serve on the Parks and Recreation Commission interview 

committee for upcoming term expiration. 
• Release RFP for narrow band radios – Police Department 
• Fixed Assets – surplus of list items 
• Fixed Assets – Policy revisions 
• Award the contract for the Auditorium Sidewalk Project 
 

MON – APRIL 23, 2012 MEETINGS 
4:00 PM 
7:00 PM 
• Advertise Church St Water Project 
• Award Wye Road Storm Drain Project 
• Appointment of Parks and Recreation Commissioner 
• Water Storage Tank Project – Work Order 4 
• Approve sewer trunk consultant contract 
• Street Closure – Every 15 Minutes 
 

MON – MAY 14, 2012 MEETINGS 
4:00 PM 
7:00 PM 
 
 

TUES, MAY 29, 2012 MEETINGS 
4:00 PM 
7:00 PM 
 
 
 



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 

1  
 
 
TO:      CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:  KEITH CALDWELL, CITY ADMINISTRATOR   
 
SUBJECT:  DEPARTMENT HEAD UPDATES 
   
DATE:    MARCH 26, 2012 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
The  department  heads  from  Fire,  Police,  Public  Works  and  Administration/Community 
Services  will  provide  updates  on  various  departmental  activities,  current  and  on‐going 
projects. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Hear the reports. 













































































































































 
  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 

3 
 
  

 

 
 
 
TO:        CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:      KEITH CALDWELL, CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
         
SUBJECT:    PUBLIC HEARING – ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW ‐ 162 WILLOW STREET 
   
DATE:      MARCH 26, 2012 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY 
 
Under New Business are the documents for the Environmental Review for the Crossfit Gym 
relocation  to 162 Willow Street.   A public hearing will be held to hear and consider public 
input on the Draft Negative Declaration to allow Crossfit Gym to set aside the commercial 
parking requirements for gymnasium occupancy pursuant to Bishop Municipal Code Section 
17.48.070  at  162  Willow  Street  which  is  located  in  a  C‐2  Zoning  District  (General 
Commercial). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Hold the public hearing. 

 



 
  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 
 

4 
  

 
 
TO:        CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:      KEITH CALDWELL, CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
         
SUBJECT:    PUBLIC HEARING – CDBG GRANT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL 
   
DATE:      MARCH 26, 2012 
 
Attachments:  Public Hearing Notice 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY 
 
A public hearing will be held  to discuss  the  submittal of an application  in  response  to  the 
2012  State  Community  Development  Block  Grant  (CDBG)  Program  Notice  of  Funding 
Availability  (NOFA)  and  to  solicit  citizen  input  on  the  City  of  Bishop  application  for 
$1,100,000. 
 
The attached notice gives details of the project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Hold the public hearing. 



CITY OF BISHOP 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR SUBMITTAL OF A STATE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) APPLICATION 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Bishop will conduct a public hearing on March 26, 
2012, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chambers, 301 West Line Street, Bishop, to discuss the 
submittal of an application in response to the 2012 State Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), and to solicit citizen input. 

The City of Bishop is applying for $ 1,100,000 under the NOFA for the following eligible 
activities: 

1) Multiple Family Housing Rehabilitation Activities, including the Reconstruction of the 
Valley Apartments:  $1,000,000; and 

2) Planning and Technical Assistance (PTA) Activities, including Developing an Affordable 
Housing Project with Home Partnership Funds and Tax Credits and a Master Sewer 
Plan:  $100,000 

The Reconstruction of Valley Apartments will result in the temporary relocation of the residents 
during demolition and construction.  A proposed Relocation Plan will be reviewed in conjunction 
with consideration of the Block Grant funding application.  In addition, a Sub-Recipient 
Agreement will be considered between the City of Bishop and Inyo Mono Advocates for 
Community Action, Inc. (IMACA) to define responsibilities and contract requirements for each 
agency if an award is granted by the State. 

The purpose of this public hearing is to give citizens an opportunity to make their comments 
known on the proposed activities/application. 

If you plan to attend the public hearing and need a special accommodation because of a 
sensory or mobility impairment/disability, or have a need for an interpreter, please contact 
Bishop City Hall at (760) 873-5863 to arrange for those accommodations to be made. 

If you are unable to attend the public hearing, you may provide comments as follows: in person 
at Bishop City Hall, 377 West Line Street; over the phone by calling (760) 873-5863; through 
email at cityclerk@ca-bishop.us; or in writing to Keith Caldwell, City Administrator, Bishop City 
Hall, 377 West Line Street, Bishop, CA 93514.  In addition, information is available for review at 
the above address between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. on weekdays.  

The City of Bishop promotes fair housing and makes all its programs available to low and 
moderate income families regardless of age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, sexual 
preference, marital status or handicap. 

 

Published:  March 15, 2012 































 
  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 

6 
 
  

 
 
TO:        CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:      KEITH CALDWELL, CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
         
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 12‐10 Approving a 2012 Application for funding and the 

Execution of a Grant Agreement and any Amendments from the CDBG 
General Allocation of the State CDBG Program  

   
DATE:      March 26, 2012 
 
Attachments:  Resolution No. 12‐10  

2012 State Community Block Grant Program Draft Application  
Subrecipient Agreement with IMACA 
IMACA Cash Match Commitment   

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY 
 
Please find attached: 
  
• Resolution  No.  12‐10  approving  the  application  for  funding  and  execution  of  a  grant 

agreement  and  any  amendments  thereto  from  the  2012  Allocation  of  the  CDBG 
Program; 

 
• CDBG Draft Grant Application and Subrecipient Agreement; 
 
• Letter from IMACA for cash match commitment. 
 
This resolution, if adopted, would allow execution of a grant application for CDBG funds for 
the purpose related to a housing project to assist seniors and handicapped persons in need.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Council consideration to approve Resolution No. 12‐10 by title only. 



RESOLUTION NO. 12-10 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR FUNDING AND 
THE EXECUTION OF A GRANT AGREEMENT AND ANY 
AMENDMENTS THERETO FROM THE 2012 ALLOCATION OF THE 
STATE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
PROGRAM 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Bishop as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: 
 
The City Council has reviewed and hereby approves an application for the 2012 State CDBG 
Program requesting up to $1,200,000.00 in funding for the following activities: 
 
General Program Administration       $80,000.00 
Multi-Family Housing Rehabilitation $1,000,000.00 
Developing an Affordable Housing Project  
With Home Partnership Funds and Tax Credits     $50,000.00 
Master Sewer Plan (focused)        $50,000.00 
 
SECTION 2: 
 
The City has determined that federal Citizen Participation requirements were met during the 
development of this application. 
 
SECTION 3: 
 
For Cash Match, the City Council hereby approves the use of General Funds and the 
commitment from Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc. (IMACA) as provided in 
the attached letter dated March 20, 2012 to be used as the City’s Cash Match for this application 
as follows: 
 
 IMACA Cash Match Commitment $2,500.00  
 City of Bishop Cash Match $2,500.00 
 TOTALS  $5,000.00 
 
SECTION 4: 
 
The City hereby approves a Subrecipient Agreement, attached as “Exhibit A,” with Inyo Mono 
Advocates for Community Action, Inc. (IMACA) to assist in utilizing the 2012 State CDBG 
funds, if awarded. 
 
 
 
 



 
 SECTION 5: 

 
The City hereby authorizes and directs, the City Administrator, or designees, to sign this 
application and act on the City’s behalf in all matters pertaining to this application. 
 
SECTION 6: 
 
If the application is approved, the City Administrator, or designees, is authorized to enter into 
and sign the grant agreement and any subsequent amendments with the State of California for the 
purposes of this grant. 
 
SECTION 7: 
 
If the application is approved, the City Administrator, or designees, is authorized to sign Fund 
Requests and other required reporting forms. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Bishop held on the 26th day of March, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      DAVID STOTTLEMYRE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: Keith Caldwell, City Clerk 
 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
        Denise Gillespie, Assistant City Clerk 
 
 
 



City of Bishop 
 

Draft APPLICATION 
 

For an Allocation of the 
 

2012 STATE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 

MARCH 2012 



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

APPLICATION SUMMARY - Table Of Contents 
 

- 15 - 
 

Application submitted by:   City of Bishop (jurisdiction)  
 

*Click on the box, drop-down menu or text box to enter information. 

APPLICATION FORMS Required or 
“Select” 

Documentation 
located on Page(s) 

Application Summary Required 1 

Joint Powers Agreement/MOU (if applicable) N/A       
Section 504 Self Evaluation YES 17 

   

THRESHOLD DOCUMENTATION   
Threshold Requirement Forms Required 8 
Debarment Eligibility Not on Debarment  8 
Housing Element Compliance as of March 31, 
2012 (just prior to application submittal deadline) 

In Compliance 8 

Growth Control Information No Restricting Ordin  8 
Statement of Assurances Required 11 
Compliance with OMB Circular A-133 Required 128 
Citizen Participation Documentation Required 9 
Original Resolution(s) of the Governing Body Required 133 
   

GRANT ADMINISTRATIVE CAPACITY   
Previous CDBG Grant(s) and History of Clearing 
Special Conditions Yes 19 

Grant Administration Capacity Documentation Combination 19 
Reporting History Required 20 
Audit and/or Monitoring Compliance 
documentation Required 22 

   
INDIVIDUAL ACTIVITY    

Housing Rehabilitation (HR) Required 24 
Planning and Technical Assistance (PTA) Required 34 
      Required       
  



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

APPLICATION SUMMARY - Table Of Contents 
 

- 16 - 
 

OTHER (Use for Native American and/or 
Colonia Activities if applicable)  

 

      Required       
      Required       
      Required       

   
NOTE:  This Application Table of Contents must be submitted with the completed application package.  All items 

listed must be submitted in the order listed.  Enter the page number(s) for each item that is included in 
the application.  Incomplete applications may not meet threshold review requirements. You can add 
additional rows to any form in the application if you need more space. 



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

APPLICATION SUMMARY - Forms 

- 17 - 
 

 

 
  

 A.    Application Information 
                                                                                                        DUNS #:  040349987 
Jurisdiction Name: City of Bishop                                       
                                                                                                                             EIN/TIN #: 95-1895967 
Address: 377 West Line Street, P.O. Box 1236                                                       
 
City:  Bishop  State:  CA  Zip Code:  93515  
 
Is this application being submitted on behalf of more than one jurisdiction?   
 

  NO      
  YES   Complete the following. (Please note that the implementation of a Joint Powers 

Agreement or Memorandum of Understanding between the applicants is required.) 
 
Second Jurisdiction’s Name:        
 
Address:        JPA or MOU on Page:         
 
City:         State:          Zip Code:         
 

 B.   Authorized Representative Information (per the Resolution) 

 
Name: Keith Caldwell    Title:  City Administrator/Community Services Director 
Phone: (760) 873-5863 Ext:        FAX:  (760) 873-4873 
E-mail: cityclerk@ca-bishop.us 

  Check here if address information is the same as above; if not, fill in information below. 

Address:       
 
City:         State:       Zip Code:        

 
 
 
Signature:     Date:      
 



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

APPLICATION SUMMARY - Forms 

- 18 - 
 

 
 

 C. Jurisdictional Contact Information  (must be jurisdiction staff) 
 

  Check here if address and contact person is the same as the Authorized Representative information 
is the same as above; if not, fill in information below. 

 
Name:          Title:        
Agency:        

Address:        
 
City:         State:                     Zip Code:        
Phone:         E-mail:               FAX:        
 
 
 
 

D. Legislative Representative Information    

 District # First Name Last Name 
Assembly 34th Connie Conway 

Senate 18th Jean Fuller 

Congress 25th Howard "Buck" McKeon 

 District # First Name Last Name 
Assembly                   

Senate                   

Congress                   

 District # First Name Last Name 
Assembly                   

Senate                   

Congress                   

 District # First Name Last Name 
Assembly                   

Senate                   

Congress                   

 
  



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

APPLICATION SUMMARY - Forms 

- 19 - 
 

  

E.   Requested Funding for All Proposed Activities 
           Note:  See instructions for funding limitations. 

Activity Amount 
Requested 

Activity 
Administrator 

Target 
Populations* 
*use list below for 

Target ID #s 

Result of PTA 
grant / Phase of 

previously funded 
activity? 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION (TOTAL) 

(Maximum of 7.5% of 
total funding requested) $  $80,000.00 

  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

 

  

ACTIVITIES (UP TO 3 TOTAL ALLOWED) 

Activity Name:   Multi-Family Housing Rehabilitation  

Activity Amount $  861,250.00 
  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
1, 9 
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
20 

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $  138,750.00 

Activity TOTAL $  1,000,000.00 

Activity Name:   Planning and Technical Assistance  

Activity Amount $  100,000.00 
  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
1, 9 
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
120 

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $  100,000.00 

Activity Name:          

Activity Amount $        
  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
      
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
      

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $        

Activity Name:          

Activity Amount $        

  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
      
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
      

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $        



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

APPLICATION SUMMARY - Forms 

- 20 - 
 

 

 

 

In the column Target Populations above, enter the primary number(s) that correspond to the target population(s) 
that each activity will specifically address.  For example, a homeless shelter will most likely serve many target 
populations shown, but the primary target population will be the homeless. 
1.  Physically Disabled   
 2.  Persons with AIDS 
 3.  Youths 
 4.  Single Adults 
 5.  Single Men 
 6.  Single Women 

  7.  Families 
  8.  Farmworkers 
  9.  Seniors  
10.  Mentally Ill 

  11.  Veterans 
  12.  Substance Abusers 

  13. Victims of Domestic Violence 
  14. Dually Diagnosed 
  15. Prevent Homelessness                      

16. Help the Homeless 
17. Help those with HIV/AIDS 
18. Other 

 

 
See Following Page to List Native American or Colonia Activities 

Activity Name:          

Activity Amount $        
  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
      
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
      

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $        

Activity Name:          

Activity Amount $        
  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
      
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
      

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $        

Activity Name:          

Activity Amount $        
  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
      
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
      

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $        

Activity Name:          

Activity Amount $        

  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
      
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
      

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $        

 $ 1,100,000 ◄    TOTAL Funding Requested                             
($2,000,000 Maximum including General Admin.) 



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

APPLICATION SUMMARY - Forms 

- 21 - 
 

 

 

In the column Target Populations above, enter the primary number(s) that correspond to the target population(s) 
that each activity will specifically address.  For example, a homeless shelter will most likely serve many target 
populations shown, but the primary target population will be the homeless. 

 1.  Physically Disabled   
 2.  Persons with AIDS 
 3.  Youths 
 4.  Single Adults 
 5.  Single Men 
 6.  Single Women 

  7.  Families 
  8.  Farmworkers 
  9.  Seniors  
10.  Mentally Ill 

  11.  Veterans 
  12.  Substance Abusers 

  13. Victims of Domestic Violence 
  14. Dually Diagnosed 
  15. Prevent Homelessness                      

16. Help the Homeless 
17. Help those with HIV/AIDS 
18. Other

 

NATIVE AMERICAN OR COLONIA ACTIVITIES (IN ADDITION TO MAXIMUM 3 ALLOWED ABOVE) 

Activity Name:          

Activity Amount $        
  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
      
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
      

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $        

Activity Name:          

Activity Amount $        
  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
      
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
      

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $        

Activity Name:          

Activity Amount $        
  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
      
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
      

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $        

Activity Name:          

Activity Amount $        
  Applicant Staff 
  Other 
  Combination 

Target I.D. #:   
      
Proposed # of 
Beneficiaries:   
      

 Yes   
 No 

Grant #        

Activity Delivery $        

Activity TOTAL $        

 $       ◄    TOTAL Native American or 
Colonia Funding Requested                              



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

THRESHOLD REQUIREMENTS - Forms 
 

-22- 

The Department will review each application to determine whether the application meets all of 
the eligibility threshold criteria. Applications that meet all of the threshold criteria will be 
eligible to be rated and ranked. 

 Yes No *Click on the check or text boxes to enter information. 

A.  
 

 

 
 

 

Debarment 
 
Is the applicant jurisdiction on the Federal Excluded Parties List 
(www.epls.gov)? 
 If Yes, the applicant is not eligible to receive federal funding. 
 No.  

The applicant has included a copy of the search on page(s): 43 
 

B.  
 

 

 
 

 

Housing Element Compliance 
 
Does applicant have a Housing Element in compliance with CDBG 
requirements as of the application submittal deadline?   
 
If No, then the applicant is not eligible to receive funding. 
The Department will verify CDBG compliance with HPD as of April 6, 
2012. 

C.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Growth Control 
 
Has the applicant jurisdiction enacted limitations on residential 
construction, which includes limitations other than establishing agricultural 
preserves, or limitations imposed by another agency, or limitations not 
based on a health and safety need?   
 If No, skip to next section. 

 
If yes, do these limitations meet any of the exceptions found in State 
CDBG Program Regulations, Section 7056(b)(2)(B)? 

 If “Yes” to the exceptions, the applicant has included a copy of the 
limitation with this application on page(s):        

 If “No” to the exception, the applicant jurisdiction is not eligible to 
receive federal funding. 

D.  
 

 

 
 

 

Statement of Assurances 
 
Applicant has included the correct version (revised 2012) of the 
Statement of Assurances, signed by the chief executive officer of the 
applicant jurisdiction. 

E.  
 

 

 
 

 

Compliance with OMB Circular A-133 
 
Applicant has included a signed OMB Certification. 

http://www.epls.gov/�


2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

THRESHOLD REQUIREMENTS - Forms 
 

-23- 

 Yes No *Click on the check or text boxes to enter information. 

F.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Citizen Participation 
 
Applicant has met all the Public Hearings/Citizen Participation 
requirements, such as: 
 
• Public notices published in a local newspaper announcing the public 

hearings and containing the required information, as stated in the 
CDBG Grant Management Manual.   
 

• At least one public hearing was held during the program design phase 
of the application.   

 Design Hearing was published/posted on  February 2, 

2012 ; and,  
o Documentation is included on page(s):  45 

 Design Hearing was held on  February 13, 2012  ; and  
o Documentation is included on page(s):  47 

 
• At least one public hearing was held to approve submittal of the 

application. 
 Application Submittal Hearing was published/posted on  

March 15, 2012  ; and, 
o Documentation is included on page(s):  50 

 Application Submittal Hearing was held on  March 26, 2012 
; and,  

o Documentation is included on page(s):        
 
• Sign-in sheets and all documentation are in the public information file 

and available for review and monitoring; and, 
 
• Written comments received during the public hearing process are 

included with the application along with any responses on page(s):  
      



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

THRESHOLD REQUIREMENTS - Forms 
 

-24- 

 Yes No *Click on the check or text boxes to enter information. 

G.  
 

 
 

 
 

 

Resolution(s) of the Governing Body 
 
Applicant has included a Resolution (sample in Appendix I) that: 
 
• Is an original or an original certified copy;  and 
 
• Authorizes submission of the application;  and 
 
• Approves the application’s contents (funding requested, activities, 

committed leverage, etc.);  and 
 
• Authorizes the execution of a grant agreement, and any 

amendments thereto, if funded;  and 
 
• Designates a person (by name and title) authorized to enter into an 

agreement, if funded;  and 
 
• Designates persons (by names and titles) authorized to sign all 

reports, Funds Requests and other program-supporting 
documentation. 

 
After the application due date, the Department will not consider unsolicited information from 
an applicant.  However, the Department may contact an applicant to clarify an item in the 
application.  Applicants should note that the Department will not seek clarification of items or 
responses that improve the substantive quality of the applicant’s response to any eligibility or 
selection criterion. 

 
 

I certify on behalf of City of Bishop (name of entity) that the Threshold information provided is 
true and accurate. 
 
Authorized Representative (per the Resolution): 
 
Keith Caldwell  City Administrator/Community Services 
Director 
(Printed/Typed Name)  (Title) 
 
 
 
____________________________________       

 (Signature)  (blue ink)   (Date signed) 
 
 



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCES (2012) - Forms 

-25- 

 
 

The City/County of City of Bishop hereby assures and certifies that: 
 

 1. Legal Authority - It possesses legal authority to apply for the grant and to execute 
the proposed program. 

 
 2. Application Authorization - Its governing body has duly adopted or passed as an 

official act or resolution, motion, or similar action authorizing the filing of the 
application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein, and 
directing and authorizing the applicant's chief executive officer or other designee to 
act in connection with the application and to provide such additional information as 
may be required. 

 
 3.  Citizen Participation - It has or will comply with all citizen participation requirements, 

which include, at a minimum, the following components: 
 

A. Provides for and encourages citizen participation, with particular emphasis 
on participation by persons of low and moderate income who are residents of 
slum and blight areas and of areas in which CDBG funds are proposed to be 
used, and provides for participation of residents in low- and moderate-
income neighborhoods as defined by the local jurisdiction; and, 

 
B. Provides citizens with reasonable and timely access to local meetings, 

information, and records relating to the grantee's proposed use of funds, as 
required by CDBG regulations, and relating to the actual use of funds under 
this title; and, 

 
C. Provides for technical assistance to groups representative of persons of low 

and moderate income that request such assistance in developing proposals 
with the level and type of assistance to be determined by the grantee; and, 

 
D. Provides for public hearings to obtain citizen views and to respond to 

proposals and questions at all stages of the community development 
program.  These include at least the development of needs, the review of 
proposed activities, and review of program performance, which hearings 
shall be held after adequate notice, at times and locations convenient to 
potential or actual beneficiaries and with accommodation for the 
handicapped.  This shall include one public meeting during the program 
design, annual performance report preparation, and formal amendments.  A 
public hearing shall be conducted prior to application submittal; and, 

  

By checking the boxes, the certifier assures the statements are true. 



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCES (2012) - Forms 

-26- 

 
E. Solicits and provides for a timely written answer to written complaints and 

grievances, within 15 working days where practicable; and, 
 
F. Identifies how the needs of non-English speaking residents will be met in the 

case of public hearings where a significant number of non-English speaking 
residents can reasonably be expected to participate. 

 
 4. National Objective - The CDBG Program has been developed so as to primarily 

benefit targeted income persons and households, and each activity in the program 
meets one of the three national objectives:  benefit to low- and moderate-income 
persons, elimination of slums and blight, or meets an urgent community need 
certified by the grantee as such. 

 
 5. NEPA Environmental Review - Consents to assume the responsibilities for 

environmental review and decision-making in order to ensure compliance with 
NEPA by following the procedures for recipients of block grant funds as set forth in 
24 CFR, Part 58, titled "Environmental Review Procedures for Title I Community 
Development Block Grant Programs."  Also included in this requirement is 
compliance with Executive Order 11988 relating to the evaluation of flood hazards, 
and Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (Public Law 93-
234) regarding purchase of flood insurance, and the National Historic Preservation 
Act of 1966 (16 USC 470) and implementing regulations (36 CFR 800.8). 

 
 6. CEQA - Consents to assume the role of either Lead Agency as defined by Section 

21067 of the California Public Resources Code, or if another public agency is or 
will be designated Lead Agency, it consents to assume the role of Responsible 
Agency as defined by Section 21069 of the California Public Resources Code, in 
order to ensure compliance with CEQA. 

 
 7.  Audit/Performance Findings - Has resolved any audit findings or performance 

problems for prior CDBG grants awarded by the State. 
 

 8. Growth Control - Certifies that there is no plan, ordinance, or other measure in 
effect which directly limits, by number, the building permits that may be issued for 
residential construction or the buildable lots which may be developed for residential 
purposes; or if such a plan, ordinance, or measure is in effect, it will either be 
rescinded before receiving funds, or it need not be rescinded because it: 

 
A. Imposes a moratorium on residential construction, to protect the health and 

safety, for a specified period of time which will end when the public health 
and safety is no longer jeopardized; or, 

 
B. Creates agricultural preserves under Chapter 7 (commencing with Section 

51200) of Part 2 of Division 1 of Title 5 of the Government Code; or, 



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCES (2012) - Forms 

-27- 

 
C. Was adopted pursuant to a specific requirement of a State or multi-State 

board, agency, department, or commission; or, 
 
D. The applicant has an adopted housing element which the Department has 

found to be in compliance, unless a final order has been used by a court in 
which the court determined that it is not in compliance with Article 10.6 of 
Chapter 3 of Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code; or, 

 
E. The use of the funds applied for in this application is restricted for housing 

for the targeted income group. 
 

 9. Uniform Administrative Requirements - Will comply with the regulations, policies, 
guidelines, and requirements of OMB Circular Numbers A-87, A-133, A-122, and 
24 CFR Part 85, where appropriate, and the State CDBG regulations. 

 
 10.  Nondiscrimination - Shall comply with the following regarding nondiscrimination: 

 
A. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law 88-352). 
 
B. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Public Law 90-284) as amended; 

and will administer all programs and activities related to housing and 
community development in a manner affirmatively furthering fair housing. 

 
C. Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 

amended. 
 
D. Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended. 
 
E. Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Orders 11375 and 

12086. 
 
F. Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259. 
 
G. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Public Law 93-112), as 

amended, and implementing regulations. 
 
H. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Public Law 94-135). 
 
I. The prospective contractor's signature affixed hereon and dated shall 

constitute a certification under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the 
State of California that the bidder has, unless exempted, complied with the 
nondiscrimination program requirements of Government Code Section 
12990 and Title 2, California Code of Regulations, Section 8103. 

  



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCES (2012) - Forms 

-28- 

 
 11. Anti-Displacement/Relocation - Will comply with the Federal Relocation Act (42 

U.S.C. 4601 et seq.) and certifies that it will follow the state’s residential anti-
displacement and relocation plan located in Appendix E of the State’s 2011-2012 
Annual Plan.  The Plan can be found at: Annual Plan Update 2011-2012 

 
  

 12.  Labor Standards - Will comply with the following regarding labor standards: 
 

A. Section 110 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended. 

 
B. Section 1720 et seq. of the California Labor Code regarding public works 

labor standards. 
 
C. Davis-Bacon Act as amended (40 USC. 276a) regarding prevailing wage 

rates. 
 
D. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 USC 3702) regarding 

overtime compensation. 
 
E. Anti-Kickback Act of 1934 (41 USC 51-58) prohibiting "kickbacks" of wages 

in federally assisted construction activities. 
 

 13. Architectural Barriers - Will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 
USC 4151-4157) and implementing regulations (24 CFR Part 40-41). 

 
 14. Conflict of Interest - Will enforce standards for conflicts of interest which govern the 

performance of their officers, employees, or agents engaged in the award and 
administration, in whole or in part, of State CDBG grant funds (Section 7126 of the 
State regulations). 

 
 15. Limitations on Political Activities - Will comply with the Hatch Act (5 USC 1501 et 

seq.) regarding political activity of employees. 
 

 16. Lead-Base Paint - Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Regulations (24 CFR 
Part 35) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint on projects funded by the 
program. 

 
 17. Debarred Contractors - The applicant or its staff are not presently debarred, 

suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in federal assistance programs, in any proposal submitted in 
connection with the CDBG program, per the Excluded Party List System 
(www.epls.gov).  In addition, the applicant will not award contracts to or otherwise 
engage the services of any contractor while that contractor (or its principals) is 

http://www.hcd.ca.gov/hpd/hrc/rep/fed/AnnualPlanUpdate2011-2012June11.pdf�
http://www.epls.gov/�


2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

STATEMENT OF ASSURANCES (2012) - Forms 

-29- 

debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation from the covered transaction, in any proposal submitted 
in connection with the CDBG program under the provisions of 24 CFR part 24. 

 
 18. Inspection of Grant Activities - Will give HUD, the Comptroller General, the State 

Department of Housing and Community Development, or any of their authorized 
representatives access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or 
documents related to the grant. 

 
 19. Cost Recovery - Will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public 

improvements assisted in whole or in part with CDBG funds by assessing 
properties owned and occupied by targeted income persons unless:  

 
A. CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of such assessment that relates 

to non-CDBG funding; or, 
 
B. For the purposes of assessing properties owned and occupied by targeted 

income persons who are not of the lowest targeted income group, it does 
not have sufficient CDBG funds to comply with the provisions of “a” above. 

 
 20.  Procurement - Will follow the federal procurement policies per 24 CFR Sec. 85.36   

 
 21.  Excessive Force - Will adopt and enforce policies: 

 
A. Prohibiting the use of excessive force by its law enforcement agencies 

against individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations; and,   
 
B. Enforcing applicable State and local law against physically barring entrance 

to or exit from a facility or location which is the subject of such non-violent 
civil rights demonstration within its jurisdiction. 

 
  22. Compliance with Laws - The jurisdiction will comply with applicable laws. 

 
The Certification is made under penalty of perjury under the laws of the 
State of California. 
 
NAME OF CERTIFYING OFFICIAL:  
 
 Keith Caldwell (print/type) 
  
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE EXECUTIVE:  
 City Administrator/Community Services Director (enter exact title of person signing) 
 
_____________________________________________       
Signature (blue ink)               Date certified



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

 

SECTION 504 SELF-EVALUATION 
 

-30- 

Section 504 Self-Evaluation: 
 
HUD requires jurisdictions to have documented their compliance with Section 504.  
 
Applicants must attach a Section 504 Self-Certification Form with their Application 
Package.  It is important to note that the form itself does not constitute the jurisdiction’s 
efforts to meet Section 504 requirements.  The jurisdiction should have performed an 
analysis and evaluation of each factor and prepared a Section 504 Plan.   
 
The following self-certification form should be used with this application to certify that 
the jurisdiction has performed this analysis and evaluation and to record areas of 
compliance or problems.  Please complete this form, sign and date it, and include it as 
part of this application. 

 
>>See the CDBG Grant Management Manual Chapter 4 for additional information<< 



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
 Application Summary 

 

SECTION 504 SELF-EVALUATION 
 

-39- 

SECTION 504 SELF-EVALUATION         Applicant: City of Bishop  
                                                                                                                                                                                            

AREAS DISCUSSED PROBLEMS MODIFICATIONS MADE 

COMMUNICATIONS:  (Program Publicity) 

Public Notices and ads in newspaper? yes / no 

Public Service Announcements? yes / no 

Posters or fliers? yes / no 

Letters to homeowners in area? yes / no 

Informational public meetings? yes / no 

Interpreters, readers, or TDD’s  
available upon request? yes / no 

Equal Opportunity statement in ads,  
fliers, letters? yes / no 

  

EMPLOYMENT: 

Does the City make reasonable 
accommodation to known physical or 
mental limitations of qualified applicants                               
or employees with handicaps? yes / no 

Pre-employment inquiries and tests do not                           
screen out handicapped persons?                       yes / no 

  

PROGRAM ACCESSIBILITY: 

Are City/County facilities accessible to and                                
usable by individuals with handicaps                                         
(for example: ramps, space at meetings)? yes / no 

Handicap modifications offered in                                      
rehabilitation program? yes / no 

Handicapped individuals with limited mobility                        
assisted with applications at their homes? yes / no 

 

 

 

  

ENFORCEMENT - Evaluate how policies meet 504 
requirements: 

Statement of Assurances in grant applications? yes / no 

Non-discrimination clause in deed of trust? yes / no 

Names of Advisors on Handicapped issues: 

___________________________     
___________________________  

City/County has procedures for complaints? yes / no 

Is log maintained of any complaints? yes / no 

  

 
 
Name of Section 504 Coordinator:  Keith Caldwell 

 
 
 
Signature: ___________________________________________________________ Date Signed:      



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
 Application Summary 

 

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 - Forms 
 

-39- 

Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 is used pursuant to the Single Audit 
Act of 1984, P.L. 98-502, and the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, P.L. 104-156.  It 
sets forth the standards for obtaining consistency and uniformity among Federal agencies for 
the audit of states, local governments, and non-profit organizations expending Federal 
awards.  Cities and counties not exempted from the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 
must submit their audits to the State Controller.  Non-profit organizations not exempted must 
submit their audits to the California Department of Housing and Community Development.      
 
Pursuant to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, please check the appropriate statement 
and certify at the bottom of the page: 
 
 

  The       (name of entity) has expended more than $500,000 in Federal funds in 
fiscal year 2010/2011 and is required to conduct a single audit or program specific 
audit for this year in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133:  

 
 The audit has been completed and has been submitted to the appropriate 

control agency.  (Proof of submittal must be submitted with this form and 
the application.  Failure to do so may result in denial of CDBG funding.) 

 
 

  The  City of Bishop (name of entity) has expended less than $500,000 in federal 
funds in fiscal year 2010/2011 and is exempt from the requirements of OMB Circular 
A-133.  Non-Federal entities that expend less than $500,000 a year in Federal 
awards are exempt from Federal audit requirements for that year, but records must 
be available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal agency, pass-
through entity, and the General Accounting Office.  (Submit proof of this 
statement, such as evidence of sending the exemption letter to SCO, with this form 
and the application) 

 
 
I certify on behalf of City of Bishop (name of entity) that the above is a true and accurate 
statement. 
 
 
Keith Caldwell  City Administrator/Community Services 
Director 
(Printed/Typed Name of Authorized Representative)  (Title) 
 
 
____________________________________       
 (Signature)  (blue ink)      (Date signed) 

 

 



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
 Application Summary 

 

GRANT ADMINISTRATIVE CAPACITY - Forms 
 

-39- 

Questions A through E in the following “Capacity and Past 
Performance" section must be filled in on all applications as part of the 
Rating & Ranking process.  Up to 200 points will be awarded under this 
section.  All applicants must answer the questions and include 
supporting documentation.  

A. Did the applicant have any CDBG Economic Development, Community 
Development (formerly known as General), Native American, or Colonia grant 
experience for the years 2009 or 2010?   (Do not include PTA grants) 

 Yes.  Identify which CDBG Allocation(s) and the applicable funding year(s). 
 Community Development Allocation.  

              Funding Year(s): 2006 
              Grant #’s:      

 Economic Development Allocation.  
              Funding Year(s):       
              Grant #’s:      

 Colonias Allocation.  
Funding Year(s):            Grant #’s:        

 Native American Allocation.  
Funding Year(s):            Grant #’s:        

 No.  Have not had any CDBG grants in 2006-2009.  
  
B. If funded from this application, how will this grant be administered?  Who will carry 

out the grant’s General Administrative activities? 
 

 In-House Staff Only:  (Attach resumes and duty statements of staff that will 
be performing the work, and a “Responsibility Chart” (much like an 
Organization Chart) showing internal controls, management oversight, and 
which staff will be working on CDBG activities and describing their specific 
CDBG responsibilities.) 

  Supporting documentation on page(s):        
 Subrecipient Agreement: 

  Draft    Executed. Term of the Agreement: March 26, 2012 to 
March 26, 2015 

  Other:   
  Supporting documentation on page(s):        



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
 Application Summary 

 

GRANT ADMINISTRATIVE CAPACITY - Forms 
 

-40- 

 Procured Administrator(s) per 24 CFR 85.36 and the GMM Chapter 8: 
  Per Small Purchase Authority 
  By Competitive Proposal 
  By Non-Competitive/Sole-Source 

• Department approval documentation, pages:   
  Term of the Agreement:   
  Supporting documentation on page(s):        

 Some Combination of the Above:  Describe:  In-house Staff and Subrecipient 
Agreement   
  Supporting documentation on page(s):         

 
 

C. Fill in the chart below to indicate past performance of Grant Reporting. In order to 
receive full points, the reports and close-out documentation listed in the chart below, 
if applicable to your jurisdiction’s grants within the last two years, must be received 
by the Department by the application deadline in order to check “No Reports 
Missing.”  Include supporting documentation to verify compliance.  
 

Grant Reporting 
                    2009-10 Grants                                             2010-11 Grants                       

 Annual Financial and 
Accomplishment Report (FAR): 

  No reports missing 
  Missing report  
  N/A   

Annual Financial and 
Accomplishment Report (FAR): 

  No reports missing 
  Missing report 
  N/A  

Annual Grantee Performance Report 
(GPR): 

  No missing reports   
  Missing any reports  
  N/A  

Annual Grantee Performance Report 
(GPR): 

  No missing reports   
  Missing any reports 
  N/A    

Semi-Annual and Annual Program 
Income Reports: 

  100% submitted    
  Missing any reports  
  N/A  

Semi-Annual and Annual Program 
Income Reports: 

  100% submitted   
  Missing any reports  
  N/A   

Semi-annual and Annual Economic 
Development Progress Report: 

  No reports missing    
  Missing any reports  
  N/A    

Semi-annual and Annual Economic 
Development Progress Report: 

  No reports missing   
  Missing any reports  
  N/A  



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
 Application Summary 

 

GRANT ADMINISTRATIVE CAPACITY - Forms 
 

-41- 

Semi-annual and Annual Wage 
Compliance Reports: 

  100% submitted    
  Missing any reports  
  N/A    

Semi-annual and Annual Wage 
Compliance Reports: 

  100% submitted   
  Missing any reports  
  N/A   

Grant Close-out Documentation: 
  No missing reports   
  Missing any reports  
  N/A   

Grant Close-out Documentation: 
  No missing reports   
  Missing any reports  
  N/A   

Section 3 Report: 
  No missing reports   
  Missing any reports 
  N/A  

Section 3 Report: 
  No missing reports   
  Missing any reports 
  N/A  

 

D. Fill in the chart below to indicate past performance of Clearing Special Conditions. In 
order to receive full points on the second chart, Special Conditions must have been 
cleared within 90 days, regardless of receiving an extension from the Department.  

 
Timely Clearance of Special Conditions 

For Grant #       
  All Special Conditions cleared  

 within 90 days. 
  If more than 90 days 

For Grant #       
  All Special Conditions cleared   

 within 90 days. 
  If more than 90 days 

For Grant #       
  All Special Conditions cleared  

 within 90 days. 
  If more than 90 days 

For Grant #       
  All Special Conditions cleared  

 within 90 days. 
  If more than 90 days 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
 Application Summary 

 

GRANT ADMINISTRATIVE CAPACITY - Forms 
 

-42- 

E. In the Audit and Monitoring Chart below, fill in the grant number of any CDBG 
monitoring visit, regardless of whether or not there were any Monitoring Findings. 
Include the grant number and the date of the Monitoing Visit.  Also fill in any year 
(within the last two fiscal years) in which your jurisdiction had a Single Audit Report 
(SAR), as required by OMB A-133, with one or more Findings that related to CDBG.  

 
 

  
 
 

Compliance in Clearing of Monitoring and Audit Findings 
                Monitorings                                           Audit Findings Regarding CDBG 
For Grant #       
Date of Monitoring Visit:       

   Jurisdiction responded to Monitoring 
Report within prescribed timeline 

  Responded in more than prescribed 
timeline but with Department 
Approval 

  Responded in more than prescribed 
timeline without Department 
Approval  

For Year 2009-2010 
  Single Audit Report included one or 
more CDBG-related Findings 

  Jurisdiction responded to Audit Finding 
Report within prescribed timeline 

  Responded in more than prescribed 
timeline but with Department Approval 

  Responded in more than prescribed 
timeline without Department Approval 

For Grant #        
Date of Monitoring Visit:       

   Jurisdiction responded to Monitoring 
Report within prescribed timeline 

  Responded in more than prescribed 
timeline but with Department 
Approval 

  Responded in more than prescribed 
timeline without Department 
Approval 

For Year 2010-2011 
  Single Audit Report included one or 
more CDBG-related Findings 

  Jurisdiction responded to Audit Finding 
Report within prescribed timeline  

  Responded in more than prescribed 
timeline but with Department Approval 

  Responded in more than prescribed 
timeline without Department Approval 



2012 NOFA APPLICATION 
Application Summary 

ALL ACTIVITIES - ALL FUNDING SOURCES 

- 43-  
 

USES SOURCES 

ACTIVITY  
(Separate Activity Delivery and 

General Admin) 

State and Federal Other Funding Sources 

 

 

State CDBG 
Funds  

 

Program Income 
Available: 
$      

(Total uncommitted                
RLA funds available) 

Program Income 
Committed: 

Other 
State Funds 

Federal 
Funds Local Funds Private Totals: 

General Administration $  80,000 $        $        $        $        $        $  80,000 

Activity Delivery 
$  138,750 $        $        $        $        $        $  138,750 

MFH Rehabilitation $  786,250 $        $  925,000 $        $        $  196,904 $  1,908,154 

Planning and Technical 
Assistance 

$  95,000 $        $        $        $  2,500 $  2,500 $  100,000 

      $        $        $        $        $        $        $        

      $        $        $        $        $        $        $        

      $        $        $        $        $        $        $        

      $        $        $        $        $        $        $        

      $        $        $        $        $        $        $        

      $        $        $        $        $        $        $        

Totals: $  1,100,000 $        $  925,000 $        $  2,500 $  
199,404 $  2,226,904 



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Housing Rehabilitation (HR) 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION - Forms 
 

- 8 - 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
*Click on the box, drop-down menu or text box to enter information. 

ACTIVITY SELECT DOCUMENTATION  PAGE(S) 
Housing Rehab Forms (all pgs) YES All Forms and Documentation 25 

    

NEED    

Age of Housing Stock YES Included in Forms 28 

Overcrowding  YES Included in Forms 28 

Vacancy Rate  YES Included in Forms 28 

Supplemental Information YES List:             

Other Supporting 
Documentation 

YES List:             

BENEFIT    

Service Area Documentation YES Select       

Beneficiary Documentation YES Select       

Other:        YES List:             

READINESS    

Program Operator  Subrecipient Select 30 

Existing Program Continued YES Select 30 

Projects Only: Proof of Similar 
Projects 

          

         
Similar Project WIT    

 

Select 
 

31 

Draft Subrecipient Agreement NO Select       

Executed Subrecipient 
Agreement 

YES Select 77 

Draft Housing Rehab 
Guidelines 

YES Select       

Adopted Rehab Guidelines Select Select       

List of Pre-Screened Applicants YES Select       

Projects Only: Site Control Yes Select       

Projects Only: All Funding in 
Place 

No Select       

Sources and Uses Required Chart        



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Housing Rehabilitation (HR) 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION - Forms 
 

-9- 

A. Activity Information:  
 

1. Is this Activity being submitted under the Community Development 
Allocation, the Native American Allocation, the Colonia Allocation, or as a 
Set-Aside (Un-Scored) Activity? (Check only one box per set of activity 
application forms. A complete separate set of the forms in this section 
must be filled out for each allocation being applied for.) 

  
    Community Development Allocation 
    Native American Allocation  
    Colonia Allocation 
    Set-Aside (Un-Scored) Activity  

 
2. How much is being requested for this activity? 

$1,000,000     = $861,250 + $138,750 

Total $$ Requested for this Activity = (Activity $$) + (Activity Delivery $$) 
 

3. Is this activity a component of a Housing Combo program? 
           Yes                              No    
 
4. How will the requested CDBG funds be used?  Check ONLY one type of 

Program OR one type of Project.  If more than one program/project is being 
proposed, submit a separate set of Activity Forms for each program/project: 
a) Programs   
   Rehab Program: Single-Family Residential (14A)  
   Energy Efficiency Improvements (only) (14F) 

   Lead-Based Paint/Lead Hazard Testing/Abatement (only) (14I) 
   Residential Historic Preservation Program (16A)  
 

b) Projects 
    Multi-Family Rehabilitation Project (14B) 
    Public Housing Modernization (14C) 
    Rehab of Other Publicly Owned Residential Buildings (14D) 
    Housing Real Property Acquisition for Rehabilitation (14G) 

     Residential Historic Project (16A) 
     Conversion of building(s) to housing units (must stay within the  
  existing foundation footprint)    



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Housing Rehabilitation (HR) 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION - Forms 
 

-10- 

5. If a Project is being proposed, what is the location of the sites(s) where the 
activity will occur? (Include map) 

 156 E. Clarke Street, Bishop, CA  93514 
   
  Does the Applicant currently have site control? 
     Yes    No  (If Yes, see Question 4 under Readiness) 

 
6.  Description of Activity:  (See instructions.) 

 Reconstruction of 19-unit income and senior restricted Valley Apartments (see 
attached detail project description). 

 
7.  Who will be the Program Operator?  (Check all that apply.) 

   Jurisdiction (Applicant) 
   Consultant/Contractor (For-Profit entity)   
   Non-Profit as Subrecipient 
   CHDO (Community Housing Development Organization) 
   Another unit of local government 
   Another public agency 
 Non-Profits not acting as Subrecipients 
   Faith-based organization 
 Institution of higher education 
 Combination of       

 
Name of all agencies/organizations indicated above: 
a) Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc. (IMACA) 
b)       
c)       
d)       

 
  



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Housing Rehabilitation (HR) 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION - Forms 
 

-11- 

8. Project Timeline (for MFH Projects Only) - Indicate significant 
accomplishments and the proposed date of completion.   

 

 
9. Relocation Compliance for Rehab Programs: 

Will this activity trigger relocation (temporary) or permanent displacement 
of any “persons”? 
Yes                        No  
If yes, then the grantee will be required as a special condition of the CDBG grant 
contract to submit GIN notices and a formal relocation or displacement plan for 
the project prior to release of grant funds.  A properly signed acquisition notice to 
the seller will also be required per federal regulations. 

 
Do local Owner Occupied Program Guidelines allow temporary relocation 
for program participants?  

         Yes                        No  
         If yes, then proper language regarding the assistance for households must be 

included in local program guidelines for review at time of meeting special 
conditions of the grant.    

 
Do local Owner Investor Program Guidelines have temporary relocation 
plan for tenants of rental units under the program?  

         Yes                        No  
 If no, then proper Local Program Guidelines must be provided for the 

Department’s review and approval at time of meeting special conditions of the 
grant.    

  
 
  

Project Timeline 
 Description of Accomplishment Proposed Date 

of Attainment 
1. Temporary Relocation of Residents January 2013 
2. Demolition of Existing Structures April 2013 
3. Site Grading June 2013 
4. Reconstruction of 19-unit apartment complex  July 2013 
5. Parking Lot and Landscaping March 2014 
6. Completion of Project May 2014 
7.             
8.             



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Housing Rehabilitation (HR) 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION - Forms 
 

-12- 

B. Need for Activity:  
 
 
 
 

1.    Age of Housing Stock - This table will indicate the total percentage of the 
jurisdiction’s housing stock that was built pre-1970.  

 

Enter the percentage from Appendix P Age of Housing Stock 55.5% 

 
2. Overcrowding - The total percentage of the jurisdiction’s housing stock that is 

overcrowded (1.01 or more occupants per room):   
 

Enter the percentage from Appendix P Overcrowding 7.0% 

 
3. Vacancy Rate (for MFH projects) - Enter the total percentage of the 

jurisdiction’s vacancy rate:   
 

 

 
4. Supplemental Information - Check if providing supplemental information for: 

    Worsened Age of Housing Stock   
    Worsened Housing Overcrowding 
    Worsened Vacancy Rate (for MFH projects) 
 a) Describe the worsened condition:       

b) Describe how this issue is specific to your community?       
c) List: 

• Third-party, quantifiable documentation (must be less than 5 years 
old) being submitted to support the worsened condition(s), AND 

• The time period that the documentation supports as worsened (e.g., 
earthquake on 1/1/08; fire from 3/13/08-5/17/08, etc.), AND 

• The page numbers, in this application, where documentation can be 
found. 

 
Note: For lengthy reports/studies, please include the cover page, executive 

summary and only the pages needed to support worsened conditions. A 
more current Housing Stock survey cannot be submitted here – it must 
be submitted under the Housing Stock Condition section. 

Enter the percentage from Appendix P      Total Vacancy Rate 5.8% 

For Census data used for this activity, please refer to Appendix P 



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Housing Rehabilitation (HR) 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION - Forms 
 

-13- 

Description of Documentation: Date of 
Doc. 

Application 
Page # 

1.                   

2.                   
 
C. Benefit: 
 1. Service area for Programs:  (Check only one.) 

     Entire Jurisdiction 
     Target Area(s): 
 

All Applicants - Identify the Service Area(s) by Census Tract(s) and Block 
Group(s) in the table below (even if jurisdiction-wide) and list the page(s) where 
the Census Track/ Block Group Map(s) may be found in this application.  
Page(s):        

 

 
2. Beneficiaries by Income and Tenure - Housing Rehabilitation programs are 

income restricted and benefit 100 percent Low-Mod Individuals (LMI).  Indicate 
the number of households that are anticipated to be assisted by category of 
Low-Mod Income, and by owner or renter-occupied units. 

 
OWNER-OCCUPIED units - 

81% and Above 

(Non- Low-Mod) 

Between  
51% - 80%         

(Low Income) 

Between  
31% - 50%  

(Very Low Income) 

Below 30% 
(Extremely               

Low Income) 

TOTALS 

not eligible                         

 
 
  

Census Tract Census Tract Census Tract Census Tract Census Tract 

4                         

Block Group(s) Block Group(s) Block Group(s) Block Group(s) Block Group(s) 

2054                         



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Housing Rehabilitation (HR) 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION - Forms 
 

-14- 

RENTER-OCCUPIED units - 

81% and Above 
(Non-LOW-MOD) 

Between  
51% - 80%         

(Low Income) 

Between  
31% - 50%  

(Very Low Income) 

Below 30% 
(Extremely               

Low Income) 

TOTALS 

not eligible       3 17 20 
 

 
3.  Estimated number of:   1 Loans 1 Grants 

 
D. Readiness: 

        
 1. Program Operator - If funded, how will this activity be administered?   

 In-house Staff Only  (Attach resumes and duty statements of staff that will 
be performing the work and a “Responsibility Chart” showing internal 
controls, management oversight, and which staff will be working on 
CDBG activities and their specific responsibilities.)  

 Subrecipient Agreement: 
  Draft      Executed    Other:        
  Term of the agreement:  March 2012 to March 2015 

 Procured Administrator(s) (per 24 CFR 85.36 and the GMM Chapter 8): 
  Per Small Purchase Authority 
  By Competitive Proposal 
  By Non-Competitive/Sole-Source 
 Include Department approval documentation, pages:        

  Term of the agreement:        
 Combination of the above.  Describe:          

Documentation provided on pages:        
 

 2. Activity-Specific Operator Experience – Single Family Rehab Program: 
   Continuation of Existing Program  
   Active Program Within last 12 Months  
   Active Program Within last 4 Years – though not last 12 months  

Documentation provided on pages:        
 

  



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Housing Rehabilitation (HR) 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION - Forms 
 

-15- 

3. Activity-Specific Operator Experience – Multi-Family Rehab Project: 
Number of similar projects with CDBG or HOME funding completed by the 
jurisdiction in the past 5 years: 
 

  0 (zero)      1 - 2      3 or more 
 
Documentation required (check all that apply): 

  First page of grant agreement(s) 
             First page of development agreement(s) 

  Grant close-out letter(s) from CDBG or HOME 
  Copy(ies) of Certificate of Occupancy or Recorded Notice(s) of 

Completion 
Documentation provided on pages:        
 
Number of similar projects without CDBG or HOME funding completed by the 
jurisdiction in the past 5 years: 
 

  0 (zero)      1 - 2      3 or more 
 
Documentation required (check all that apply): 

  First page of grant agreement(s) 
             First page of development agreement(s) 

  Grant close-out letter(s) from CDBG or HOME 
  Copy(ies) of Certificate of Occupancy or Recorded Notice(s) of 

Completion 
Documentation provided on pages:        
 

4.  Site Control (Projects Only):   
  Draft        Executed     
     City/County owned site  
     Purchase Agreement  
     Option to Purchase   
     Option to Lease  
     Leasehold Interest  
     Deed of Trust 
  



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Housing Rehabilitation (HR) 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION - Forms 
 

-16- 

     Other documentation of Site Control – List       
  Documentation provided on pages:        

 
5. Other Readiness Documentation Provided: 

  Adopted Housing Rehab Guidelines (Programs) 
  Waiting List of Pre-Screened Applicants (Programs) 
  Financing in Place (include all commitment letters or loan agreements)  
  Executed Development Agreement (Projects Only) 
 Documentation provided on pages:         
 

Note: If the applicant’s Program Guidelines have been approved by the 
Department, provide only the Department’s approval letter.   



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Housing Rehabilitation (HR) 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION - All Funding Sources 

-17- 

USES SOURCES 

Activity Cost 
Categories 

STATE OR FEDERAL Other Funding Sources  

State 
CDBG 

Program 
Income 

Other  
State Funds 

Federal 
Funds 

Local 
Funds Private Identify 

Leverage Totals: 

Plans and 
Specifications $       $        $  50,000 $        $       $  10,503 IMACA $  60,503 

Development Fees $       $        $        $        $       $  20,168 IMACA $  20,168 

Relocation of Residents $       $        $  175,000 $        $       $  17,000 IMACA $  192,000 

Demolition $       $        $  200,000 $        $       $              $  200,000 

Site Improvements $       $        $  250,000 $        $       $              $  250,000 

Construction $ 861,250 $        $        $        $       $  147,136 DONATIONS $  1,008,386 

Contractor Fees $       $        $  250,000 $        $       $  2,097 IMACA $  252,097 

Totals: $ 861,250 $        $  925,000 $        $       $  196,904       $  1,983,154 

 



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Planning & Technical Assistance (PTA) 

 

PLANNING ACTIVITIES TABLE OF CONTENTS - Forms 
 

- 7 - 
 

PLANNING ACTIVITIES TABLE OF CONTENTS 
*Click on the box, drop-down menu or text box to enter information.  

ACTIVITY SELECT DOCUMENTATION PAGE(S) 
Planning Activities Forms (all pgs) YES All Forms/Documents 35 

PLANNING OVERVIEW FORMS    
Allocation Selection Required Included in Forms 35 

Activity Titles and Funding Request Required Included in Forms 35 

List of Cash Match and Cash Match 
Supporting Documentation  

Required List: Adopted Resolution 35 

Cash Match Documentation YES YES 35 

Target Population Served Required Included in Forms 36 
Beneficiaries Served Documentation YES       36 

Consultant Information YES Included in Forms       

Other:        YES List:             

PLANNING ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION FORMS – Planning Study #1  
National Objective Documentation  Yes Yes 37 
Public Benefit Documentation  
(For ED planning activities only) 

Select Select       

Activity Description Required Add'l docs attached 65 

Final Product Description Required Add'l docs attached 68 

Cost Reasonableness Documentation  Required Add'l docs attached       
For-Profit Business Required Letters Select Select       

Budget Chart (Schedule 1) Required Chart 39 

PLANNING ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION FORMS – Planning Study #2  
National Objective Documentation  Yes Yes 40 
Public Benefit Documentation  
(For ED planning activities only) 

Select Select       

Activity Description Required Add'l docs attached 75 

Final Product Description Required Add'l docs attached 75 

Cost Reasonableness Documentation  Required Add'l docs attached       
For-Profit Business Required Letters Select Select       

Budget Chart (Schedule 1) Required Chart 42 



 2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Planning & Technical Assistance (PTA) 

 

PLANNING ACTIVITY - Forms 
 

- 8 - 
 

1.  Allocation Selection (No more than two planning activities allowed per application) 

 
    Economic Development (ED) Planning Activities only:     1 study     2 studies 
    Community Development (CD) Planning Activities only:  1 study     2 studies 
    ED & CD Planning Activities – 1 of each              
 
  

 

 

3.  List of Cash Match Sources 
         

  
Required Cash 
Match  
(Minimum 5%) 

Name of Source:  
City, County or Other (non state or federal funds) 

Approved 
Cash Match  
(per Resolution)

 

  5% City  $2,500                   

  5% Other        $2,500                   
                  $        

 
 

   
Total  $5,000 

 

2.   Activity Titles and Funding  Requested by Activity   

     

  

Activity Title - Insert only one ED or CD activity title per line in this 
table, and indicate ED or CD, and funding amount requested. 
See sample list planning activity titles provided in Appendix Q. 
                
Planning Activity Title                                                    ED or CD 

Funding 
Requested for 

Planning Activities 
 

   1. Affordable Housing Project with HOME and 
Tax Credit Funds    

  
 ED  CD    $ 47,500 

 

   2. Sewer Master Plan (focused)   
  
ED  CD    $ 47,500  

 

General Administration  
* GA may not exceed five percent (5%) of total funds requested * $ 5,000 

 

   Grand Total Amount Requested (Max. $100,000)    $ 100,000 
 



 2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Planning & Technical Assistance (PTA) 

 

PLANNING ACTIVITY - Forms 
 

- 9 - 
 

 

4.  Target Population Served 
 
      1.    Physically Disabled                             9.    Seniors 
 
      2.    Persons with AIDS 10.    Mentally Ill 
 
      3.    Youths 11.    Veterans 
 
      4.    Single Adults 12.    Victims of Domestic Violence 
 
      5.    Single Men 13.    Substance Abusers 
 
      6.    Single Women 14.    Dually-Diagnosed 
 
      7.    Families 15.    Homeless 
 
      8.    Farmworker 16.    Other:       
   
 
 

5.  Beneficiaries Served 
 
Proposed Study                                  Accomplishment                   Number Assisted 
Relates to: 
 
Public Services,  Public Facilities         Persons                                    150 
or Public Improvements  
 
Housing or Public Works                       Housing Units                          91                        
 
Housing Acquisition                               Households                                   
  
Economic Development                         Jobs                                              
  
 
 



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Planning & Technical Assistance (PTA) 

 

PLANNING ACTIVITY - Forms 
 

- 10 - 
 

Note:  Complete & attach one set of these Planning Activity Description Forms for 
each proposed Planning Activity. 

  

1. Allocation:    ED         CD    
 
2. Activity Title: Developing an Affordable Housing Project with Home Partnership 

Funds and Tax Credits                                                                                                                        
 
3. Amount Requested for Activity: $  50,000                               
  
4. National Objective:  

A. Check one box indicating which National Objective this activity addresses. 
Explain and document how the activity will meet that objective.   

  Benefit to Low- and Moderate- Income (Low-Mod) Individuals or 
Households 

Or, for the National Objective of Elimination of Slums and Blight, check the box 
below and immediately below it, describe and document how the activity will 
meet the National Objective of Elimination of Slums and Blight. Attach 
documentation of area or spot basis, and attach to this set of activity forms. 

   Elimination of Slums and Blight:  
 Describe how the activity will meet the National Objective:       

Supporting Documentation for Elimination of Slums and Blight provided on 
pages:        

 
B.   Check the appropriate boxes below that describe how the proposed study will 

meet National Objective of Benefit to Low-Mod Individuals or Households: 
  Limited Clientele - list the specific group(s) to be served:       
   Income restricted – describe how final activity resulting from the study 

will be income restricted:       
  Income survey or HUD Low Income Census data - attach full copy of 

proper documentation, including Census Track and Block Group maps, 
at the end of this activity description section.   

  Jurisdiction-Wide 
  Targeted Area 

Supporting Documentation provided on pages:        
 
  



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Planning & Technical Assistance (PTA) 

 

PLANNING ACTIVITY - Instructions 
 

- 11 
 

5. Public Benefit (For ED PTA activities only) - Describe how the planning activity will 
lead to creation or retention of jobs by completing this study: 

       
 
6. Activity Description - Provide a complete narrative explaining the need for the study.  

Describe the scope of work and full process for completing the study with each of the 
key steps.  Check the instructions to make sure you have provided all the required 
information. See attached description 

 
7.  Final Product Description - Describe in detail each final product that will be 

produced from this planning activity: See attached description 
  

Note: All final products, including applications, must contain an acknowledgment of 
State CDBG funding on the front cover. 

 
8.   Cost Reasonableness Documentation – Attach documentation showing cost 

reasonableness of planning study being applied for. Indicate how scope of work, 
service area, and final product will require the amount of funding requested.  
 
Supporting Documentation provided on pages:  See attached documentation 
 

Additional Information for Economic Development (ED) Studies 
 
9. Assistance to For-Profit Businesses - Is the study being conducted on a private for-

profit business, developer or property owner? 
       No, skip to number 10. 
   Yes, state the full name of the private business/property owner and provide 

letters per instructions cited  in #9 of the instructions for this application. 
 

Name:       
 

Attached Letters from Business on Pages:          
 

 
10. Preparation of an Economic Development Plan - Is the applicant preparing an 

economic development plan?  
   Yes    No  

Applicants requesting funds for the development or update of a local Economic 
Development Plan (EDP) are encouraged to consult with their ED program 
representative prior to submitting an application.  

 



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Planning & Technical Assistance (PTA) 

 

PLANNING BUDGET CHART - Forms 
 

- 12 - 
 

 

Activity Title: Tax 
Credit and HOME 
Applications 

City/County Staff Hours Consultant Hours 
 

Task Cost Task Cost  

List of Tasks  Number 
of Hrs 

Hrly 
Rate 

CDBG 
Portion 

Cash 
Match 

Other 
Sources 

Number 
of Hrs 

Hrly 
Rate 

CDBG 
Portion 

Cash 
Match 

Other 
Sources 

Total 
Cost 

            
* 1. Pre-application   20 $ 85 $       $ 1700 $               $       $       $       $       $ 1700 

* 2. Site Studies 20 $ 85 $ 900 $ 800 $       30 $ 100 $ 3000 $       $       $ 4700 

  3. Feasibility Study 10 $ 85 $ 850 $       $       40 $ 100 $ 4000 $       $       $ 4850 

  4. Market Study 10 $ 85 $ 850 $       $       50 $ 150 $ 7500 $       $       $ 8350 

  5. Site Amenities  10 $ 85 $ 850 $       $       8 $ 100 $ 800 $       $       $ 1650 

  6. Design Plans 10 $ 85 $ 850 $       $       50 $ 150 $ 7500 $       $       $ 8350 

  7. Tax Credit App 40 $ 85 $ 3400 $       $       10 $ 100 $ 1000 $       $       $ 4400 

            
  8. Pre-application 20 $ 85 $ 1700 $       $             $       $       $       $       $ 1700 

  9. Site Study Update 10 $ 85 $ 850 $       $       20 $ 100 $ 2000 $       $       $ 2850 

10. Market Study  10 $ 85 $ 850 $       $       20 $ 100 $ 2000 $       $       $ 2850 

11. Feasibility Study 10 $ 85 $ 850 $       $       20 $ 100 $ 2000 $       $       $ 2850 

12. Design Plans 10 $ 85 $ 850 $       $       20 $ 150 $ 3000 $       $       $ 3850 

13. Prepare HOME 
app 

40 $ 85 $ 3400 $       $       10 $ 100 $ 1000 $       $       $ 4400 

14.             $       $       $       $             $       $       $       $       $       

        Totals:       220 $       $ 16500 $ 2500 $       280 $       $ 34000 $       $       $ 52500 

*Show cash match and tasks first to indicate match will be spent first.   



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Planning & Technical Assistance (PTA) 

 

PLANNING ACTIVITY - Forms 
 

- 10 - 
 

Note:  Complete & attach one set of these Planning Activity Description Forms for 
each proposed Planning Activity. 

  

1. Allocation:    ED         CD    
 
2. Activity Title: Master Sewer Plan                                                                                                                                    
 
3. Amount Requested for Activity: $  $50,000                               
  
4. National Objective:  

A. Check one box indicating which National Objective this activity addresses. 
Explain and document how the activity will meet that objective.   

  Benefit to Low- and Moderate- Income (Low-Mod) Individuals or 
Households 

Or, for the National Objective of Elimination of Slums and Blight, check the box 
below and immediately below it, describe and document how the activity will 
meet the National Objective of Elimination of Slums and Blight. Attach 
documentation of area or spot basis, and attach to this set of activity forms. 

   Elimination of Slums and Blight:  
 Describe how the activity will meet the National Objective:       

Supporting Documentation for Elimination of Slums and Blight provided on 
pages:        

 
B.   Check the appropriate boxes below that describe how the proposed study will 

meet National Objective of Benefit to Low-Mod Individuals or Households: 
  Limited Clientele - list the specific group(s) to be served:       
   Income restricted – describe how final activity resulting from the study 

will be income restricted:       
  Income survey or HUD Low Income Census data - attach full copy of 

proper documentation, including Census Track and Block Group maps, 
at the end of this activity description section.   

  Jurisdiction-Wide 
  Targeted Area 

Supporting Documentation provided on pages:        
 
  



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Planning & Technical Assistance (PTA) 

 

PLANNING ACTIVITY - Instructions 
 

- 11 
 

5. Public Benefit (For ED PTA activities only) - Describe how the planning activity will 
lead to creation or retention of jobs by completing this study: 

       
 
6. Activity Description - Provide a complete narrative explaining the need for the study.  

Describe the scope of work and full process for completing the study with each of the 
key steps.  Check the instructions to make sure you have provided all the required 
information. See attached description 

 
7.  Final Product Description - Describe in detail each final product that will be 

produced from this planning activity: See attached description 
  

Note: All final products, including applications, must contain an acknowledgment of 
State CDBG funding on the front cover. 

 
8.   Cost Reasonableness Documentation – Attach documentation showing cost 

reasonableness of planning study being applied for. Indicate how scope of work, 
service area, and final product will require the amount of funding requested.  
 
Supporting Documentation provided on pages:  See attached documentation 
 

Additional Information for Economic Development (ED) Studies 
 
9. Assistance to For-Profit Businesses - Is the study being conducted on a private for-

profit business, developer or property owner? 
       No, skip to number 10. 
   Yes, state the full name of the private business/property owner and provide 

letters per instructions cited  in #9 of the instructions for this application. 
 

Name:       
 

Attached Letters from Business on Pages:          
 

 
10. Preparation of an Economic Development Plan - Is the applicant preparing an 

economic development plan?  
   Yes    No  

Applicants requesting funds for the development or update of a local Economic 
Development Plan (EDP) are encouraged to consult with their ED program 
representative prior to submitting an application.  

 



2012 CDBG APPLICATION 
Planning & Technical Assistance (PTA) 

 

PLANNING BUDGET CHART - Forms 
 

- 12 - 
 

 

Activity Title: Master 
Sewer Plan 
(Focused) 

City/County Staff Hours Consultant Hours 
 

Task Cost Task Cost  

List of Tasks  Number 
of Hrs 

Hrly 
Rate 

CDBG 
Portion 

Cash 
Match 

Other 
Sources 

Number 
of Hrs 

Hrly 
Rate 

CDBG 
Portion 

Cash 
Match 

Other 
Sources 

Total 
Cost 

            
* 1. Procure 
Consultant 

  40 $ 100 $ 1500 $ 2500 $               $       $       $       $       $ 4000 

* 2. Compile Data 15 $ 100 $ 1500 $       $             $       $       $       $       $ 1500 

  3. Identify 
Alternatives 

70 $ 100 $ 7000 $       $       100 $ 150 $ 15000 $       $       $ 22000 

  4. Evaluate 
Alternatives 

      $       $       $       $       100 $ 150 $ 15000 $       $       $ 15000 

  5. Produce Report       $       $       $       $       67 $ 150 $ 10000 $       $       $ 10000 

  6.             $       $       $       $             $       $       $       $       $       

  7.             $       $       $       $             $       $       $       $       $       

            
  8.             $       $       $       $             $       $       $       $       $       

  9.             $       $       $       $             $       $       $       $       $       

10.             $       $       $       $             $       $       $       $       $       

11.             $       $       $       $             $       $       $       $       $       

12.             $       $       $       $             $       $       $       $       $       

13.             $       $       $       $             $       $       $       $       $       

14.             $       $       $       $             $       $       $       $       $       

        Totals:       125 $       $ 10000 $ 2500 $       267 $       $ 40000 $       $       $ 52500 

*Show cash match and tasks first to indicate match will be spent first.   



Search Results Excluded By
Firm, Entity, or Vessel : City of Bishop

Firm, Entity, or Vessel : Bishop CA
as of 12-Mar-2012 2:52 PM EDT

Your search returned no results.





CITY OF BISHOP 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE 
STATE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 

APPLICATION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Bishop will conduct a public hearing on February 
13, 2012, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chambers, 301 West Line Street, Bishop, to discuss 
a possible funding application under the 2012 State Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program and to solicit citizen input on possible activities to be included in the 
application. 

The Community Development and Economic Development Allocations of the State CDBG 
program will publish a combined “Notice of Funding Availability” (NOFA) each program year. 
Eligible cities and counties may submit applications for CDBG funds under the NOFA.  It is 
estimated that up to $2,000,000 will be available in total. The Economic Development “Over-the-
Counter” (OTC) Allocation requires a separate application with a maximum limit of $3,000,000 
per year. The NOFA also includes the Native American and Colonia’s Allocations. The Native 
American Allocation is only for areas with high concentrations of low-income Native American 
residents, who are not part of a federally recognized Native American Indian tribe or Rancheria. 
The Colonia’s funding is only for designated communities within 150 miles of the Mexican-
American border. 

ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES UNDER THE ABOVE ALLOCATIONS IN THE NOFA CONSIST OF: 
HOMEOWNERSHIP ASSISTANCE AND HOUSING REHABILITATION PROGRAMS; PUBLIC 
FACILITY AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PROJECTS (INCLUDING PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENTS IN SUPPORT OF NEW HOUSING CONSTRUCTION); PUBLIC SERVICE 
PROGRAMS, PLANNING STUDIES, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS ASSISTANCE 
AND MICROENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES. ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES PAID FOR WITH STATE 
CDBG FUNDS MUST MEET ONE OR MORE OF THE THREE NATIONAL OBJECTIVES 
LISTED IN CDBG FEDERAL STATUTES AS FOLLOWS: BENEFIT TO LOW INCOME 
HOUSEHOLDS OR PERSONS; ELIMINATION OF SLUMS AND BLIGHT; OR MEETING 
URGENT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT NEED. The City of Bishop anticipates submitting an 
application under the NOFA recently published for this program year. 

The purpose of this public hearing is to give citizens an opportunity to make their comments 
known regarding what types of eligible activities the City of Bishop should apply for under the 
State CDBG program. A separate public hearing will be held to discuss and approve the 
application prior to submittal to the State. 

If you plan to attend the public hearing and need a special accommodation because of a 
sensory or mobility impairment/disability, or have a need for an interpreter, please contact 
Bishop City Hall at (760) 873-5863 to arrange for those accommodations to be made. 



If you are unable to attend the public hearing, you may provide comments as follows: in person 
at Bishop City Hall, 377 West Line Street; over the phone by calling (760) 873-5863; through 
email at cityclerk@ca-bishop.us; or in writing to Keith Caldwell, City Administrator, Bishop City 
Hall, 377 West Line Street, Bishop, CA 93514.  In addition, information is available for review at 
the above address between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. on weekdays.  

The City of Bishop promotes fair housing and makes all its programs available to low and 
moderate income families regardless of age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, sexual 
preference, marital status or handicap. 

 

Published:  February 2, 2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:cityclerk@ca-bishop.us�


 

 

     

  CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA    
                    CITY OF BISHOP 

 
City Council Chambers - 301 West Line Street - Bishop, California  

 
NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact the City Clerk at 760-873-5863. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. (28CFR 13.102-35.104 ADA Title II) 
 
Any writing that is a public record that relates to an agenda item for open session distributed less than 72 hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection at City Hall, 377 West Line Street, Bishop, California during normal business 
hours. Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).  Copies will also be provided at the appropriate meeting. 
 
Members of the public desiring to speak on a matter appearing on the agenda should ask the Mayor for the opportunity to be 
heard when the item comes up for Council consideration.  NOTE: Comments for all agenda items are limited to a speaking time 
of three minutes. 
 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2012 
7:00 P.M. 
 

INVOCATION 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  This time is set aside to receive public comment on matters not 
calendared on the agenda. When recognized by the Mayor, please state your name and address for the record and please limit 
your comments to three minutes.  Under California law the City Council is prohibited from generally discussing or taking 
action on items not included in the agenda; however, the City Council may briefly respond to comments or questions from 
members of the public. Therefore, the City Council will listen to all public comment but will not generally discuss the matter or 
take action on it. 

 

DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS 
(1)   Updates on department activities will be given by the Department Heads 
 A.  Fire Chief Ray Seguine 
 B. Police Chief Chris Carter 
 C. Public Works Director/City Engineer Dave Grah 
 D. City Administrator/Community Services Director Keith Caldwell 

  
CONSENT CALENDAR – NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered 
routine by the City and will be acted on by one motion. 
(2) 
 FOR APPROVAL/FILING  

 Minutes (a) Council Study Session – 1/23/12 
(b) Council Regular Meeting – 1/23/12 
(c) Council Retreat – 1/25/12 

 Reports (d)  Fund Transactions – 7/1/11 – 1/31/12 
(e) Warrant Register – 1/12 
(f) Investment Portfolio – 12/11 
(g) Personnel Status Change Report 
(h) Request to surplus unclaimed found property – BPD#009-12 
(i) Request to amend Street Vendor Permit – Mad Dogs of Bishop 

 1
(j) Approval of letter of support of IMACA CAPP funds application 



 2

    
 
Bishop City Council Agenda 
February 13, 2012 
 
 
FOR INFORMATION/FILING 
Minutes (k) Planning Commission – 11/29/11 
Reports (l) Fire Department Activity Log – 1/12 
   (m) Public Works Building Permit Report – 1/12 
   (n) Sewer Fund Monthly Balances FY 2011-2012 
   (o) Water Fund Monthly Balances FY 2011-2012 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
(3) ORDINANCE NO. 537 ADOPTION – Consideration to approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance 

No. 537 moving the date of the City of Bishop General Municipal Election from March of odd-numbered 
years to November in even-numbered years in order to consolidate with Inyo County General Elections – 
Administration. 

 
  A. RESOLUTION NO. 12-04 - Consideration to adopt a resolution requesting the Inyo County Board of 

Supervisors to approve City of Bishop Ordinance No. 537 respecting moving the date of the City’s 
General Municipal Election – Administration. 

 
 B.  RESOLUTION NO. 12-05 - Consideration to adopt a resolution requesting the Inyo County Board of 

Supervisors to consolidate a General Municipal Election with the Statewide General Election to be held 
on November 6, 2012 – Administration. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS
 
(4) FEES AND CHARGES FY 2012-2013 – A public hearing will be held to hear and consider citizen input 

on proposed amendments to fees and charges for city services for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 established by 
resolution.  No action is scheduled. 

 
(5) STATE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) APPLICATION – A public hearing 

will be held to discuss a possible funding application under the 2012 State Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Program and to solicit citizen input on possible activities to be included in the application. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
(6) MOBILITY ELEMENT ENVIRONMENTAL – Review of the Initial Study and consideration to adopt the 

Negative Declaration for the proposed City of Bishop 2012 Mobility Element of the General Plan – 
Planning Department. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING / NEW BUSINESS 
 
(7) MOBILITY ELEMENT – A public hearing will be held to hear and consider public input on the Draft 

Mobility Element of the General Plan relating to transportation and circulation. 
 
(8) RESOLUTION NO. 12-06 MOBILITY ELEMENT – Consideration to adopt the Mobility Element of the 

General Plan – Planning/Public Works Departments. 
 
 
 
 



 3

 
 
Bishop City Council Agenda 
February 13, 2012 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 (9) BID AWARD – Consideration to award the bid for a lawnmower for the City Park – Community Services 

Department. 
 
(10) BID AWARD – Consideration to award the bid for the ADA Pool Lift – Community Services Department. 
 
(11) BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS FY 2011-2012 – Consideration to adopt the budget adjustment/transfers for 

Fiscal Year 2011-2012 through January 31, 2012 as presented – Administration/Finance. 
 
(12) RESOLUTION NO.  12-07 – Consideration to adopt a resolution establishing a Fund Balance Policy for 

Financial Statement Reporting pursuant to Government Accounting Standards Board 54 – 
Administration/Finance. 

 
(13) PROPOSAL TO ADD NEW POSITION – Consideration of the request from the Police Chief to add a new 

position entitled Police Services Technician; waive the hiring freeze to fill the position from within the 
department; and request to waive the hiring freeze to hire one full-time and one part-time Communications 
Operators positions– Police Department. 

 
(14) RESOLUTION NO. 12-08 – Consideration to approve a resolution authorizing the application for Clean 

Air Projects Program funds through the Great Basin Air Pollution Control District toward the Seibu to 
School Path Project.  

 
(15) PETROLEUM BARREL DISPOSAL – Consideration to approve the removal and disposal of nineteen 55-

gallon barrels containing petroleum products as proposed by H2O Environmental of Reno, Nevada. 
 
COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
CLOSED SESSION
 
(16) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Keith Caldwell, Interim City Administrator, pursuant to 

Government Code § 54957.6(a) – Bishop Employees Association, Bishop Police Officers Association, 
Mid-Management, Management. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Monday, February 27, 2012 - 4:00 p.m. Study Session / 7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting – Council Chambers 
Monday, March 12, 2012 - 4:00 p.m. Study Session / 7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting – Council Chambers 
Monday, March 26, 2012 - 4:00 p.m. Study Session / 7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting – Council Chambers 
Monday, April 9, 2012 - 4:00 p.m. Study Session / 7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting – Council Chambers 
 
 
 



CITY OF BISHOP 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR SUBMITTAL OF A STATE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) APPLICATION 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Bishop will conduct a public hearing on March 26, 
2012, at 7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chambers, 301 West Line Street, Bishop, to discuss the 
submittal of an application in response to the 2012 State Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), and to solicit citizen input. 

The City of Bishop is applying for $ 1,100,000 under the NOFA for the following eligible 
activities: 

1) Multiple Family Housing Rehabilitation Activities, including the Reconstruction of the 
Valley Apartments:  $1,000,000; and 

2) Planning and Technical Assistance (PTA) Activities, including Developing an Affordable 
Housing Project with Home Partnership Funds and Tax Credits and a Master Sewer 
Plan:  $100,000 

The Reconstruction of Valley Apartments will result in the temporary relocation of the residents 
during demolition and construction.  A proposed Relocation Plan will be reviewed in conjunction 
with consideration of the Block Grant funding application.  In addition, a Sub-Recipient 
Agreement will be considered between the City of Bishop and Inyo Mono Advocates for 
Community Action, Inc. (IMACA) to define responsibilities and contract requirements for each 
agency if an award is granted by the State. 

The purpose of this public hearing is to give citizens an opportunity to make their comments 
known on the proposed activities/application. 

If you plan to attend the public hearing and need a special accommodation because of a 
sensory or mobility impairment/disability, or have a need for an interpreter, please contact 
Bishop City Hall at (760) 873-5863 to arrange for those accommodations to be made. 

If you are unable to attend the public hearing, you may provide comments as follows: in person 
at Bishop City Hall, 377 West Line Street; over the phone by calling (760) 873-5863; through 
email at cityclerk@ca-bishop.us; or in writing to Keith Caldwell, City Administrator, Bishop City 
Hall, 377 West Line Street, Bishop, CA 93514.  In addition, information is available for review at 
the above address between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. on weekdays.  

The City of Bishop promotes fair housing and makes all its programs available to low and 
moderate income families regardless of age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, sexual 
preference, marital status or handicap. 

 

Published:  March 15, 2012 

mailto:cityclerk@ca-bishop.us�


 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION FOR THE VALLEY APARTMENTS 
RECONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT 

 
 
PROJECT LOCATION:  
 
The apartment reconstruction site is located on the south side of E. Clarke Street, 
approximately 534 feet east of South Main Street and 100 feet west of Sneden Street.  
The street address is 156 E. Clarke Street and the Tax Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 
for the property is 01-212-05.  Dimensions for the site are 150 feet of street and alley 
frontage by 130 feet deep for a total of .45 acres of land area.   
 
The legal description of the property is as follows: 
 
Lots 4, 5 and 6 of Block “HE” of the John B. Clarke Addition to the City of Bishop, in the 
County of Inyo, State of California, as per map filed in Book 1 Page 67 of Maps, in the 
office of the County Recorder of said County.  Excepting therefrom the South 9 feet as 
conveyed to the City of Bishop, in Book 10 Page 413 of Deeds. 
 
The site is in a Por. N ½  Sec. 7, T.7 S. R.33 E., Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian 
(M.D.B. & M.), in the southern portion of the City of Bishop, County of Inyo, and State of 
California. 
 
EXISTING CONDITIONS: 
 
The approximately .45 acre project site is located on the south side of Clarke Street 
between S. Main Street and Sneden Street and is currently developed with the Valley 
Apartments.  The Valley Apartments include 19 affordable, senior-restricted dwelling 
units with 18 rentals and one manager’s unit.  The units are located in four attached 
one-story buildings which form a central courtyard and a separated, off-street parking 
area with 14 spaces.  Vehicle access to the parking is from a driveway off Clarke Street.  
A one-way (west to east) alley abuts the site to the south and provides pedestrian but 
not vehicular access.  There is a 500-gallon propane tank  along the east property line.  
The propane tank and parking are shared with the IMACA Head Start Program property 
to the east.  The site is completely covered with paving and buildings except for a large 
cottonwood tree and raised planter bed in the courtyard area. 
 
SURROUNDING LAND USES AND SETTING:  
 
Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc.  (IMACA) is the property owner for the 
Valley Apartments and the Head Start Program site located to the east.  Adjacent to the 
west of the Valley Apartments is a parking lot for an automobile sales and repair 
business.  To the south, across a 19-foot wide alley, is an auto body and paint facility 
and commercial businesses. A day care center and and single family residence are 
located to the north across Clarke Street.  The Valley Apartments site and all 



-2-  

surrounding properties are zoned C-1, General Commercial and Retail and designated 
General Commercial in the Land Use Element of the General Plan. 
 
 
 
SITE DEVELOPMENT HISTORY: 
 
A single-family residence with 727 square feet was constructed on the property in 1940.  
This dwelling is now the manager’s unit for the Valley Apartments and is located at the 
northwest corner of the site.  In 1950, an 18-room motel with approximately 5,554 
square feet was built adjoining on the property adjoining the residence.  All of the units 
contain a small kitchen and most of the apartments have 260 square feet of living area.  
A couple of the apartments are slightly larger with more kitchen area.  Two off-street 
parking areas with access from Clarke Street were also constructed for the site.  The 
courtyard parking area, in which parking is now prohibited, included 16 spaces and two, 
one-way driveways.  The east parking area, which is shared with IMACA Head Start, 
has 14 parking spaces and a one-way driveway off Clarke Street..  
 
IMACA, with low-interest loans from the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development, purchased the motel complex and residence in 1981.  
Funding from the state was also used to rehabilitate the structures and convert the 
motel into affordable apartments for seniors and people with disabilities.  IMACA has 
owned and managed the apartment complex for over 30 years and the structures are 
showing age and deterioration.  Major repairs have been made to many of the dwellings 
and the water and electrical delivery infrastructure is in need of replacement.  Based on 
the age of the structures, the relatively small living area for residents, and the needed 
repaires, the IMACA Board of Directors has determined that the most appropriate 
course of action is to reconstruct the Valley Apartments. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
This is a development proposal to reconstruct the 19-unit Valley Apartment complex 
located at 156 E. Clarke Street, in the City of Bishop.  Prior to demolition of the 
apartment buildings, which were constructed in 1940 and 1950, residents will be 
relocated to equivalent living quarters for the entirety of the construction period.  
Relocation will include moving the seniors and some residents who have disabilities 
along with all of their possessions to quality apartments and/or detached dwellings in 
the least disruptive manner  possible.  The project proponent, IMACA, will also make 
every endeavor to reduce the construction period with planning and coordination with 
building contractors. 
 
Subsequent to the demolition and removal of the old motel and residence buildings, a 
new 19-unit apartment complex for occupancy by persons with disabilities and low-
income seniors will be constructed.  The two-story structure will be built on the west side 
of the property and an off-street parking lot with 24 spaces, including two accessible 
spaces will be provided on the east side of the site between the apartments and the 



-3-  

IMACA Head Start Program buildings.  Driveway access to the parking lot will be 
provided off of E. Clarke Street and the adjoining public  alleyway on the south.   
 
Walkways will be constructed from the parking area to the front and rear of the 
apartment building.  An interior elevator and stairwell are provided at the front of the 
building and a second, inside stairway will be at the back, off the alley.  Each of the 
efficiency units will include a combined bedroom and living room with a divider wall as 
well as a kitchen and bathroom.  The current floor area for the residents will be 
increased from 260 sq. ft. to 405 sq. ft.   The manager’s unit will be constructed with a 
full bedroom and contain approximately 610 sq. ft. of interior living area.  A common 
area with about 610 sq. ft. will also be provided for the residents and conceptually 
include a small kitchen area, lounge, exercise equipment and laundry.  All of the living 
spaces will have an adjoining balcony or patio area.  Common open space, located 
between the apartments and parking area will consist of a community garden and other 
appropriate amenities for seniors.   
 
The existing Cottonwood tree and raised  planter bed will be removed but in addition to 
the community garden and patio areas, the parking lot, front and rear yard setback 
areas and area along the walkways will be planted with landscaping. A trash enclosure 
with recycling area will be constructed off the alleyway and the shared propane tank 
relocated to the landscaped area between the parking lot and new building.  Bicycle 
racks will be provided at both the front and rear building entrances. 
 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE: 
 
The resident relocation, demolition, and construction schedule are primarily dependent 
on acquisition of funding for the development project.  It is anticipated that relocation will 
take approximately two months and demolition of the buildings will require at least the 
same amount of time.  With a substantially expedited construction schedule, it is 
estimated that the apartment complex can be completed in eight months.  The total 
project schedule time frame is currently projected as one year from relocation to 
occupancy.  At this point in time, the project proponent is striving to begin the 
reconstruction project in the Spring of 2013 and complete the construction in the Spring 
of 2014. 
 



 

 

VALLEY APARTMENTS RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
VICINITY MAP 

CITY OF BISHOP, COUNTY OF INYO, 
CALIFORNIA 



 

 

VALLEY APARTMENTS RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
VICINITY MAP 

156 E. CLARKE STREET, CITY OF BISHOP, COUNTY OF INYO, 
CALIFORNIA  93514 

Project Site 



CITY OF BISHOP 
VALLEY RECONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 

156 E. CLARKE STREET, BISHOP, CA 93514 
AERIAL LOCATION MAP 

PROJECT 
SITE E. Clarke Street 

S
. M

ai
n 

S
tre

et
 



CITY OF BISHOP 
PROJECT LOCATION &  
CENSUS BLOCK MAP 

PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT SITE 

















 
 

DEVELOPMENT OF AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT WITH 
HOME PARTNERSHIP FUNDS AND TAX CREDITS 

 
 
 
Activity Description: 
 
Summary of Project Proposal and Proposed Study.  This study funding proposal 
includes the preparation of HOME Partnership and Federal Tax Credit applications to 
assist in the development of a new affordable rental project for seniors and people with 
disabilities in the City of Bishop, California.  The project proposal is a collaborative effort 
between the City of Bishop, the Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc. 
(IMACA), and two non-profit agencies representing people with disabilities.  The study 
will involve many separate tasks that culminate in the submittal of applications to fund a 
development that will benefit a large number of low-income residents in the community.  
The overall applications package will require nine months to complete, including 
preparation activities, and will cost approximately $53,000.   This following description 
includes an overview of the project proposal, a development schedule, and a narrative 
of the proposed study along with a timeline.   
 
Development Proposal.  This project proposal includes the phased construction of 72 
attached rental dwelling units on approximately 3.3 acres of land at the southwest 
corner of Mac Iver and Spruce Streets, in the City of Bishop, and County of Inyo.   The 
proposed residences will be occupied by income-restricted seniors and people with 
disabilities.  Residents’ disabilities could be severe and include people with 
developmental disabilities, which may require supportive facilities such as 
accommodations for caretakers.   
 
Development of the site will include construction of multi-family residences, a manager’s 
unit and a common area for supportive services such as laundry facilities, a community 
room, a kitchen area, an office, and exercise area.  Each of the residential buildings will 
contain one-bedroom senior/disabled dwelling units of approximately 500 square feet 
each.  Two-bedroom units, with approximately 850 square feet of floor area, for 
occupants with severe disabilities, including developmental disabilities, will be situated 
at the end of each building on the ground level.  All of the buildings on the site will be 
either one or two stories in height.  
 
Additional street improvements proposed for the development along Mac Iver Street will 
include the undergrounding of electrical power lines to the site, installation of 
landscaping and irrigation in the parkway, and extension of telephone, cable, and other 
utilities to serve the project. Most of the property is below the level required to gravity 
feed to the existing sewer line in MacIver Street and therefore an alternative method of 
delivery is required. 
 
 



 
 

DEVELOPMENT OF AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT WITH 
HOME PARTNERSHIP FUNDS AND TAX CREDITS 

 
 
 
The development site is located centrally in the City of Bishop and is close to most 
amenities required by both seniors and people with disabilities.  The City’s Community 
Park and a senior center are situated near the property to the south along Spruce 
Street.  Two grocery stores (including a discount food store) and a department store are 
less than 1,000 feet from the project site.  There are transit stops along MacIver Street 
and Main Street which are within one block of the site.  Other shopping, recreation, and 
outdoor activities area also located within walking distance.  The drive from the 
development property to the Northern Inyo Hospital, the closest full service medical 
facility, is approximately 1.5 miles.  
 
Development Schedule.  One of the first steps in developing this site is the purchase of 
the property from the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP) by the 
City of Bishop.  A Purchase Agreement is required to demonstrate adequate site control 
to meet the threshold requirements for submission of HOME Partnership and tax credit 
applications.  Based on information from LADWP, it is estimated that completion of the 
process to obtain a Purchase Agreement will take from six months to one year.  LADWP 
has declared the property surplus and is conducting a survey to establish property lines. 
 
With a Purchase Agreement and site control, the partnership can work on the second 
step of the development to obtain adequate funding.  A preliminary estimate for property 
purchase and construction is approximately $10 million which is anticipated from 
several sources.  Home Partnership funds and tax credits are two of the anticipated 
sources of funding for the development.  The development partnership will submit an 
application for tax credits in April of 2012 and a HOME Partnership application in 
September of the same year.   
 
The third step is to conduct the environmental review and entitlement process for the 
development through the City of Bishop.  This should be completed by the spring of 
2013.  The final stage in the development process will be construction of the 
apartments.  At this time, IMACA and the City of Bishop estimate that the first phase of 
construction for the Silver Peaks Project will begin in the summer of 2013 and be 
completed within 12 months.  It is anticipated that 36-40 apartment units will be 
constructed in the first phase of construction.  One or more subsequent phases of 
construction are estimated to begin in 2014 or 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

DEVELOPMENT OF AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT WITH 
HOME PARTNERSHIP FUNDS AND TAX CREDITS 

 
 
Proposed Study Description.  Two of the sources of funding for this project are 
anticipated to be the HOME Partnership Program and Tax Credits (9%).  It will be 
necessary to complete and submit competitive applications for this funding.  We are 
requesting to fund preparation of these applications with the Planning and Technical 
Assistance (PTA) allocation for the City of Bishop.  Since this is a collaborative project 
between the City of Bishop and three non-profit organizations and City staff resources 
are limited, preparation of the application will be delegated to available staff working for 
IMACA.  A draft sub-recipient agreement is included with this application to reflect that 
relationship.  IMACA is a qualified, non-profit agency that assists low-income residents 
and is approved by HCD as a Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO). 
 
Preparation of a HOME Partnership and tax credit applications will be relatively time 
consuming with many tasks to meet the minimum threshold requirements and result in a 
proposal that is competitive with other jurisdictions and non-profit organizations in the 
State.  However, many of the studies required are the same for both applications and 
will result in substantial cost savings if prepared in the same year.  The main tasks 
anticipated for the preparation of funding applications are:  1) Preliminary work prior to 
release of the NOFA’s and attendance at application workshops; 2) updating a Phase I 
ESA for the site; 3) preparing a property appraisal for the site; 4) completing preliminary 
development plans for the project; 5) preparing a market study for the development; 6) 
completing a financial analysis for the proposal;7) completing the city entitlement 
process for the development; 8) preparing the applications and worksheet forms; 9) 
conducting public hearings and obtain Non-profit Board Approvals; and 10) submitting 
applications.  A Scope of Work is attached that provides additional detail for each of 
these tasks. 
 
Estimated Timeline for Study.  It is anticipated that preparation of the HOME 
Partnership and tax credit funding applications will take approximately nine months to 
complete.  This timeframe includes preparation work and the time necessary to 
complete the required studies included in the application.  Based on the notice timing for 
this year’s Tax Credit program, it is expected that the NOFA for this funding will be 
issued in February with the first round application due in May and the second round 
application due in July of next year.  Last year’s HOME Partnership NOFA was issued 
on June 1 and the application was due in early September.  Our intent is to utilize this 
as a base schedule and modify it if necessary. If successful in 2012, funding would be 
available sometime in 2013 which would coincide with the proposed development 
schedule. 
 
 
 
 
 



APPLICATION PREPARATION FOR DEVELOPING AN AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING PROJECT WITH HOME PARTNERSHIP FUNDS  

AND TAX CREDITS 

 
 

Final Product Description: 
 
The final products for the proposed study include completed and competitive 
applications for the HOME Partnership Program and Tax Credits.  The complete 
applications will include the following components: 
 
1) CALIFORNIA LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDIT ALLOCATION 

APPLICATION (9%) 
a. Demonstrate Site Control 
b. Financial Feasibility 

i. Financial Plan 
ii. 15-year Pro-forma 
iii. Utility Allowance Estimate 

c. Describe Applicant Development Team 
i. Sponsorship Characteristics 
ii. Copies of contracts 

d. Site and project information 
e. Market Analysis 
f. Local Approvals  

i. Verification of Zoning 
ii. Environmental Review –compliance with CEQA and NEPA 

g. Financing Commitments 
h. Evidence of Subsidies 
i. Leveraging 

i. Cost efficiency 
ii. Credit reduction 
iii. Public Funds 

j. General Partner experience 
k. Management Company Experience 
l. Site Amenities 

i. Map w/distance requirements 
ii. Point of reference for bus stop photo 
iii. Clear Color photos 

m. Service Amenities 
n. Sustainable Building materials 
o. Lowest Income 
p. Readiness to Proceed 

 
 
 
 
 
 



APPLICATION PREPARATION FOR DEVELOPING AN AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING PROJECT WITH HOME PARTNERSHIP FUNDS  

AND TAX CREDITS 

 
 

2) HOME PARTNERSHIP APPLICATION 
a. Demonstrate Capability 
b. Market Study 

i. Meet CTCAC Market Study Guidelines and HCD Requirements 
ii. Define and Map Primary Market Area 
iii. Large PMA Justification 
iv. Comparables 
v. Demand Calculations 
vi. Capture Rate 

c. Property Appraisal 
d. Phase I/Phase II Environmental Assessment 
e. Floodplain Analysis 
f. Preliminary Cost Estimate 
g. Geotechnical Report 
h. NEPA requirements 
i. Local Approvals 
j. Design Process  
k. Permanent Financing Commitments 
l. Financial Feasibility 

i. Rents and Units mix 
ii. Subsidy Information 
iii. Development Sources 
iv. Development Budget 
v. Permanent Sources and Uses 
vi. Operating Budget 
vii. 15-year Cash Flow Analysis 

 
 
 



PROJECT/SITE DEVELOPMENT HISTORY AND PROJECT 
DESCRIPTION 

 
 

PROJECT/SITE DEVELOPMENT HISTORY: 
 
Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc. (IMACA) and the City of Bishop 
originally proposed the Silver Peaks Multi-family residential development in 2004.  
IMACA collaborated with the City of Bishop to construct 36 attached residences 
for seniors on a 3.3-acre site immediately south of the current planned location.  
The previous project also included the extension of Mac Iver Street and the 
expansion of the Sunrise Mobile Home Park on this site.  The Silver Peaks 
development, extension of Mac Iver and other related improvements were funded 
for approximately $1.5 million through the State Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Program in 2005. 
 
Due to timing issues, CDBG funding for Silver Peaks was disencumbered and 
plans for the development were temporarily suspended.  Planning for the Mac 
Iver Street project continued and an environmental assessment was completed 
by MACTEC Engineering and Consulting, Inc. in 2006.  The Mac Iver Street 
Extension project was completed in 2008 with funding from other sources, but did 
not include CDBG Program monies. 
 
Improvements with the Mac Iver Street project included the extension of the 
street approximately 500 feet to the east to connect with Spruce Street.  The 
curb, sidewalk, paving and parkway were constructed.  In addition, an 8-inch 
plastic sewer line and 8-inch poly vinyl chloride water line was installed with the 
street improvements along with the other infrastructure. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
This current project proposal includes the phased construction of 74 attached 
dwelling units on approximately 3.4 acres of land at the southwest corner of Mac 
Iver and Spruce Streets, in the City of Bishop, and County of Inyo.  The first 
stage of this project is the purchase of the property from the Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power (LADWP).  For the last three months, the City 
and IMACA have been in discussions with LADWP regarding the sale of the land.  
A letter from LADWP outlining the status of the sale and their support is included 
in this application.  Activity #1, which is requested for funding with this 
application, is the acquisition of property from LADWP. 
 
Additional street improvements proposed for the Silver Peaks development along 
Mac Iver Street will include the undergrounding of electrical power lines to the 
site, installation of landscaping and irrigation in the parkway, and extension of 
telephone, cable, and other utilities to serve the project.  These off-site 
improvements are included in Activity #2 of the CDBG Program application. 



If funding is obtained for this project, the proposed residences will be occupied by 
income-restricted seniors and people with disabilities.  Residents’ disabilities 
could be severe and include people with developmental disabilities, which may 
require supportive facilities such as accommodations for caretakers.   
 
Persons in need of these services can be served by the City of Bishop’s and 
IMACA’s partner agency, Inyo-Mono Association for the Handicapped, a Kern 
Regional Center vendor.   In addition to the leverage provided by the City as 
outlined in the attached Resolution, IMACA will provide monetary and staff 
support for the project.  IMAH has committed to help fund the project and provide 
additional assistance.  Finally, the Aspire Housing Corporation will support this 
project by providing expertise in planning and design and equity participation 
proportionate to its participation in the development.  A description of these 
service agencies is attached. 
 
Development of the site will include construction of multi-family residences, a 
manager’s unit and a common area for supportive services such as laundry 
facilities, a community room, a kitchen area and similar uses.  The multiple family 
buildings will not exceed two stories in height.  Approximately 96 off-street 
parking spaces will be provided for occupants and guests.  The proposed site 
plan indicates that 36 of these parking spaces will be accessible parking stalls 
with an appropriate loading/unloading area. 
 
The attached dwelling units will be located along a central L-shaped parking lot 
with vehicular and pedestrian access from both Mac Iver and Spruce Streets.  
Walkway access is also provided from the parking area to all dwelling units.  
Each multi-family building on the site will contain one-bedroom senior/disabled 
dwelling units of approximately 500 square feet each.  Two-bedroom units, with 
approximately 850 square feet of floor area, for occupants with severe 
disabilities, including developmental disabilities, will be situated at the end of 
each building on the ground level. There will be 60 one-bedroom units and 14 
two-bedroom units.  
 
There are several stands of cottonwood trees on the site.  Those trees will be 
protected during and after construction pending analysis by a qualified arborist.  
In addition, there is a drainage ditch along the south side of the site.  This 
drainage area will also be preserved intact and no work activity or disturbance 
will be permitted adjacent to this water conveyance channel. 
 
PROJECT SCHEDULE: 
 
At this time, IMACA and the City of Bishop estimate that the first phase of 
construction for the Silver Peaks Project will begin in the fall of 2011 and be 
completed within 12 months.  It is anticipated that 36-40 apartment units will be 
constructed in the first phase of construction.  One or more subsequent phases 
of construction are estimated to begin in 2013 or 2014.  



 

 

Project Site 

LOCATION MAP 
DEVELOPMENT of an AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT 

CITY OF BISHOP, COUNTY OF INYO, 
CALIFORNIA 



CITY OF BISHOP 
DEVELOPMENT of an AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT 

AERIAL LOCATION MAP 

PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT 

SITE 

VONS/KMART 
SHOPPING  

CENTER 
 

Community Park 

TRI-COUNTY 
FAIRGROUNDS 

SUNRISE 
MOBILEHOME 

PARK 

E. Yaney Street 



CITY OF BISHOP 
PROJECT LOCATION & CENSUS BLOCK MAP 

 

PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT 

SITE 



 
 

SEWER STUDY (FOCUSED) 
 

Activity Description: 
 
General Scope: The general scope of the activity is to develop a plan to provide sewer 
service to the mostly undeveloped northeast part of the city. 
 
 Background: A large portion of the northeast part of the City of Bishop is too low to be 
served by the city’s existing sewer system.  This part of the city otherwise offers the 
best opportunity for development for workforce, assisted living, and low income housing 
of anywhere in the city.  As the city looks forward to eventual development of the entire 
northeast part of the city including an area designated for emergency shelters, a plan for 
providing sewer service there is essential. 
 
 Scope of Study: The scope of the study is to identify a range of alternatives to provide 
sewer service in the northeast part of the city that is too low to be served by the city’s 
current sewer system and to identify the preferred alternative for providing this service. 
At least four alternatives should be considered.  The following elements should be 
included in at least one of the four alternatives.  These elements can be considered in 
combination in the alternatives. 
 
1. Development-by-development pumping of sewage. As development occurs, each of 
those developments would be responsible for planning, implementing, and maintaining 
pumping facilities needed to reach a gravity sewer system. 
 
2. Construction of a small number of sewage lift stations owned and operated by the city 
to serve the entire area too low to be served by the city sewer system. 
 
3. Expansion of current dependence on the adjacent Eastern Sierra Community 
Services District to provide sewer service to areas too low for city system but not too 
low for ESCSD system. Additional flow to the ESCSD system would require update of 
the agreement between ESCSD and the city for this ESCSD service within the city. 
 
4. Construction of a new major branch of the city gravity sewer system to allow 
collection by gravity of sewage from more of the area too low to be served by the 
current system. 
 
5. Identification of areas not economically feasible to provide sewer service to for the 
foreseeable future. 
 
Final Product Description: 
 
The final product of the activity will be a plan in written and electronic formats that 
presents and evaluates alternatives for providing sewer service to the mostly 
undeveloped northeast part of the city. 



Air
po

rt R
oa

dWest Line Street

Wye Road

No
rth

 M
ain

 S
tre

et

Poleta Road

Gus Casbaugh Road

Se
e V

ee
 La

ne

So
uth

 M
ain

 St
ree

t

Su
nla

nd
 Av

en
ue

North Sierra Highway

Ho
me

 S
tre

et
East Line Street

Sp
ruc

e S
tre

et

Sierra Street

Grove Street
Hanby Avenue

Clarke Street

May Street

Schober Lane

East Yaney Street

So
uth

 Fo
wl

er 
Str

ee
t

East Elm Street

A-1 Ditch

North Fork Bishop Creek

A Drain

Bis
ho

p C
ree

k C
an

al

G iraud Ditch

Nobel Ditch

South Fork  of Bishop Creek

Kingsley Ditch
B-

1 D
rai

n

Harry Matlick D itch

South Indian ditch

Ge orge Ditch

C Drain

Hall Ditch

Bi shop Creek Canal

South Fork of Bishop Creek

0 2,000 4,0001,000
Feet

Legend
City Limit
Too low for city sewer

Too low for ESCSD sewer

Northeast Bishop Sewer Study Area



DRAFT 
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF BISHOP 

AND 
INYO MONO ADVOCATES FOR COMMUNITY ACTION, INC.  (IMACA) 

FOR THE 
2012 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, entered this _____ day of __________, 2012 by and between the 
City of Bishop (herein called the “Grantee”) and Inyo Mono Advocates for Community 
Action, Inc. (IMACA) (herein called the “Subrecipient”). 
 
WHEREAS, the Grantee has applied for and received funds from the State of 
California, Department of Housing and Community Development (“the Department”), 
State Community Development Block Grant Program originating from the United States 
Government under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended (HCD Act), Public Law 93-383; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Grantee wishes to engage the Subrecipient to assist the Grantee in 
utilizing such funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, IMACA is duly qualified as a Subrecipient in accordance with all state and 
federal regulations and is certified as a Community Housing Development Organization 
(CHDO) by the California Department of Housing and Community Development. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed between the parties hereto that; 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICE 

 
A. Activities 
 

The Subrecipient shall be responsible for administering a State CDBG 
Grant in a manner satisfactory to the Grantee and consistent with any 
standards required as a condition of providing these funds. Such program 
will include the following activities eligible under the Community 
Development Block Grant program:  

 
Program Delivery 

 
Activity #1   Reconstruction of the 19-Unit Senior/Disabled- and Income-

Restricted Valley Apartments located at 156 E. Clarke 
Street, Bishop, California  

  
  



 
 
Activity #2   (A) Preparation of a California Tax Credit Allocation 

Committee (CTCAC) application for the development of a 
new affordable rental project for seniors and people with 
disabilities in the City of Bishop, California. 

  
(B)  Preparation of a HOME Partnership funding application 
for development of a new affordable rental project for 
seniors and people with disabilities in the City of Bishop, 
California. 

 
General Administration 

 
The general administrative services to be performed in support of 
Activities 1 and 2 include environmental studies required as mitigation in 
conjunction with the approved environmental review, fiscal reporting, 
general coordination, insurance premiums, personnel costs, 
predevelopment costs, and procurement, program reporting to CDBG, 
and other related services. 

 
B. National Objectives  

All activities funded with CDGB funds must meet one of the CDBG 
program’s National Objectives: benefit low- and moderate-income 
persons; aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight; or meet 
community development needs having a particular urgency, as defined in 
24 CFR 570.208. 

 
The Subrecipient certifies that the activities carried out under this 
Agreement will meet the National Objective of benefiting low- and 
moderate-income persons.  This objective will be met by providing 
housing for approximately 120 low-income and/or persons with disabilities, 
including developmental disabilities. 

 
C. Levels of Accomplishment – Goals and Performance Measures 
 

The Subrecipient agrees to provide the following levels of program 
services: 

 
Activity  Units per Month   Total Units/Year  
 
Activity #1 2 persons  24 persons 
Activity # 2 8 persons  96 persons 
NOTE:  Unit of service is a target income person. 
 



Activity #1 is the reconstruction of the 19-unit affordable and 
senior/disabled Valley Apartment complex located at 156 E. Clarke Street, 
Bishop, California. 
 
Activity #2 the preparation of Tax Credit and HOME Partnership 
applications in support of a new affordable rental housing development for 
low-income seniors and persons with disabilities. 

 
D. Staffing 

 
The following individuals shall complete each activity specified in 1.A. 
above: 
Daniel C. Steinhagen – IMACA Executive Director 
Anita Sonke – IMACA Controller 
Jane McDonald – IMACA Community Services Director 
Kathie Keesler – IMACA Program Specialist 
Larry Emerson – IMACA Housing Development Supervisor 
 

E. Performance Monitoring  
 

The Grantee will monitor the performance of the Subrecipient against 
goals and performance standards as stated above. Substandard 
performance as determined by the Grantee will constitute noncompliance 
with this Agreement. If action to correct such substandard performance is 
not taken by the Subrecipient within a reasonable period of time after 
being notified by the Grantee, contract suspension or termination 
procedures will be initiated.  

 
II. TIME OF PERFORMANCE  
 

Services of the Subrecipient shall start on the ____ day of                      , 2012 
and end on the ______ day of                      , 2015. The term of this Agreement 
and the provisions herein shall be extended to cover any additional time period 
during which the Subrecipient remains in control of CDBG funds or other CDBG 
assets, including program income. 
 

III. BUDGET 
 
Line Item          Amount: 
 
Activity #1.  Reconstruction of the  
Valley Apartments $786,250.00 
General Administration $  75,000.00  
Activity Delivery Costs $ 138,750.00 
 
TOTAL $1,000.000.00 



 
Activity #2.  Preparation of Tax Credit and  
HOME Partnership Funding Applications  $47,250.00 
General Administration  $  2,250.00 

 
TOTAL   $ 50,000.00 

 
Any indirect costs charged must be consistent with the conditions of Paragraph 
VIII (C)(2) of this Agreement. In addition, the Grantee may require a more 
detailed budget breakdown than the one contained herein, and the Subrecipient 
shall provide such supplementary budget information in a timely fashion in the 
form and content prescribed by the Grantee. Any amendments to the budget 
must be approved in writing by both the Grantee and the Subrecipient. 
 

IV. PAYMENT 
 
It is expressly agreed and understood that the total amount to be paid by the 
Grantee under this Agreement shall not exceed $1,044,200.00.  Drawdowns for 
the payment of eligible expenses shall be made against the line item budgets 
specified in Paragraph III herein and in accordance with performance.  Expenses 
for general administration shall also be paid against the line item budgets 
specified in Paragraph III and in accordance with performance. 
 
Payments may be contingent upon certification of the Subrecipient’s financial 
management system in accordance with the standards specified in 24 CFR 
84.21. 

 
V. NOTICES 

 
Notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered via mail 
(postage prepaid), commercial courier, or personal delivery or sent by facsimile 
or other electronic means. Any notice delivered or sent as aforesaid shall be 
effective on the date of delivery or sending. All notices and other written 
communications under this Agreement shall be addressed to the individuals in 
the capacities indicated below, unless otherwise modified by subsequent written 
notice. 

 
Communication and details concerning this contract shall be directed to the 
following contract representatives: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Grantee   Subrecipient 

Keith Caldwell, City Administrator Daniel Steinhagen, Exec. Director 

Grantee City of Bishop  Subrecipient  IMACA  

[Address] 277 W. Line St.  [Address] 224 S. Main St. 

[City, State, ZIP] Bishop, CA 93514  [City, State, ZIP] Bishop, CA 93514  

[Telephone] 760-873-5863  [Telephone] 760-873-8557  

[Fax Number] 760-873-4873  [Fax Number] 760-873-8192  
 

VI. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF NO VALLEY DEBT OBLIGATION BY GRANTEE 
 
Grantee and Subrecipient acknowledge and agree that no portion of this 
Agreement or an award of State 2012 CDBG funding shall obligate the Grantee 
to pay current outstanding or future debt on the Valley Apartments property.  
Subrecipient is solely responsible for all financing and loan obligations on the 
Valley Apartments property located at 156 E. Clarke Street. 

 
VII. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT THAT AGREEMENT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE 

DEVELOPMENT ENTITLEMENT FOR RECONSTRUCTION OF VALLEY 
APARTMENTS 

 
Subrecipient understands and acknowledges that this Agreement does not 
provide any approval or entitlements to reconstruct the Valley Apartment 
complex.  Subrecipient shall be responsible for complying with all City of Bishop 
Zoning Regulations and all General Plan requirements for the project.  
Subrecipient further acknowledges that full environmental review of the project is 
required in compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 

VIII. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
A. General Compliance 
 

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the requirements of Title 24 of the 
Code of Federal Regulations, Part 570 (the U.S. Housing and Urban 
Development regulations concerning Community Development Block 
Grants (CDBG)) including subpart K of these regulations, except that (1) 
the Subrecipient does not assume the recipient’s environmental 
responsibilities described in 24 CFR 570.604 and (2) the Subrecipient 
does not assume the recipient’s responsibility for initiating the review 
process under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 52.  The Subrecipient also 



agrees to comply with all other applicable Federal, state and local laws, 
regulations, and policies governing the funds provided under this contract. 
The Subrecipient further agrees to utilize funds available under this 
Agreement to supplement rather than supplant funds otherwise available.  

 
B. “Independent Contractor” 
 

Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be construed 
in any manner, as creating or establishing the relationship of 
employer/employee between the parties. The Subrecipient shall at all 
times remain an “independent contractor” with respect to the services to 
be performed under this Agreement. The Grantee shall be exempt from 
payment of all Unemployment Compensation, FICA, retirement, life and/or 
medical insurance and Workers’ Compensation Insurance, as the 
Subrecipient is an independent contractor.  

 
C. Hold Harmless  
 

The Subrecipient shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify the Grantee 
from any and all claims, actions, suits, charges and judgments 
whatsoever that arise out of the Subrecipient’s performance or 
nonperformance of the services or subject matter called for in this 
Agreement.  

 
D. Workers’ Compensation  
 

The Subrecipient shall provide Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
coverage for all of its employees involved in the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
E. Insurance & Bonding  
 

The Subrecipient shall carry sufficient insurance coverage to protect 
contract assets from loss due to theft, fraud and/or undue physical 
damage, and as a minimum shall purchase a blanket fidelity bond 
covering all employees in an amount equal to cash advances from the 
Grantee.  

 
The Subrecipient shall comply with the bonding and insurance 
requirements of 24 CFR 84.31 and 84.48, Bonding and Insurance.  

 
F. Grantee Recognition  
 

The Subrecipient shall insure recognition of the role of the Grantee in 
providing services through this Agreement. All activities, facilities and 
items utilized pursuant to this Agreement shall be prominently labeled as 



to funding source. In addition, the Subrecipient will include a reference to 
the support provided herein in all publications made possible with funds 
made available under this Agreement.  

 
G. Amendments  
 

The Grantee or Subrecipient may amend this Agreement at any time 
provided that such amendments make specific reference to this 
Agreement, and are executed in writing, signed by a duly authorized 
representative of each organization, and approved by the Grantee’s 
governing body. Such amendments shall not invalidate this Agreement, 
nor relieve or release the Grantee or Subrecipient from its obligations 
under this Agreement.  

 
The Grantee may, in its discretion, amend this Agreement to conform with 
Federal, state or local governmental guidelines, policies and available 
funding amounts, or for other reasons. If such amendments result in a 
change in the funding, the scope of services, or schedule of the activities 
to be undertaken as part of this Agreement, such modifications will be 
incorporated only by written amendment signed by both Grantee and 
Subrecipient.  

 
H. Suspension or Termination  
 

In accordance with 24 CFR 85.43, the Grantee may suspend or terminate 
this Agreement if the Subrecipient materially fails to comply with any 
terms of this Agreement, which include (but are not limited to) the 
following: 
 
1. Failure to comply with any of the rules, regulations or provisions 

referred to herein, or such statutes, regulations, executive orders, 
and HUD guidelines, policies or directives as may become 
applicable at any time; 

 
2. Failure, for any reason, of the Subrecipient to fulfill in a timely and 

proper manner its obligations under this Agreement; 
 
3. Ineffective or improper use of funds provided under this 

Agreement; or  
 
4. Submission by the Subrecipient to the Grantee reports that are 

incorrect or incomplete in any material respect.  
 

In accordance with 24 CFR 85.44, this Agreement may also be terminated 
for convenience by either the Grantee or the Subrecipient, in whole or in 
part, by setting forth the reasons for such termination, the effective date, 



and, in the case of partial termination, the portion to be terminated. 
However, if in the case of a partial termination, the Grantee determines 
that the remaining portion of the award will not accomplish the purpose for 
which the award was made, the Grantee may terminate the award in its 
entirety. 

 
IX. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  

 
A. Financial Management 
 

1. Accounting Standards  
 

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with 24 CFR 84.21−28 and 
agrees to adhere to the accounting principles and procedures 
required therein, utilize adequate internal controls, and maintain 
necessary source documentation for all costs incurred.  

 
2. Cost Principles 

 
The Subrecipient shall administer its program in conformance with 
OMB Circulars A-122, “Cost Principles for Non-Profit 
Organizations,” or A-21, “Cost Principles for Educational 
Institutions,” as applicable. These principles shall be applied for all 
costs incurred whether charged on a direct or indirect basis.  

 
B. Documentation and Record Keeping  
 

1. Records to be Maintained  
 

The Subrecipient shall maintain all records required by the Federal 
regulations specified in 24 CFR 570.506 that are pertinent to the 
activities to be funded under this Agreement. Such records shall 
include but not be limited to: 

 
a) Records providing a full description of each activity 

undertaken; 
b) Records demonstrating that each activity undertaken meets 

one of the National Objectives of the CDBG program; 
c) Records required to determine the eligibility of activities; 
d) Records required to document the acquisition, improvement, 

use or disposition of real property acquired or improved with 
CDBG assistance; 

e) Records documenting compliance with the fair housing and 
equal opportunity components of the CDBG program; 

f) Financial records as required by 24 CFR 570.502, and  
24 CFR 84.21−28; and  



g) Other records necessary to document compliance with 
Subpart K of 24 CFR Part 570.  

 
2. Retention 
 

The Subrecipient shall retain all financial records, supporting 
documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to the 
Agreement for a period of four (4) years. The retention period 
begins on the date of the submission of the Grantee’s annual 
performance and evaluation report to HUD in which the activities 
assisted under the Agreement are reported on for the final time. 
Notwithstanding the above, if there is litigation, claims, audits, 
negotiations or other actions that involve any of the records cited 
and that have started before the expiration of the four-year period, 
then such records must be retained until completion of the actions 
and resolution of all issues, or the expiration of the four-year 
period, whichever occurs later.  

 
3. Client Data  
 

The Subrecipient shall maintain client data demonstrating client 
eligibility for services provided. Such data shall include, but not be 
limited to, client name, address, income level or other basis for 
determining eligibility, and description of service provided. Such 
information shall be made available to Grantee monitors or their 
designees for review upon request.  

 
4. Disclosure 
 

The Subrecipient understands that client information collected 
under this contract is private and the use or disclosure of such 
information, when not directly connected with the administration of 
the Grantee’s or Subrecipient’s responsibilities with respect to 
services provided under this contract, is prohibited by State and 
Federal law unless written consent is obtained from such person 
receiving service and, in the case of a minor, that of a responsible 
parent/guardian. 

 
5. Closeouts 

 
The Subrecipient’s obligation to the Grantee shall not end until all 
close-out requirements are completed. Activities during this close-
out period shall include, but are not limited to:  making final 
payments, disposing of program assets (including the return of all 
unused materials, equipment, unspent cash advances, program 
income balances, and accounts receivable to the Grantee), and 



determining the custodianship of records. Not withstanding the 
foregoing, the terms of this Agreement shall remain in effect during 
any period that the Subrecipient has control over CDBG funds, 
including program income. 

 
6. Audits & Inspections 
 

All Subrecipient records with respect to any matters covered by this 
Agreement shall be made available to the Grantee, grantor agency, 
and the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their 
authorized representatives, at any time during normal business 
hours, as often as deemed necessary, to audit, examine, and make 
excerpts or transcripts of all relevant data. Any deficiencies noted 
in audit reports must be fully cleared by the Subrecipient within 30 
days after receipt by the Subrecipient. Failure of the Subrecipient to 
comply with the above audit requirements will constitute a violation 
of this contract and may result in the withholding of future 
payments. The Subrecipient hereby agrees to have an annual 
agency audit conducted in accordance with current Grantee policy 
concerning subrecipient audits and OMB Circular A-133. 

 
C. Reporting and Payment Procedures  

 
1. Program Income 
 

The Subrecipient shall report yearly all program income (as defined 
at 24 CFR 570.500(a)) generated by activities carried out with 
CDBG funds made available under this contract. The use of 
program income by the Subrecipient shall comply with the 
requirements set forth at 24 CFR 570.504. By way of further 
limitations, the Subrecipient may use such income during the 
contract period for activities permitted under this contract and shall 
reduce requests for additional funds by the amount of any such 
program income balance on hand. All unexpended program income 
shall be returned to the Grantee at the end of the contract period. 
Any interest earned on cash advances from the U.S. Treasury and 
from funds held in a revolving fund account is not program income 
and shall be remitted promptly to the Grantee.  

 
2. Indirect Costs  
 

If indirect costs are charged, the Subrecipient will develop an 
indirect cost allocation plan for determining the appropriate 
Subrecipient’s share of administrative costs and shall submit such 
plan to the Grantee for approval, in a form specified by the 
Grantee. 



 
3. Payment Procedures  
 

The Grantee will pay to the Subrecipient funds available under this 
Agreement based upon information submitted by the Subrecipient 
and consistent with any approved budget and Grantee policy 
concerning payments. With the exception of certain advances, 
payments will be made for eligible expenses actually incurred by 
the Subrecipient, and not to exceed actual cash requirements. 
Payments will be adjusted by the Grantee in accordance with 
advance fund and program income balances available in 
Subrecipient accounts. In addition, the Grantee reserves the right 
to liquidate funds available under this contract for costs incurred by 
the Grantee on behalf of the Subrecipient.  

 
4. Progress Reports 
 

The Subrecipient shall submit regular Progress Reports to the 
Grantee in the form, content, and frequency as required by the 
Grantee. 

 
D. Procurement 

 
1. Compliance 

 
The Subrecipient shall comply with current Grantee policy 
concerning the purchase of equipment and shall maintain inventory 
records of all non-expendable personal property as defined by such 
policy as may be procured with funds provided herein. All program 
assets (unexpended program income, property, equipment, etc.) 
shall revert to the Grantee upon termination of this Agreement. 

  
2. OMB Standards 
 

Unless specified otherwise within this agreement, the Subrecipient 
shall procure all materials, property, or services in accordance with 
the requirements of 24 CFR 84.40−48.  

 
3. Travel 
 

The Subrecipient shall obtain written approval from the Grantee for 
any travel outside the regional area with funds provided under this 
Agreement.  

 
 
 



 
E. Use and Reversion of Assets 

 
The use and disposition of real property and equipment under this 
Agreement shall be in compliance with the requirements of 24 CFR Part 
84 and 24 CFR 570.502, 570.503, and 570.504, as applicable, which 
include but are not limited to the following:  

 
1. The Subrecipient shall transfer to the Grantee any CDBG funds on 

hand and any accounts receivable attributable to the use of funds 
under this Agreement at the time of expiration, cancellation, or 
termination.  

 
2. Real property under the Subrecipient’s control that was acquired or 

improved, in whole or in part, with funds under this Agreement in 
excess of $25,000 shall be used to meet one of the CDBG National 
Objectives pursuant to 24 CFR 570.208 until five (5) years after 
expiration of this Agreement.  If the Subrecipient fails to use 
CDBG-assisted real property in a manner that meets a CDBG 
National Objective for the prescribed period of time, the 
Subrecipient shall pay the Grantee an amount equal to the current 
fair market value of the property less any portion of the value 
attributable to expenditures of non-CDBG funds for acquisition of, 
or improvement to, the property.  Such payment shall constitute 
program income to the Grantee.  The Subrecipient may retain real 
property acquired or improved under this Agreement after the 
expiration of the five-year period.  

 
3. In all cases in which equipment acquired, in whole or in part, with 

funds under this Agreement is sold, the proceeds shall be program 
income (prorated to reflect the extent to that funds received under 
this Agreement were used to acquire the equipment). Equipment 
not needed by the Subrecipient for activities under this Agreement 
shall be (a) transferred to the Grantee for the CDBG program or (b) 
retained after compensating the Grantee an amount equal to the 
current fair market value of the equipment less the percentage of 
non-CDBG funds used to acquire the equipment. 

 
X. RELOCATION, REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION AND ONE-FOR-ONE 

HOUSING REPLACEMENT 
 

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with (a) the Uniform Relocation Assistance 
and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended (URA), and 
implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 and 24 CFR 570.606(b); (b) the 
requirements of 24 CFR 570.606(c) governing the Residential Anti-displacement 
and Relocation Assistance Plan under section 104(d) of the HCD Act; and (c) the 



requirements in 24 CFR 570.606(d) governing optional relocation policies.  The 
Subrecipient shall provide relocation assistance to displaced persons as defined 
by 24 CFR 570.606(b) (2) that are displaced as a direct result of acquisition, 
rehabilitation, demolition or conversion for a CDBG-assisted project. The 
Subrecipient also agrees to comply with applicable Grantee ordinances, 
resolutions and policies concerning the displacement of persons from their 
residences. 
 

XI. PERSONNEL & PARTICIPANT CONDITIONS 
 
A. Civil Rights 
 

1. Compliance 
 

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with all local and state civil 
rights ordinances and with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as 
amended, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as amended, 
Section 104(b) and Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 1974 as amended, Section 504 of 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Executive Order 
11063, and Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive 
Orders 11375, 11478, 12107  and 12086.  

 
2. Nondiscrimination 
 

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the non-discrimination in 
employment and contracting opportunities laws, regulations, and 
executive orders referenced in 24 CFR 570.607, as revised by 
Executive Order 13279.  The applicable non-discrimination 
provisions in Section 109 of the HCDA are still applicable.   

 
3. Land Covenants 

 
This contract is subject to the requirements of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 (P. L. 88-352) and 24 CFR 570.601 and 
570.602. In regard to the sale, lease, or other transfer of land 
acquired, cleared or improved with assistance provided under this 
contract, the Subrecipient shall cause or require a covenant 
running with the land to be inserted in the deed or lease for such 
transfer, prohibiting discrimination as herein defined, in the sale, 
lease or rental, or in the use or occupancy of such land, or in any 
improvements erected or to be erected thereon, providing that the 
Grantee and the United States are beneficiaries of and entitled to 
enforce such covenants. The Subrecipient, in undertaking its 
obligation to carry out the program assisted hereunder, agrees to 



take such measures as are necessary to enforce such covenant, 
and will not itself so discriminate.  

 
4. Section 504 
 

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with all Federal regulations 
issued pursuant to compliance with Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), which prohibits 
discrimination against the individuals with disabilities or handicaps 
in any Federally assisted program. The Grantee shall provide the 
Subrecipient with any guidelines necessary for compliance with that 
portion of the regulations in force during the term of this 
Agreement.  

 
B. Affirmative Action  

 
1. Approved Plan 
 

The Subrecipient agrees that it shall be committed to carry out 
pursuant to the Grantee’s specifications an Affirmative Action 
Program in keeping with the principles as provided in President’s 
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1966. The Grantee shall 
provide Affirmative Action guidelines to the Subrecipient to assist in 
the formulation of such program. The Subrecipient shall submit a 
plan for an Affirmative Action Program for approval prior to the 
award of funds.  

2. Women- and Minority-Owned Businesses (W/MBE)  
 

The Subrecipient will use its best efforts to afford small businesses, 
minority business enterprises, and women’s business enterprises 
the maximum practicable opportunity to participate in the 
performance of this contract. As used in this contract, the terms 
“small business” means a business that meets the criteria set forth 
in section 3(a) of the Small Business Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. 
632), and “minority and women’s business enterprise” means a 
business at least fifty-one (51) percent owned and controlled by 
minority group members or women. For the purpose of this 
definition, “minority group members” are Afro-Americans, Spanish-
speaking, Spanish surnamed or Spanish-heritage Americans, 
Asian-Americans, and American Indians. The Subrecipient may 
rely on written representations by businesses regarding their status 
as minority and female business enterprises in lieu of an 
independent investigation.  

 
 
 



3. Access to Records 
 

The Subrecipient shall furnish and cause each of its own 
subrecipients or subcontractors to furnish all information and 
reports required hereunder and will permit access to its books, 
records and accounts by the Grantee, HUD or its agent, or other 
authorized Federal officials for purposes of investigation to 
ascertain compliance with the rules, regulations and provisions 
stated herein.  

 
4. Notifications 
 

The Subrecipient will send to each labor union or representative of 
workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or 
other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the 
agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or worker’s 
representative of the Subrecipient’s commitments hereunder, and 
shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to 
employees and applicants for employment.  

 
5. Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action (EEO/AA) 

Statement 
 

The Subrecipient will, in all solicitations or advertisements for 
employees placed by or on behalf of the Subrecipient, state that it 
is an Equal Opportunity or Affirmative Action employer.  Additional 
State of California Requirements regarding the State Equal 
Opportunity provisions are contained in Attachment A.    

 
6. Subcontract Provisions 
 

The Subrecipient will include the provisions of Paragraphs X.A, 
Civil Rights, and B, Affirmative Action, in every subcontract or 
purchase order, specifically or by reference, so that such provisions 
will be binding upon each of its own subrecipients or 
subcontractors.  

 
C. Employment Restrictions 

 
1. Prohibited Activity 

 
The Subrecipient is prohibited from using funds provided herein or 
personnel employed in the administration of the program for:  
political activities; inherently religious activities; lobbying; political 
patronage; and nepotism activities.  

 



2. Labor Standards 
 

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the requirements of the 
Secretary of Labor in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act as 
amended, the provisions of Contract Work Hours and Safety 
Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327 et seq.) and all other applicable 
Federal, state and local laws and regulations pertaining to labor 
standards insofar as those acts apply to the performance of this 
Agreement. The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the Copeland 
Anti-Kick Back Act (18 U.S.C. 874 et seq.) and its implementing 
regulations of the U.S. Department of Labor at 29 CFR Part 5. The 
Subrecipient shall maintain documentation that demonstrates 
compliance with hour and wage requirements of this part. Such 
documentation shall be made available to the Grantee for review 
upon request.  

 
The Subrecipient agrees that, except with respect to the 
rehabilitation or construction of residential property containing less 
than eight (8) units, all contractors engaged under contracts in 
excess of $2,000.00 for construction, renovation or repair work 
financed in whole or in part with assistance provided under this 
contract, shall comply with Federal requirements adopted by the 
Grantee pertaining to such contracts and with the applicable 
requirements of the regulations of the Department of Labor, under 
29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 5 and 7 governing the payment of wages and 
ratio of apprentices and trainees to journey workers; provided that, 
if wage rates higher than those required under the regulations are 
imposed by state or local law, nothing hereunder is intended to 
relieve the Subrecipient of its obligation, if any, to require payment 
of the higher wage. The Subrecipient shall cause or require to be 
inserted in full, in all such contracts subject to such regulations, 
provisions meeting the requirements of this paragraph.  

 
“Section 3” Clause 
 
a) Compliance:  Compliance with the provisions of Section 3 of 

the HUD Act of 1968, as amended, and as implemented by 
the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 135, and all applicable 
rules and orders issued hereunder prior to the execution of 
this contract, shall be a condition of the Federal financial 
assistance provided under this contract and binding upon 
the Grantee, the Subrecipient and any of the Subrecipient’s 
subrecipients and subcontractors. Failure to fulfill these 
requirements shall subject the Grantee, the Subrecipient 
and any of the Subrecipient’s subrecipients and 
subcontractors, their successors and assigns, to those 



sanctions specified by the Agreement through which Federal 
assistance is provided. The Subrecipient certifies and 
agrees that no contractual or other disability exists that 
would prevent compliance with these requirements.  

  
The Subrecipient further agrees to comply with these 
“Section 3” requirements and to include the following 
language in all subcontracts executed under this Agreement: 

 
“The work to be performed under this 
Agreement is a project assisted under a 
program providing direct Federal financial 
assistance from HUD and is subject to the 
requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and 
Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended 
(12 U.S.C. 1701). Section 3 requires that to the 
greatest extent feasible opportunities for 
training and employment be given to low- and 
very low-income residents of the project area, 
and that contracts for work in connection with 
the project be awarded to business concerns 
that provide economic opportunities for low- 
and very low-income persons residing in the 
metropolitan area in which the project is 
located.” 

 
The Subrecipient further agrees to ensure that opportunities 
for training and employment arising in connection with a 
housing rehabilitation (including reduction and abatement of 
lead-based paint hazards), housing construction, or other 
public construction project are given to low- and very low-
income persons residing within the metropolitan area in 
which the CDBG-funded project is located; where feasible, 
priority should be given to low- and very low-income persons 
within the service area of the project or the neighborhood in 
which the project is located, and to low- and very low-income 
participants in other HUD programs; and award contracts for 
work undertaken in connection with a housing rehabilitation 
(including reduction and abatement of lead-based paint 
hazards), housing construction, or other public construction 
project to business concerns that provide economic 
opportunities for low- and very low-income persons residing 
within the metropolitan area in which the CDBG-funded 
project is located; where feasible, priority should be given to 
business concerns that provide economic opportunities to 
low- and very low-income residents within the service area 



or the neighborhood in which the project is located, and to 
low- and very low-income participants in other HUD 
programs.  

 
The Subrecipient certifies and agrees that no contractual or 
other legal incapacity exists that would prevent compliance 
with these requirements.  

 
b) Notifications:  The Subrecipient agrees to send to each labor 

organization or representative of workers with which it has a 
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or 
understanding, if any, a notice advising said labor 
organization or worker’s representative of its commitments 
under this Section 3 clause and shall post copies of the 
notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment or training. 

 
c) Subcontracts:  The Subrecipient will include this Section 3 

clause in every subcontract and will take appropriate action 
pursuant to the subcontract upon a finding that the 
subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the 
grantor agency. The Subrecipient will not subcontract with 
any entity where it has notice or knowledge that the latter 
has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR Part 
135 and will not let any subcontract unless the entity has first 
provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply 
with the requirements of these regulations. 

 
D. Conduct 

 
1. Assignability 
 

The Subrecipient shall not assign or transfer any interest in this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the Grantee thereto; 
provided, however, that claims for money due or to become due to the 
Subrecipient from the Grantee under this contract may be assigned to a 
bank, trust company, or other financial institution without such approval. 
Notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be furnished promptly to 
the Grantee.  

 
2. Subcontracts 

 
a) Approvals:  The Subrecipient shall not enter into any 

subcontracts with any agency or individual in the 
performance of this contract without the written consent of 
the Grantee prior to the execution of such agreement.  



 
b) Monitoring:  The Subrecipient will monitor all subcontracted 

services on a regular basis to assure contract compliance. 
Results of monitoring efforts shall be summarized in written 
reports and supported with documented evidence of follow-
up actions taken to correct areas of noncompliance. 

 
c) Content:  The Subrecipient shall cause all of the provisions 

of this contract in its entirety to be included in and made a 
part of any subcontract executed in the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
d) Selection Process:  The Subrecipient shall undertake to 

insure that all subcontracts let in the performance of this 
Agreement shall be awarded on a fair and open competition 
basis in accordance with applicable procurement 
requirements. Executed copies of all subcontracts shall be 
forwarded to the Grantee along with documentation 
concerning the selection process. 

 
3. Hatch Act 

 
The Subrecipient agrees that no funds provided, nor personnel 
employed under this Agreement, shall be in any way or to any 
extent engaged in the conduct of political activities in violation of 
Chapter 15 of Title V of the U.S.C.  

 
4. Conflict of Interest 

 
The Subrecipient agrees to abide by the provisions of 24 CFR 
84.42 and 570.611, which include (but are not limited to) the 
following:  

 
a) The Subrecipient shall maintain a written code or standards 

of conduct that shall govern the performance of its officers, 
employees or agents engaged in the award and 
administration of contracts supported by Federal funds.  

 
b) No employee, officer or agent of the Subrecipient shall 

participate in the selection, or in the award, or administration 
of, a contract supported by Federal funds if a conflict of 
interest, real or apparent, would be involved.  

 
c) No covered persons who exercise or have exercised any 

functions or responsibilities with respect to CDBG-assisted 
activities, or who are in a position to participate in a decision-



making process or gain inside information with regard to 
such activities, may obtain a financial interest in any 
contract, or have a financial interest in any contract, 
subcontract, or agreement with respect to the CDBG-
assisted activity, or with respect to the proceeds from the 
CDBG-assisted activity, either for themselves or those with 
whom they have business or immediate family ties, during 
their tenure or for a period of one (1) year thereafter. For 
purposes of this paragraph, a “covered person” includes any 
person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or 
elected or appointed official of the Grantee, the 
Subrecipient, or any designated public agency.  

 
5. Lobbying 
 

The Subrecipient hereby certifies that: 
 

a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid, by or on behalf of it, to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and 
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement; 

 
b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have 

been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement, it will complete and submit Standard 
Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in 
accordance with its instructions; and 

 
c) It will require that the language of paragraph (d) of this 

certification be included in the award documents for all 
subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, 
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 
agreements) and that all Subrecipients shall certify and 
disclose accordingly: 

 



d) Lobbying Certification 
 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon 
which reliance was placed when this transaction was made 
or entered into. Submission of this certification is a 
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S.C. Any person who 
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil 
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure.  
 

6. Copyright 
 
If this contract results in any copyrightable material or inventions, 
the Grantee and/or grantor agency reserves the right to royalty-
free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or 
otherwise use and to authorize others to use, the work or materials 
for governmental purposes.  

 
7. Religious Activities 

 
The Subrecipient agrees that funds provided under this Agreement 
will not be utilized for inherently religious activities prohibited by 24 
CFR 570.200(j), such as worship, religious instruction, or 
proselytization.  

 
XII. ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 

 
A. Air and Water 
 

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the following requirements insofar 
as they apply to the performance of this Agreement: 

 
• Clean Air Act,  42 U.S.C. , 7401, et seq.; 

 
• Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C., 1251, 

et seq., as amended, 1318 relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, 
reports, and information, as well as other requirements specified in 
said Section 114 and Section 308, and all regulations and 
guidelines issued thereunder; 

 
• Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations pursuant to 40 

CFR Part 50, as amended.  
 
 
 



B. Flood Disaster Protection  
 

In accordance with the requirements of the Flood Disaster Protection Act 
of 1973 (42 U.S.C. 4001), the Subrecipient shall assure that for activities 
located in an area identified by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) as having special flood hazards, flood insurance under 
the National Flood Insurance Program is obtained and maintained as a 
condition of financial assistance for acquisition or construction purposes 
(including rehabilitation). 
 

C. Lead-Based Paint 
 

The Subrecipient agrees that any construction or rehabilitation of 
residential structures with assistance provided under this Agreement shall 
be subject to HUD Lead-Based Paint Regulations at 24 CFR 570.608, and 
24 CFR Part 35, Subpart B. Such regulations pertain to all CDBG-assisted 
housing and require that all owners, prospective owners, and tenants of 
properties constructed prior to 1978 be properly notified that such 
properties may include lead-based paint. Such notification shall point out 
the hazards of lead-based paint and explain the symptoms, treatment and 
precautions that should be taken when dealing with lead-based paint 
poisoning and the advisability and availability of blood lead level screening 
for children under seven. The notice should also point out that if lead-
based paint is found on the property, abatement measures may be 
undertaken. The regulations further require that, depending on the 
amount of Federal funds applied to a property, paint testing, risk 
assessment, treatment and/or abatement may be conducted. 

 
D. Historic Preservation  

 
The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the Historic Preservation 
requirements set forth in the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as 
amended (16 U.S.C. 470) and the procedures set forth in 36 CFR Part 
800, Advisory Council on Historic Preservation Procedures for Protection 
of Historic Properties, insofar as they apply to the performance of this 
agreement.  
 
In general, this requires concurrence from the State Historic Preservation 
Officer for all rehabilitation and demolition of historic properties that are 
fifty years old or older or that are included on a Federal, state, or local 
historic property list.  

 
 
 
 
 



XIII. SEVERABILITY 
 

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of the Agreement 
shall not be affected thereby and all other parts of this Agreement shall 
nevertheless be in full force and effect.  

 
XIV. SECTION HEADINGS AND SUBHEADINGS 
 

The section headings and subheadings contained in this Agreement are included 
for convenience only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the terms of this 
Agreement. 

 
XV. WAIVER 
 

The Grantee’s failure to act with respect to a breach by the Subrecipient does 
not waive its right to act with respect to subsequent or similar breaches.  The 
failure of the Grantee to exercise or enforce any right or provision shall not 
constitute a waiver of such right or provision.  

 
XVI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Grantee and the 
Subrecipient for the use of funds received under this Agreement and it 
supersedes all prior or contemporaneous communications and proposals, 
whether electronic, oral, or written between the Grantee and the Subrecipient 
with respect to this Agreement.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Date 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this contract as of the date first 
written above.  
 

[Grantee]     [Subrecipient] 
 
By  Keith Caldwell    By Daniel Steinhagen ____ 

Chief Elected Official or Executive Officer 
        Title Executive Director   
 
Attest        
 ASSISTANT  CITY CLERK 
 
Countersigned:      By      

FINANCE OFFICER  
        Title      
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
 
      Fed. I. D.       
 
         
 CITY ATTORNEY  
      AFFIRMATIVE ACTION APPROVAL 
 

        
CONTRACT COMPLIANCE SUPERVISOR 



 
TASK #1.    RECONSTRUCTION OF THE VALLEY APARTMENT 

COMPLEX FOR LOW-INCOME SENIORS AND  
PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES  

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
A. Principal Tasks 
 

Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc. (IMACA), hereinafter referred 
to as “the Subrecipient”, will be responsible for administering an allocation of the 
2012 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program to reconstruct the 
19-unit Valley Apartment complex for low-income seniors and people with 
disabilities, also referred to as “the Multi-Family Housing Rehabilitation Project”, 
for the City of Bishop, hereinafter referred to as “the Grantee.” The Subrecipient 
will administer all tasks in connection with the aforesaid program in compliance 
with all applicable Federal, state, and local rules and regulations governing these 
funds, and in a manner satisfactory to the Grantee.  

 
The major goal of the Subrecipient’s efforts under this Agreement will be 
completion of the Housing Rehabilitation Project per the Subrecipient’s proposal 
of March 26, 2012, as amended and approved by the Grantee on 
______________.  Changes to the program goals, scope of services, schedule 
or budget, unless otherwise noted, may only be made through a written 
amendment to this Agreement, executed by the Subrecipient and Grantee.  
 
To accomplish the goal and complete the reconstruction of the Valley 
Apartments, the major tasks that the Subrecipient will perform include, but are 
not necessarily limited to, the following: 

  
1) The Multi-Family Housing Rehabilitation Project shall include, as a 

minimum, the following tasks: 
 

a) Preparation of Plans and Specifications for the Project.  Subrecipient 
shall contract with a qualified architect to prepare detailed plans for the 
Reconstruction of the Valley Apartments.  The plans shall include all 
drawings necessary to obtain building and grading permits from the City. 
Approximate time required:  6 months. Estimated timeframe:  Mid June 
to late December 2012. 

 
b) Compliance with City Zoning Standards and State and National 

Environmental Regulations, and Issuance of Building and Grading 
Permits.  Subrecipient shall be responsible for obtaining approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the project and complying with all 
applicable City Zoning Regulations and General Plan goals and 
implementing policies .  In addition, Subrecipient must meet all of the 



requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). This will require approval of 
a Mitigated Negative Declaration and Finding of No Significant Impact 
(FONSI) for the development proposal.  Subsequent to obtaining zoning 
and environmental clearances, the Subrecipient shall submit working 
drawings to the City for review and approval and issuance of building 
and grading permits.  Approximate time required:  6 months.  Estimated 
timeframe:  Mid June to late December 2012.  

 
c) Temporary Relocation of Residents.  Prior to execution of any contract 

with the State, Subrecipient will prepare a Relocation Plan in 
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.  The Relocation 
Plan will be reviewed with the Valley residents prior to approval.  The 
Plan will include as a minimum the following elements:  time frame for 
relocation; all expenses eligible for reimbursement; the type and amount 
of compensation for relocation expenses; list of alternative residential 
relocation properties available to residents; and procedures for appeal of 
expense reimbursement.  After review and approval of the Relocation 
Plan by the State, the Subrecipient will work with the residents to 
implement the provisions of the plan.  Approximate time required:  3 
months.  Estimated timeframe:  mid January to mid April 2013. 

 
d) Demolition and Removal of Existing Structures.  Subrecipient will 

contract to demolish the existing Valley Apartment complex in 
compliance with all applicable environmental standards and City 
regulations.  Approximate time required:  2 months.  Estimated 
timeframe:  mid April to mid June 2013. 

 
e) Site Grading.  Subrecipient will contract for rough and finish site grading 

for the new Valley Apartment Complex and parking lot improvements.  
Approximate time required:  1 month.  Estimated timeframe:  early mid 
June to mid July 2013. 

 
f) Reconstruction of 19-unit Apartment Complex.  Subrecipient shall 

contract for reconstruction of the Valley Apartment complex.  The scope 
of this work shall include all construction activities including foundation, 
framing, and roofing.  Approximate time required:  8 months.  Estimated 
timeframe:  mid July 2013 to mid March 2014. 

 
g) Parking Lot and Landscaping Improvements.  Subrecipient shall insure 

all parking lot and landscaping improvements are completed by a 
qualified contractor in accordance with applicable City standards and 
requirements.  Approximate time required:  1 month.  Estimated 
timeframe:  mid March to mid April 2014. 

 
 



h) Finish Work and Occupancy.  Subrecipient shall work with contractor(s) 
to complete all construction on the Valley project.  Residents relocated 
by the construction activities who would like to reside in the apartment 
complex shall be moved from their temporary quarters in accordance 
with the approved Valley Relocation Plan.  Approximate time required:  1 
month.  Estimated timeframe:  mid April to mid May 2014. 

 
2) Work write-ups:  The Subrecipient will complete a detailed work write-up of 

the work to be performed, including estimated costs of each activity, 
materials to be used, and industry or regulatory standards to be met. This 
write-up will be initialed and dated by the Grantee.  

 
3) Solicitation and selection of contractors:  The Subrecipient will assist with 

the identification, proper solicitation, and selection of contractors and 
subcontractors qualified to perform all aspects of the studies related to the 
preparation of Tax Credit and HOME Partnership applications. The 
Subrecipient will provide forms and sample contract formats to use in 
contracting with the contractors and will assist in ensuring that the 
description of the work contained in any contracts with contractors is 
accurate and complete.  

 
4) Approval of contractor payments:  As work progresses and as invoices 

are submitted by contractors, the Subrecipient will verify that the expenses 
are reasonable and the work has been completed properly and will authorize 
drawdown of funds from the Grantee, and disbursement to the contractors.  

 
5) Maintenance of case files and other records: the Subrecipient will 

maintain files, including application and documentation of renter eligibility, 
work write-ups (along with repayment/ recapture provisions), documentation 
of liens and any other forms of security, contractor selection criteria, copy of 
contract, documentation on all necessary licenses and permits, site 
visit/inspection reports (including final inspection), change orders, and 
approved contractor invoices for payment (with owner sign-off). The 
Subrecipient will maintain these and other program and financial records in 
accordance with the general requirements for record keeping specified in 
Section IX. of this Agreement.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



B. Staffing 
 

The Subrecipient shall assign the following staff as Key Personnel to the 2012 
CDBG allocation for the Multi-Family Housing Rehabilitation Project: 

 
Staff Member Title General Program Duties Time 

Allocation 
Daniel Steinhagen, 
Executive Director 

General program oversight and 
administration; revision of forms and 
procedures; approval of sub consultants. 

5 hours/week 

Larry Emerson, Housing 
Development Supervisor 

Assist with revision of forms and 
procedures; outreach; intake and eligibility 
determinations; solicitation of contractors; 
maintenance of program records; 
preparation of funding applications; 
coordination of work with sub-consultants; 
consultation with City of Bishop regarding 
work product and selection of sub-
consultants 

30 hours/week 

Anita Sonke, Controller Administration and oversight of Financial 
Records; submission of approved 
contractor invoices 

5 hours/week 

 
Any changes in the Key Personnel assigned or their general responsibilities 
under this project are subject to the prior approval of the Grantee.  
 

C. Project Schedule 
 

Unless amended by mutual written agreement by the Subrecipient and the 
Grantee, (Subrecipient’s name) will perform the described tasks and complete 
the preparation of the development of an affordable rental housing project using 
HOME Partnership and Tax Credit funds in conformance with the schedule 
attached as Exhibit 1.  
 

D. Line Item Budget 
 

The following is the budget for the 2012 CDBG Program allocation for the 
Reconstruction of the 19-unit Valley Apartment project to be administered by 
IMACA.  Unless otherwise noted, this budget may only be modified through a 
formal written amendment approved by the Grantee. 

 
Reconstruction Activities     $786,250.00 
General Administration   $  75,000.00 
Activity Delivery $138,750.00 
  

 TOTAL  $1,00,000.00 



 
TASK #2.  APPLICATION PREPARATION FOR DEVELOPING AN 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT WITH HOME PARTNERSHIP 

FUNDS AND TAX CREDITS 
 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
A. Principal Tasks 
 

The Subrecipient will be responsible for administering an allocation of the 2012 
CDBG Program for developing an affordable housing project utilizing HOME 
Partnership Funds and Tax Credits, also referred to as (Application Preparation), 
for the city of Bishop, hereinafter referred to as “the Grantee.” The Subrecipient 
shall administer all tasks in connection with the aforesaid program in compliance 
with all applicable Federal, state, and local rules and regulations governing these 
funds, and in a manner satisfactory to the Grantee.  

 
The major goal of the Subrecipient’s efforts under this Agreement will be the 
preparation of HOME Partnership and Tax Credit applications for an affordable 
rental housing project, per the Subrecipient’s proposal of March 26, 2012, as 
amended and approved by the Grantee on _______________.  Changes to the 
program goals, scope of services, schedule or budget, unless otherwise noted, 
may only be made through a written amendment to this Agreement, executed by 
the Subrecipient and Grantee. Toward the goal of the preparation of HOME 
Partnership and Tax Credit Funding applications, the major tasks that the 
Subrecipient will perform include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: 

  
1) Preparation of the Tax Credit application shall include, as a minimum, 

the following tasks (assumes second round 9% Tax Credit applications 
are due July 11, 2012): 

 
a) Pre-application and workshop(s).  Prior to issuance of Notice of Funding 

Availability (NOFA), consultant will research any modifications to the 
regulations pertaining to Tax Credit applications.  Consultant will also 
attend one or more (if necessary) workshops for preparation of a 
CTCAC application to obtain information on the requirements, scoring, 
and awards.  Approximate time required:  4 weeks.  Estimated 
timeframe:  mid April to mid May 2012. 

 
b) Site Studies and Property Appraisal.  Consultant and City of Bishop will 

work with sub-consultants on preparation of a Phase I Environmental 
Site Assessment (ESA), a property appraisal, flood hazard 
determination, and any other site studies required to be submitted with 
the Tax Credit application. Approximate time required:  6 weeks.  



Estimated timeframe:  early May to mid June 2012. 
 
c) Financial Feasibility.  Working with the City of Bishop, the consultant will 

contract with a sub-consultant to prepare a detailed financial analysis of 
the development proposal in compliance with CTCAC standards.  
Approximate time required:  4 weeks.  Estimated timeframe:  early May 
to early June 2012. 

 
d) Market Analysis.  The consultant and City will work together to select a 

sub-consultant that will prepare a market study for the affordable rental 
development.  The market study will be prepared in accordance with the 
latest adopted California Tax Credit Allocation Committee &California 
Debt Limit Allocation Committee Joint Market Study Guidelines.  
Approximate time required:  6 weeks.  Estimated timeframe: early May 
to mid June 2012. 

 
e) Site and Service Amenities Analysis.  The consultant, in consultation 

with the City, shall conduct a Site Amenities Analysis to determine the 
proximity of the site in relationship to site amenities such as transit 
facilities, park, library, supermarket, public school, senior facility, etc.  
The amenities analysis shall include the required map and photos.  The 
Service Amenities review shall analyze the requirements specific to the 
housing type and contain the following components:  evidence of 
services to be provided; evidence of space for services, services 
sources and uses budget; position descriptions; and service provider 
experience chart.  Approximate time required:  2 weeks.  Estimated 
timeframe:  mid May to early June 2012. 

 
f) Design Plans.  The consultant shall contract with a qualified architect to 

prepare design plans for the affordable housing project.  The design 
plans shall include as a minimum site, floor and elevation drawings.  In 
addition, the architect shall perform a detailed evaluation to determine 
compliance with CTCAC Sustainable Building Methods.  All plans and 
written materials prepared by the architect shall be routed to the City for 
review and approval.   Approximate time required:  8 weeks.  Estimated 
timeframe:  early May to early July 2012. 

 
g) Tax Credit Application Preparation.  The consultant shall prepare the 

CTCAC application for 9% tax credits.  The application materials and 
studies shall be in substantial compliance with the NOFA.  At least three 
weeks prior to submittal of the application, a draft shall be provided to 
the City for comments.  At least one week prior to submittal, the 
consultant shall provide the City with a final draft of the application.  
Approximate time required:  2 weeks.  Estimated timeframe:  mid June 
to early July 2012. 

 



2) Preparation of the HOME Partnership application shall include, as a 
minimum, the following tasks (assumes NOFA is issued in early June 
and application deadline is early September 2012): 

 
a) Pre-application and workshop(s).  Prior to issuance of Notice of Funding 

Availability (NOFA), consultant will research any modifications to the 
regulations pertaining to the HOME Partnership funding application.  
Consultant will also attend one or more (if necessary) workshops for 
preparation of a HOME Partnership application to obtain information on 
the requirements, scoring, and awards.  Approximate time required:  6 
weeks.  Estimated timeframe:  mid May to late June 2012. 

 
b) Update Site Studies and Property Appraisal.  Consultant and City of 

Bishop will work with sub-consultants to update the Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment (ESA), property appraisal, flood hazard 
determination, geotechnical report and other site studies, as required by 
the NOFA, HUD, and HCD.  Consultant will obtain legal opinion from 
City Attorney on compliance with Article XXXIV.  Approximate time 
required:  4 weeks.  Estimated timeframe:  mid June to mid July 2012. 

 
c) Update Financial Feasibility.  Working with the City of Bishop, the 

consultant will contract with a sub-consultant to prepare update the 
previously prepared financial analysis for the development proposal in 
compliance with HOME Partnership standards.  Approximate time 
required:  4 weeks.  Estimated timeframe:  mid June to mid July 2012. 

 
d) Update Market Study.  The consultant will contract with a sub-consultant 

to prepare an update to the market study conducted for the CTCAC 
application.  The market study will be prepared in accordance with the 
latest adopted California Tax Credit Allocation Committee &California 
Debt Limit Allocation Committee Joint Market Study Guidelines.  
Approximate time required:  4 weeks.  Estimated timeframe:  mid June 
to mid July 2012. 

 
e) Obtain local approvals.  The consultant, working directly with the City, 

shall work ensure the project complies with all local land use regulations 
and obtain necessary entitlements prior to submitting a funding 
application.  Approximate time required:  8 weeks.  Estimated 
timeframe:  mid June to mid August  2012. 

 
f) Update Design Plans.  The consultant shall contract with an architect to 

update design plans for the affordable housing project.  The design 
plans shall include as a minimum site, floor and elevation drawings.  In 
addition, the architect shall work with building contractors to prepare a 
detailed development budget in compliance with HOME Partnership 
standards.  The final design plans and budget are subject to review and 



approval by the City of Bishop.   Approximate time required:  8 weeks.  
Estimated timeframe:  mid June to August 2012. 

 
g) Prepare HOME Partnership Application.  The consultant shall prepare 

the HOME Partnership funding application.  The application materials 
and studies shall be in substantial compliance with the NOFA issued by 
HCD.  At least three weeks prior to submittal of the application, a draft 
shall be provided to the City for comments.  At least one week prior to 
submittal, the consultant shall provide the City with a final draft of the 
application.  Approximate time required:  4 weeks.  Estimated 
timeframe:  early July to early August 2012. 

 
3) Work write-ups:  The Subrecipient will complete a detailed work write-up 

of the work to be performed, including estimated costs of each activity, 
materials to be used, and industry or regulatory standards to be met. This 
write-up will be initialed and dated by the Grantee.  

 
4) Solicitation and selection of contractors:  The Subrecipient will assist 

with the identification, proper solicitation, and selection of contractors and 
subcontractors qualified to perform all aspects of the studies related to the 
preparation of Tax Credit and HOME Partnership applications. The 
Subrecipient will provide forms and sample contract formats to use in 
contracting with the contractors and will assist in ensuring that the 
description of the work contained in any contracts with contractors is 
accurate and complete.  

 
5) Approval of contractor payments:  As work progresses and as invoices 

are submitted by contractors, the Subrecipient will verify that the expenses 
are reasonable and the work has been completed properly and will 
authorize drawdown of funds from the Grantee, and disbursement to the 
contractors.  

 
6) Maintenance of case files and other records: the Subrecipient will 

maintain files, including application and documentation of renter eligibility, 
work write-ups (along with repayment/ recapture provisions), 
documentation of liens and any other forms of security, contractor 
selection criteria, copy of contract, documentation on all necessary 
licenses and permits, site visit/inspection reports (including final 
inspection), change orders, and approved contractor invoices for payment 
(with owner sign-off). The Subrecipient will maintain these and other 
program and financial records in accordance with the general 
requirements for record keeping specified in Section __ of this Agreement.  

 
 
 
 



B. Staffing 
 

The Subrecipient shall assign the following staff as Key Personnel to the CDBG 
Year 2010-2011 PTA Grant for the preparation of HOME Partnership and Tax 
Credit applications in support of an affordable rental housing project: 

 
Staff Member Title General Program Duties Time 

Allocation 
Daniel Steinhagen, 
Executive Director 

General program oversight and 
administration; revision of forms and 
procedures; approval of sub consultants. 

5 hours/week 

Larry Emerson, Housing 
Development Supervisor 

Assist with revision of forms and 
procedures; outreach; intake and eligibility 
determinations; solicitation of contractors; 
maintenance of program records; 
preparation of funding applications; 
coordination of work with sub-consultants; 
consultation with City of Bishop regarding 
work product and selection of sub-
consultants 

25 hours/week 

Anita Sonke, Controller Administration and oversight of Financial 
Records; submission of approved 
contractor invoices 

5 hours/week 

Any changes in the Key Personnel assigned or their general responsibilities 
under this project are subject to the prior approval of the Grantee.  
 

C. Project Schedule 
 

Unless amended by mutual written agreement by the Subrecipient and the 
Grantee, (Subrecipient’s name) will perform the described tasks and complete 
the preparation of the development of an affordable rental housing project using 
HOME Partnership and Tax Credit funds in conformance with the schedule 
attached as Exhibit 1.  
 

D. Line Item Budget 
 

The following is the budget for the CDBG FY 2010-2011 PTA Grant for the 
preparation of HOME Partnership and Tax Credit applications in support of an 
affordable housing project to be administered by IMACA.  Unless otherwise 
noted, this budget may only be modified through a formal written amendment 
approved by the Grantee. 

 
CTCAC 4% or 9% &  
HOME Partnership Application Prep    $42,130.00 
General Administration   $  2,070.00 

 TOTAL   $44,200. 00  



METHOD OF COMPENSATION/SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS  
 
A. Direct Project Expenses 

 
The Subrecipient may draw down funds to finance payments to contractors for 
the project. Any funds drawn must be limited to the amount expected to be 
disbursed within 10 working days from the date of drawdown, must be placed in 
one interest-bearing account, and must be disbursed to contractors within 10 
days of receipt by the Subrecipient. Payments to contractors should be made on 
the basis of work completed, with a set-off of at least 10 percent until final 
inspection and sign-off of the completed work by the Subrecipient’s staff and 
property owner.  



 
 

Exhibit 1 
 

Reconstruction of the Valley Apartment Complex 
Schedule – 2012 CDBG Program 

 
 

 

Tasks/Program Goals 

M
on

th
 1

 

M
on

th
 2

 

M
on

th
 3

 

M
on

th
 4

 

M
on

th
 5

 

M
on

th
 6

 

M
on

th
 7

 

M
on

th
 8

 

M
on

th
 9

 

M
on

th
 1

0 

M
on

th
 1

1 

M
on

th
 1

2 

 
1. Preparation of Plans and Specs 

 
2. City Entitlements, Environmental 

Review, and Building Permits 
 

3. Temporary Relocation of Residents 
 

4. Demolition and Removal of Existing 
Structures  

 
5. Site Grading 

 
6. Reconstruction of Apartments 

(begins after site grading—2nd year) 
 

7. Parking Lot and Landscaping 
Improvements 

 
8. Finish Work and Occupancy 

 
 
 

 
X       X       X     X        X      X 
 
 
X       X       X      X       X      X 
 
                                                     X        X 
 

                                                                         X     X        
 
 
                                                                                       X               X 
 
X       X       X     X       X       X      X       X 
 
                                                                           X       
 
                                     
                                                                                        X 
 
                                     
 

                                                      
 
                                                              

  



 
Exhibit 2 

 
Tax Credit and HOME Partnership Application Preparation 

Work Schedule – 2012 CDBG Program 

Tasks/Program Goals 

M
on

th
 1

 

M
on

th
 2

 

M
on

th
 3

 

M
on

th
 4

 

M
on

th
 5

 

M
on

th
 6

 

M
on

th
 7

 

M
on

th
 8

 

M
on

th
 9

 

M
on

th
 1

0 

M
on

th
 1

1 

M
on

th
 1

2 

 
9. Tax Credit Pre-application and 

Workshops 
 

10. Site Studies and Appraisal 
 

11. Financial Feasibility 
 

12. Market Study 
 

13. Site Amenities Analysis 
 

14. Design Plans 
 

15. Tax Credit Application Preparation 
 

16. HOME Partnership Pre-application 
and Workshops 

 
17. Update Studies 

 
18. Local Approvals 

 
19. Prepare HOME Partnership 

Application 
 
 

 
X                            
 
 
X       X 
 

X       X 
 

X       X 
 

X       X       X 
 

X       X       X 
 
          X      X 
 
                                     X      X 
 
 
                                     X      X      X 
 

                                                      X     X 
 
                                                              X     X 

  



B. Relocation Assistance  
 

The Subrecipient may draw down funds as Relocation Assistance expenses are 
incurred, up to the approved line item budget level. Relocation Assistance must 
be provided in accordance with 24 CFR 570.606 and 49 CFR part 24. 

 
C. Operations/Administrative Expenses  
 

During start-up of the CDBG FY 2010 Grant for Silver Peaks Project (Months 
1−3), the Subrecipient may draw down on a monthly basis up to one-twelfth of 
the budgeted amount for Operations and Administration, to cover expenses 
actually incurred. After Month 3, drawdowns against the balance of budgeted 
funds for Operations and Administration must be based on costs actually 
incurred, and proportional to the percentage of the total authorized amount for 
the project that have been expended.  

 
D. Affordability provisions [24 CFR 570. 208(a)(3)]:   
 

For activities benefiting low- and moderate-income persons, the subrecipient 
must adopt and make public the grantee’s standards for determining that for 
rental housing assisted under the program, the rents of units occupied by low- 
and moderate-income persons are ”affordable.”  
 

E. Davis-Bacon requirements and other Labor Standards [24 CFR 570.603]:   
 

These statutes require the payment of prevailing wages for CDBG-assisted 
construction work, including construction or rehabilitation of residential property 
containing eight units or more, in excess of $2000. The Contract Work Hours 
and Safety Standards Act also applies to such activities.  

 
F. Historic Preservation [16 U.S.C. 470 et seq. and 36 CFR Part 800]:   
 

These requirements mandate (a) consultation with specified agencies having 
responsibility for historic preservation to identify properties listed (or eligible for 
inclusion) in the National Register of Historic Places that may be subject to 
adverse effects by the proposed CDBG activities, and (b) compliance with 
procedures or other requirements to avoid or mitigate such adverse effects.  

 
G. National Flood Insurance Program [24 CFR 570.605]:    
 

If a community has had notice for more than a year that an area has been 
identified by FEMA as having special flood hazards, CDBG funds cannot be 
spent for acquisition or construction purposes within that area unless the 
community is participating in the National Flood Insurance Program and such 
insurance has been purchased for the properties in question.  

 



 
H. Relocation, Real Property Acquisition, and One-For-One Housing Replacement 

[24 CFR 570.606]:   
The acquisition of real property for a CDBG-assisted project and the 
displacement of any person (family, individual, business, non-profit organization 
or farm) as a direct result of acquisition, rehabilitation, demolition or conversion 
for a CDBG-assisted project must comply with 24 CFR 670.606 and 49 CFR part 
24. The Subrecipient must also conduct its CDBG activities so as to minimize 
displacement, and if displacement occurs, the displaced persons or entities must 
be provided assistance consistent with the Uniform Relocation Act, as amended, 
or Section 104(d), as applicable. In addition, there must be a one-for-one 
replacement of any occupied (or vacant, occupiable) low- and moderate-income 
dwelling that is demolished or converted to another use in connection with a 
CDBG-funded activity. 

 
I.  Lead-based Paint [24 CFR 570.608 and 24 CFR Part 35]:   
 

There is a general prohibition against the use of any lead-based paint in 
connection with any CDBG activity involving the construction or rehabilitation of 
residential structures. If the structure was constructed prior to 1978, the tenants 
or purchasers must be notified of the hazards of lead-based paint poisoning; 
and, depending on the level of Federal assistance made available to the 
structure, paint inspection, risk assessment, treatment and/or abatement must 
be provided.  

 
J. Program Income [24 CFR 570.500; 570.503(a), (b)(3) and (b)(7); and 570.504]: 
 

A grantee must approve (a) whether a Subrecipient will be allowed to retain and 
use program income, and (b) for what activities the program income may be 
used. The use of such program income must be in compliance with all other 
applicable program requirements and, upon the expiration of the Subrecipient 
Agreement, any program income on hand or subsequently received by the 
Subrecipient must be returned to the grantee.  

 



 i

 
 
 
 

draft 
 

RELOCATION  PLAN 
 

for the Reconstruction of the 
 

VALLEY APARTMENTS 
156 E. Clarke Street 

Bishop, California, 93514 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

March 2012 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Relocation Plan has been prepared in accordance with the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended (URA). 



 ii

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
PROJECT INFORMATION  ............................................................................................ 1 
 
 Project Description ............................................................................................... 1 
 Responsible Entity (RE) ....................................................................................... 2 
 Contact Person  .................................................................................................... 2 
 Project Name ........................................................................................................ 2 
 Project Address  ................................................................................................... 2 
 Project Type/Units  ............................................................................................... 2 
 Current Occupancy Level  .................................................................................... 2 
 Rehabilitation Budget ........................................................................................... 2 
 Development Time-line ........................................................................................  2 
 Project Financing .................................................................................................  2 
 Project Developer ................................................................................................  2 
 Project Owner ....................................................................................................... 3 
 Property Management Company  ......................................................................... 3 
 General Contractor ............................................................................................... 3 
 Relocation Consultant .........................................................................................  3 
  
GOVERNING LAW  ......................................................................................................... 4 
 

Uniform Relocation Assistance (URA) and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act 
of 1970  ................................................................................................................ 4 

Application of the URA to the Valley Manor Apartments Rehabilitation 
Project  ....................................................................................................... 4 

 Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974  .......... 5 
Application of Section 104(d) to the Valley Manor Apartments 
Rehabilitation Project  ................................................................................ 5 

 
RELOCATION PLAN  ...................................................................................................... 6 
 
 Assessment of Relocation Needs  ........................................................................ 6 
  a) Temporary Displacement & Relocation During Rehabilitation ............... 6 
  b) Permanent Displacement & Relocation Following Rehabilitation .......... 6 

Resident Informational Meetings  ......................................................................... 7 
 Relocation Noticing  .............................................................................................. 7 
 Relocation Assistance Plan  ................................................................................. 7 
 Eligible & Reimbursable Costs  ............................................................................ 8 
 Funding Source  ................................................................................................... 8 
 Reservation of Rights to Revise Relocation Plan  ................................................ 8 
 
APPENDICES  .............................................................................................................. 10 
 



 iii

Appendix A - Minutes of Tenant Informational Meeting 
 Appendix B - General Information Notices (GIN) 

Appendix C - Notices of Nondisplacement 
Appendix D - Sample Notice of Eligibility 

 Appendix E - Unit Walkthrough 
Appendix F - Rehabilitation Schedule 
Appendix G - Site Occupant Records-Residential (Handbook 1378 Appendix 8) 

  



 1

PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
This is a development proposal to reconstruct the 19-unit Valley Apartment complex 
located at 156 E. Clarke Street, in the City of Bishop.  Prior to demolition of the 
apartment buildings, which were constructed in 1940 and 1950, residents will be 
relocated to equivalent living quarters for the entirety of the construction period.  
Relocation will include moving the seniors and some residents who have disabilities 
along with all of their possessions to quality apartments, motels/hotels and/or detached 
dwellings in the least disruptive manner possible.  The project proponent, IMACA, will 
also make every endeavor to reduce the construction period through extensive planning 
and coordination with building contractors. 
 
Subsequent to the demolition and removal of the old motel and residence buildings, a 
new 19-unit apartment complex for occupancy by persons with disabilities and low-
income seniors will be constructed.  The two-story structure will be built on the west side 
of the property and an off-street parking lot with 24 spaces, including two accessible 
spaces will be provided on the east side of the site between the apartments and the 
IMACA Head Start Program buildings.  Driveway access to the parking lot will be 
provided off of E. Clarke Street and the adjoining public alleyway on the south.   
 
Walkways will be constructed from the parking area to the front and rear of the 
apartment building.  An interior elevator and stairwell are provided at the front of the 
building and a second, inside stairway will be at the back, off the alley.  Each of the 
efficiency units will include a combined bedroom and living room with a divider wall as 
well as a kitchen and bathroom.  The current floor area for the residents will be 
increased from 260 sq. ft. to 405 sq. ft.   The manager’s unit will be constructed with a 
full bedroom and contain approximately 610 sq. ft. of interior living area.  A common 
area with about 610 sq. ft. will also be provided for the residents and conceptually 
include a small kitchen area, lounge, exercise equipment and laundry.  All of the living 
spaces will have an adjoining balcony or patio area.  Common open space, located 
between the apartments and parking area will consist of a community garden and other 
appropriate amenities for seniors and people that have physical or developmental 
disabilites.   
 
The existing Cottonwood tree and raised  planter bed will be removed but in addition to 
the community garden and patio areas, the parking lot, front and rear yard setback 
areas and area along the walkways will be planted with landscaping. A trash enclosure 
with recycling area will be constructed off the alleyway and the shared (with the IMACA 
Head Start Program buildings situated to the east) propane tank relocated to the 
landscaped area between the parking lot and new building.  Bicycle racks will be 
provided at both the front and rear building entrances. 



 2

RESPONSIBLE ENTITY: City of Bishop 
(RE) 377 West Line Street 
 Bishop, CA 93514 
 Post Office Box 1236 
 Bishop, CA 93515 
 Phone- (760) 873-5863 
 Fax- (760) 873-4873 
 cityclerk@ca-bishop.us 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Keith Caldwell 
 City Administrator/Community Services Director 
 Phone- (760) 873-5863 
 Fax- (760) 873-4873 
 
PROJECT NAME: Reconstruction of Valley Apartments 
 
PROJECT ADDRESS: 156 E. Clarke Street 
 Bishop, California 93514 
 
PROJECT TYPE/UNITS: Reconstruction of the 19-unit Valley Apartment 

Complex—includes 18 efficiency units, a manager’s 
unit, and a community room 

 
OCCUPANCY LEVEL: 100 percent; apartment complex is fully occupied  
 
DEVELOPMENT TIME-LINE 
(Estimated): Relocation: January 2013 (projected) 
 Begin Reconstruction: July 2013 (projected) 
 Complete Reconstruction:  March 2014 (projected) 
 Full Lease-Up/Occupancy: May 2014 (projected) 
 
REHABILITATION BUDGET: Approximately $2.0 million; relocation budget has not 

yet been established 
 
PROJECT FINANCING: Federal Tax Credits (4% or 9%) 
 State Community Development Block Grant Program 
 HOME Program 
  
PROJECT DEVELOPER: Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc.  

IMACA 
 224 S. Main Street 
 P.O. Box 845 
 Bishop, CA  93514 
 Phone:  (760) 873-8557 
 Email/contact:  http://imaca.net/contact/ 



 3

 
Contact Person: Larry Emerson 
 Housing Development Supervisor 
 Phone:  (760) 873-3021 
 Email:  lemerson@imaca.net   
 
PROJECT OWNER: Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc.  

IMACA 
 224 S. Main Street 
 P.O. Box 845 
 Bishop, CA  93514 
 Phone:  (760) 873-8557 
 Email/contact:  http://imaca.net/contact/ 
 
Contact Person: Jane McDonald, IMACA 
 224 S. Main Street 
 P.O. Box 845 
 Bishop, CA  93514 
 Phone:  (760) 873-8557 
 Email:  jmcdonald@imaca.net 
 
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT: Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc.  

IMACA 
 224 S. Main Street 
 P.O. Box 845 
 Bishop, CA  93514 
 Phone:  (760) 873-8557 
 Email/contact:  http://imaca.net/contact/ 
      
Site Manager  Jane McDonald, IMACA 
 224 S. Main Street 
 P.O. Box 845 
 Bishop, CA  93514 
 Phone:  (760) 873-8557 
 Email:  jmcdonald@imaca.net 
 
GENERAL CONTRACTOR: None at this time 
       
RELOCATION CONSULTANT: None 



 4

GOVERNING LAW 
 
 
Uniform Relocation Assistance (URA) and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970 
 
The URA, as amended by the URA Amendments of 1987, contains requirements 
for carrying out real property acquisition or the displacement of a person(s), 
regardless of income status, for a project for which HUD financial assistance is 
provided.  The implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 require developers 
and owners to take certain steps in regard to tenants of housing to be acquired, 
rehabbed or demolished, including tenants who will not be relocated even 
temporarily. 
 

Application of the URA to the Valley Apartments Reconstruction 
Project 

 
Relocation of existing tenants will be necessary during the reconstruction 
of the Valley Apartments and the URA does apply to this project.  
Alternatives to phase the project and avoid or reduce relocation are 
impractical due to the limited site area and physical constraints on the 
property. 
 
A General Information meeting was held with the tenants at the Valley 
Apartments courtyard, 156 E. Clarke Street, on July 22, 201.   Additional 
meetings will be scheduled with tenants prior to the adoption of this plan.  
Following completion of reconstruction project, a tenant survey will be 
conducted to determine if all tenants continue to qualify to remain in the 
project and a Notice of Eligibility will be delivered to any tenants that no 
longer income-qualify to remain in the project and relocation assistance 
will be provided as required by the URA. 

 
Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc. intends to reconstruct 
the 19-unit apartment complex in the least amount of time necessary to 
demolish and clear the site and construct the new dwellings.  During 
demolition and construction, it is hoped that the tenants will be relocated 
to the first phase of the Silver Peaks Apartments planned at the southwest 
corner of MacIver and Spruce Streets.  In the likely event that the option is 
not available, then IMACA will provide assistance to tenants as required 
by law, including the provision of food vouchers and moving assistance, 
with the cost to be borne by the Agency.  IMACA will assist tenants on a 
case-by-case basis as requests are made.  Details of the relocation needs 
and assistance plan are provided below. 

 
 
 



 5

Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
 
Section 104(d) requires each State Recipient, as a condition of receiving 
assistance under HOME, to certify that it is following a residential anti-
displacement plan and relocation assistance plan.  Section 104(d) also requires 
relocation benefits to be provided to low-income persons who are physically or 
economically displaced as a result of a HOME-assisted project, and requires the 
replacement of low-income housing which is demolished or converted. 
 

Application of Section 104(d) to the Valley Apartments 
Reconstruction Project 

 
Section 104(d) will apply to this project as low-income persons will be 
either physically or economically displaced by the reconstruction of this 
project.  Low-income housing will be demolished but will be replaced with 
the same number of affordable dwelling units but which have more floor 
area and are considerably more livable and comfortable. 

 
 
 



 6

RELOCATION PLAN 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RELOCATION NEEDS 
 
a) Temporary Displacement and Relocation During Reconstruction 
 
Temporary relocation of the Valley Apartments in Bishop, California is fully 
expected during the demolition and reconstruction of the 19-unit complex.  The 
project proponent, IMACA, has evaluated the potential of phasing the 
development to reduce the potential impacts of relocation to the residents.  
However, the development site is less than one-half acre in area and shares a 
parking lot with the adjacent IMACA Head Start Program.  It would be extremely 
impractical to phase the construction of a single, two-story 19-unit apartment 
building on this site. 
 
IMACA, Inyo-Mono Associates for the Handicapped (IMAH), and the City of 
Bishop have formed an informal partnership to develop the phased, 72-unit Silver 
Peaks Apartments at the southwest corner of MacIver and Spruce Streets.  This 
site is less than one mile from the Valley Apartment site.  The preferred 
relocation plan is to build the first phase of Silver Peaks with 36 apartment units 
and relocate Valley residents during demolition and reconstruction activities. 
 
Development of Silver Peaks is dependent on funding and purchase of the 
property from the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power and the timing 
may not accommodate the Valley Reconstruction project schedule.  In the event 
that Silver Peaks is not constructed before Valley, residents will be provided 
relocation assistance to other temporary residential living quarters in full 
compliance with the law and this plan. 
 
b) Permanent Displacement and Relocation Following Reconstruction 
 
The Valley Apartment complex is currently restricted to income-qualified seniors 
or people with disabilities.  The Valley reconstruction development will include 
the same qualification standards.  Existing tenants will be offered dwelling units 
in the new apartment building at rental rates that will not exceed federal and state 
income standards.  It is anticipated that the rents may increase slightly due to the 
construction costs and it is possible that some existing residents may be 
displaced.  However, the project proponent will seek rental subsidies through the 
Housing Choice Voucher Program or other federal and state programs to pay the 
difference between the current rent and any increase.  Following reconstruction 
of the project, a tenant income survey will be performed to determine if all 
tenants remain income-qualified to remain in the project.  If it is found that there 
are tenants who no longer income-qualify, they will be provided with Notices of 
Eligibility and will be provided with relocation services as required by law. 
 
 



 7

 
TENANT INFORMATIONAL MEETING 
 
A tenant informational meeting was held on July 22, 2011 at the Valley 
Apartments Courtyard, 156 Clarke Street.  All current residents of the Valley 
Apartments were invited to attend and informed about a financing issues with the 
State and a proposal to reconstruct the apartments due to the age and conditions 
of the structures if funding became available.  They were also informed that their 
rents will not change at this time and that there would be additional meetings with 
the residents in the future as plans for the reconstruction progressed.  
Additionally, they were also told that if it does become necessary for them to 
temporarily relocate, they will be assisted in the relocation and will have the right 
to be reimbursed for certain expenses they incur, including the cost of moving 
and any additional housing costs. 
 
RELOCATION NOTICING 
 
- General Information Notice -  Dated: July 15, 2011 
 

Executed: Between July 15 and July 16, 
2011 

 
- Tenant Survey -  Date: Pending 
 
- Notice of Displacement - Dated: Pending 
 

Executed: Pending 
 
- Notice of Eligibility -  Dated: Pending (if required) 
 
      Executed: Pending (if required) 
 
- Move-in Noticing - Dated: Pending (if required) 
 
      Executed: Pending (if required) 
 

 
RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN1 
 
No less than eight weeks prior to the scheduled demolition of the Valley 
Apartment complex, existing tenants will be provided notice of proposed 
relocation assistance.  This shall include as a minimum a listing of all relocation 
expenses and costs eligible for reimbursement and the proposed replacement 
dwelling unit location and duration of displacement.   
                                                           
 1

For temporary relocation of PERSONS NOT TO BE DISPLACED, reference HUD Handbook 1378 Section 2-4. 



 8

 
Residents of Valley Apartments shall be provided notice no less than four weeks 
prior to demolition of the intent to begin construction activities and the proposed 
assistance procedures for relocation.  Residents will then be relocated to the 
units constructed during the phase of the Silver Peaks development at the 
southwest corner of MacIver and Spruce Streets.   
 
If the first phase of the Silver Peaks development has not been completed prior 
to Valley Reconstruction activities, then residents will be relocated to apartment 
units or hotel units that are equivalent to or greater in area than the current 260 
sq. ft. apartments at Valley. All dwellings or hotel/motel units proposed for 
relocation shall include facilities for cooking and food storage as well as parking 
for vehicles and/or bicycles.  In addition, all units proposed for relocation shall 
contain a minimum storage space of 10 cubic feet.  IMACA will pay all costs 
associated with moving tenants to and their stay at the dwelling units or 
hotel/motel units. 
 
ELIGIBLE & REIMBURSABLE COSTS 
 
Eligible, and/or reimbursable, costs will be paid directly or reimbursed by 
the IMACA and may include the following to the extent required by state or 
federal law:2 
 

- transportation cost for displaced persons and their necessary personal 
property; 

- packing, crating, unpacking and un-crating, of displaced person’s personal 
property, if required; 

- storage costs for displaced person’s personal property requiring temporary 
storage while the tenant’s unit is vacated, if required; 

- housing costs; 
- vehicle parking costs directly associated with housing or meals eaten out if 

meal preparation facilities are not available within the temporary housing; 
- meal costs if suitable facilities are not available in the provided housing to 

prepare meals; 
- insurance cost for the replacement value of displaced person’s personal 

property in connection with the temporary move or storage; 
- replacement value of displaced person’s personal property that is lost, 

stolen, or damaged in the process of moving if insurance coverage was 
not available; 

- security deposits, cleaning deposits, credit checks, or other reasonable 
expenses necessitated by the temporary move or storage of displaced 
person’s personal property. 

 

                                                           
 2

HUD Handbook 1378, Section 2-4.b. requires that all conditions of temporary relocation be reasonable and that 
reimbursement be made for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the temporary relocation. 



 9

 
FUNDING SOURCE 
 
IMACA General Fund as financed through HOME and CDBG. 
 
RESERVATION OF RIGHTS TO REVISE RELOCATION PLAN 
 
Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc. reserves the right to revise this 
Relocation Plan to the extent permitted by state and federal law. 

 



 10

APPENDICES 
Appendix A 

 
Minutes of Valley Apartments Tenant Informational 
Meeting Held on July 22, 2011 at 9:30 a.m. in the 

Valley Courtyard at 156 E. Clark Street 
 
 
IMACA Staff in Attendance:  Daniel Steinhagen, Jane McDonald, Kathie Keesler, 
and Larry Emerson 
 
Valley Tenants in Attendance (per sign-in sheet):  Carmen Matson, Robert 
Bradley, Norma Spears, Beverly Wallace, John Bouwen, Paul Schultz, Don 
Thomas, Richard Kraft 
 
Comments from residents: 
 
1. There is no place in Bishop to relocate residents. 
 
2. Residents can help with resolution of loan issue by writing letters. 
 
3. Where do we store our furniture during relocation?  Will we have access to 

a storage facility? 
 
4. Concerned about potential rent increases. 
 
5. Locks on doors need to be changed. 



 11

Appendix B 
 

General Information 
Notices (GIN) 

 
- None at this time - 



 12

Appendix C 
 

Notices of 
Nondisplacement 

 
- None at this time - 

 



 13

Appendix D 
 

- Sample - 
Notice of Eligibility 

 
- None at this time - 



 14

Appendix E 
 

Unit Walkthrough 
 

- None at this time - 
 
 
 



 15

Appendix F 
 

Rehabilitation Schedule 
 

- None at this time - 



 16

 
Appendix G 

 
- Site Occupant 

Records-Residential 
 

- None at this time - 



RESOLUTION NO.__ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR FUNDING AND THE 
EXECUTION OF A GRANT AGREEMENT AND ANY AMENDMENTS 

THERETO FROM THE 2012 ALLOCATION OF THE STATE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Bishop as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: 
 
The City Council has reviewed and hereby approves an application for the 2012 State CDBG 
Program requesting up to $1,200,000.00 in funding for the following activities: 
 
General Program Administration       $80,000.00 
Multi-Family Housing Rehabilitation $1,000,000.00 
Developing an Affordable Housing Project  
With Home Partnership Funds and Tax Credits     $50,000.00 
Master Sewer Plan (focused)        $50,000.00 
 
SECTION 2: 
 
The City has determined that federal Citizen Participation requirements were met during the 
development of this application. 
 
SECTION 3: 
 
For Cash Match, the City Council hereby approves the use of General Funds and the 
commitment from Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc. (IMACA) as provided in 
the attached letter dated May 11, 2011 to be used as the City’s Cash Match for this application as 
follows: 
 
 IMACA Cash Match Commitment $2,500.00  
 City of Bishop Cash Match $2,500.00 
 TOTALS  $5,000.00 
 
SECTION 4: 
 
The City hereby approves a Subrecipient Agreement, attached as “Exhibit A,” with Inyo Mono 
Advocates for Community Action, Inc. (IMACA) to assist in utilizing the 2012 State CDBG 
funds, if awarded. 
 
 
 
 
 



 SECTION 5: 
 
The City hereby authorizes and directs Keith Caldwell, the City Administrator/Community 
Services Director, or designees, to sign this application and act on the City’s behalf in all matters 
pertaining to this application. 
 
SECTION 6: 
 
If the application is approved, Keith Caldwell, the City Administrator/Community Services 
Director, or designees, is authorized to enter into and sign the grant agreement and any 
subsequent amendments with the State of California for the purposes of this grant. 
 
SECTION 7: 
 
If the application is approved, Keith Caldwell, the City Administrator/Community Services 
Director, or designees, is authorized to sign Fund Requests and other required reporting forms. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Bishop held on the 26th day of March, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
     ______________________________________ 
      DAVID STOTTLEMYRE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: Keith Caldwell, City Clerk 
 
 
 

By:  _______________________________ 
             Denise Gillespie, Assistant City Clerk 
 
 
 



INYO 

MONO 

ADVOCATES for 

COMMUNITY 

ACTION, Inc. 

Administration 
Personnel 

Community Services 
Housing 

Weatherization 
224 S. Main Sl. 

P.O. Box 845 
Bishop, CA 93515 

(760) 873-8557 
(800) 541-1822 

Fax (760) 873-8182 
e-mail: info@imaca.net 

Community Connections 
for Children 

625 Old Mammoth Rd. 
P.O. Box 8571 

Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546 
(760) 934-3343 
(800) 317-4600 

Fax (760) 934-2075 

Child Development & 
Family Services 

Head Start/State Preschool 
Administration Office 

218-A S Main St. 
Bishop, CA 93514 

(7BO) 873-3001 
Fax (760) 872·5570 

Glass Mountain 
Apartments 

25 Mountain Blvd. 
Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546 

(7BO) 924-3888 

Valley Apartments 
156 E. Clarke S1

Bishop, CA 93514 
(760) 873-8557 

IMACA. is a Non· Profit, 
Tax-Exempt Organization 
under Section 501 (c)(3) , 
Internal Revenue Code. 

People Helping People 

March 20, 2012 

Mr. Linn Warren 
Department Director 
California Department of Housing and Community Development 
1800 Third Street 
Sacramento, CA 95811-6942 

RE: INYO MONO ADVOCATES FOR COMMUNITY ACTION, 
INC. (IMACA) CASH MATCH COMMITMENT FOR THE 2012 
STATE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
PROGRAM FUNDING APPLICATION BY THE CITY OF BISHOP 

Dear Mr. Warren: 

Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action, Inc. (IMACA) hereby 
commits to provide a cash match for the State Planning and Technical 
Assistance (PTA) Grant portion of the 2012 State CDBG Program if 
awarded. The cash match shall be accordance with the Subrecipient 
Agreement between IMACA and the City of Bishop and all requirements 
of the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD). 

The amount of the cash match shall be as provided in the approved 
contract between the HCD, the City of Bishop, and IMACA. The cash 
match shall not exceed five (5) percent of the award as determined by the 
State HCD for the PTA activity entitled Application Preparation for 
Developing an Affordable Housing Project with Home Partnership Funds 
and Tax Credits. 

Please contact me at (760) 873-8557 if you have any questions regarding 
this commitment or require any additional support documentation. 

Sincerely, 

Daniel Steinhagen, Executive Director, IMACA 

cc: Keith Caldwell, City of Bishop 

Serving Inyo, Mono & Alpine Counties since 1981 
www.imaca.net 

http:www.imaca.net
mailto:info@imaca.net


 
  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 
 

7 
  

 
 
TO:        CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:      KEITH CALDWELL, CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
         
SUBJECT:    APPOINTMENT TO THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
   
DATE:      MARCH 26, 2012 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY 
 
The advertising and application process  for an expiring  term on  the Parks and Recreation 
Commission  ended  February  16,  2012.      Barry  Simpson who  held  this  seat  chose  not  to 
submit  a  letter  of  interest  in  reappointment.  Interviews  were  held  on March  6th.    The 
interview  committee will be making  a  recommendation  to  appoint  Thom Batchelder  to  a 
four‐year term.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Consideration  to  appoint Thom Batchelder  to  the Parks and Recreation Commission  for a 
four‐year term ending March 25, 2016. 
 
 



 
  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 

8 
 
  

 
 
TO:        CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:      KEITH CALDWELL, CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
         
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 538 – AMENDING BISHOP MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING 

TO FEE AND CHARGE REVENUE/COST COMPARISON SYSTEM 
  ADOPTION 
   
DATE:      MARCH 26, 2012 
 
Attachments:  Ordinance No. 538 and Exhibit A 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY 
 
The Public Works Department proposed a restructuring of the Department’s categories for 
fees  and  service  charges  for  Building,  Planning,  Public Works Miscellaneous,  Sewer,  and 
Water.    In order  to  implement  the  changes,  an ordinance  amending  Title 3 Revenue  and 
Finance Chapter 3.22  is necessary. The  first reading of this ordinance was approved at the 
March 12th meeting and is presented for adoption tonight. 
 
The  ordinance must  be  adopted  in  order  for  Council  to  consider  action  on  a  resolution 
amending  and  restating  fees  and  charges  for  City  services  that will  also  be  presented  at 
tonight’s meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Consideration to adopt Ordinance No. 538 by title only. 

 



 1 
  

ORDINANCE NO. 538 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BISHOP, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING TITLE 3 REVENUE 
AND FINANCE CHAPTER 3.22 ENTITLED “FEE AND SERVICE 
CHARGE REVENUE/COST COMPARISON SYSTEM” OF THE 
BISHOP MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BISHOP, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  Title 3 Chapter 3.22 of the Bishop Municipal Code, entitled “Fee 
and Service Charge Revenue/Cost Comparison System”, be and is hereby amended to 
read in its entirety as set forth in “Exhibit A” attached hereto and incorporated herein. 
 

SECTION 2:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days from 
and after its passage and adoption. 
 
 SECTION 3:  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this 
ordinance and shall cause the same to be published in the manner and form provided by 
law in the Inyo Register, a newspaper of general circulation printed and published in the 
City of Bishop, State of California which said newspaper is hereby designated for that 
purpose. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of ___________, 2012. 
 
      
            
     _______________________________________ 
        MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:  Keith Caldwell, City Clerk 
 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
        Denise Gillespie, Assistant City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 
  

EXHIBIT A                        
 

TITLE 3 
 

REVENUE AND FINANCE 
 

Chapters: 
 
3.22 Fee and Service Charge Revenue/Cost Comparison System 
 

Chapter 3.22 
 

FEE AND SERVICE CHARGE REVENUE/COST COMPARISON SYSTEM 
 

Sections: 
3.22.010 - Findings and intent. 
3.22.020 - Delegation of authority and direction to administrator. 
3.22.030 - Costs reasonably borne defined. 
3.22.040 - Schedule of fees and service charges. 
3.22.050 - Statutory public meeting. 
3.22.060 - Provision of data. 
3.22.070 - Appeal to city council. 

 
3.22.010 - Findings and intent. 

A. Pursuant to Article XIIIB of the California Constitution, it is the intent of the city 
council to require the ascertainment and recovery of costs reasonably borne from 
fees, charges and regulatory license fees levied therefore in providing the 
regulation, products or services hereinafter enumerated in this chapter. 

 
B. The fee and service charge revenue/cost comparison system set forth in this 

chapter provides a mechanism for ensuring that fees adopted by the city for 
services rendered do not exceed the reasonable estimated cost for providing the 
services for which the fees are charged. 

 
C. The adoption of this chapter is exempt from the California Environmental Quality 

Act (Public Resources Code Sections 2100 et seq.), because it approves and 
sets forth a procedure for determining fees for the purpose of meeting the 
operating expenses of city departments, as set forth in Public Resources Code 
Section 21080(b) et seq. 

 
3.22.020 - Delegation of authority and direction to administrator. 

A. The city administrator is delegated the authority and directed to provide 
documents to the city council to implement its herein enumerated policy to adjust 
fees and charges to recover the percentage of costs reasonably borne as 
established by this chapter, in providing the regulation, product or service 



 3 
  

enumerated in this chapter in the percentage of costs reasonably borne and on 
the schedule of rate review and revision as hereinafter established in this 
chapter. 
 

B. The city administrator is delegated authority to issue executive orders defining 
terms, setting out administrative, fee collection, and financial procedures, 
definitions, and establishing effective dates of all fees set by the city council by 
resolution. All executive orders shall be originated and signed by the affected 
department head, and shall be signed by the city administrator certifying that the 
financial requirements of this chapter are complied with and connoting the 
effective date of the executive order and new or reviewed rate structure, 
procedure or definition. 

 
C. "Costs reasonably borne" shall be defined in Section 3.22.030. In adjusting fees 

and charges, the city administrator shall act in an administrative and ministerial 
capacity and shall consider only the standards and criteria established by this 
chapter, and the procedures set by this chapter and by applicable state law. All 
executive orders issued hereunder shall comply in all respects with this chapter, 
and the several schedules of fees and rates as set by the city council by 
resolution. 

 
3.22.030 - Costs reasonably borne defined. 

"Costs reasonably borne," as used and ordered to be applied in this chapter are 
to consist of the following elements: 

A. All applicable direct costs including but not limited to salaries, wages, overtime, 
employee fringe benefits, services and supplies, maintenance and operation 
expenses, contracted services, special supplies, and any other direct expense 
incurred; 

 
B. All applicable indirect costs including but not restricted to building maintenance 

and operations, equipment maintenance and operations, communications 
expenses, computer costs, printing and reproduction, vehicle expenses, 
insurance, debt service, and like expenses when distributed on an accounted and 
documented rational proration system; 

 
C. Fixed asset recovery expenses, consisting of depreciation of fixed assets, and 

additional fixed asset expense recovery charges calculated on the current 
estimated cost of replacement, divided by the approximate life expectancy of the 
fixed asset. A further additional charge to make up the difference between book 
value depreciation not previously recovered and reserved in cash and the full cost 
of replacement, also shall be calculated and considered a cost so as to recover 
such unrecovered costs between book value and cost of replacement over the 
remaining life of the asset; 

 
D. General overhead, expressed as a percentage, distributing and charging the 

expenses of the city council, city attorney, city administration, city clerk, city 
treasurer, economic development, finance department; and all other staff and 
support service provided to the entire city organization. Overhead shall be 



 4 
  

prorated between tax-financed services and fee-financed services on the basis of 
said percentage so that each of the taxes and fees and charges shall 
proportionately defray such overhead costs; 

 
E.  Departmental overhead, expressed as a percentage, distributing and charging the 

cost of each department head and his or her supporting expenses as enumerated 
in subsections A, B, C and F of this section; 

 
F. Debt service costs, consisting of repayment of principal, payment of interest, and 

trustee fees and administrative expenses for all applicable bond, certificate, note 
or securities issues or loans of whatever nature or kind. Any required coverage 
factors or required or established reserves beyond basic debt service costs also 
shall be considered a cost if required by covenant within any securities ordinance, 
resolution, indenture or general law applicable to the city. 

 
3.22.040 - Schedule of fees and service charges. 

A. The city administrator and each city department head, under the direction of the 
city administrator, shall review annually the fees and service charges listed 
following, and provide an adjusted fee or charge schedule to the city council for its 
consideration and adoption by resolution so as to recover costs reasonably 
necessary to provide the listed regulation, product or service: 

 
NO. TITLE/DESCRIPTION 

  
 ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCE SERVICES 
  
AF-1 New/moved business application process 
AF-2 Business license 
AF-3 Bingo fees 
AF-4 New T.O.T. registration certificate 
AF-5 Returned check (NSF) processing 
AF-6 Printed materials/map prod. sale 
AF-7 Document certification/copying 
AF-8 Records research service 
AF-9 City code and zoning code update 
AF-10 Agenda/minutes mailing service 
AF-11 City meeting tape copies 
  
 BUILDING FEES 
  
Bl-1 Building permits 
BL-2 Residential SMIP 

Commercial SMIP 



 5 
  

BL-3 Building standards revolving fund (BSASRF) 
  
 COMMUNITY SERVICES 
  
CS-1 Auditorium rental 
CS-2 Council chambers rental 
CS-3 Conference room rental 
CS-4 Outside grounds rental 
CS-5 Community center development impact fees 
  
 PARKS AND RECREATION 
  
PR-1 Softball lights 
PR-2 Tennis lights 
PR-3 Softball/baseball field 
PR-4 Tennis courts 
PR-5 League play 
PR-6 Pool rental 
PR-7 Swim classes 
PR-8 Public swim 
PR-9 Contract classes 
PR-10 Special city-sponsored recreation activities 
PR-11 Set up/clean up services (electrical, tables, etc.) 
PR-12 City park exhibitor fees 
PR-13 Park development impact fees 
  
 PLANNING 
  
PL-1 Zone change review 
PL-2 Variance review 
PL-3 Zone ordinance amendment review 
PL-4 Appeals 
PL-5 Use permit application review and process 
PL-6 Specific plan review 
PL-7 General plan amendment 
PL-8 Categorical exemption 
PL-9 Negative declaration review and process 
PL-10 EIR staff review 
PL-11 Time extension review 
PL-12 Tentative parcel map review 



 6 
  

PL-13 Tentative tract map review 
PL-14 Final parcel map review 
PL-15 Final tract map review 
PL-16 Certificate of compliance 
PL-17 Lot line adjustment review 
  
 PUBLIC SAFETY 
  
PS-1 Check collection fee 
PS-2 Impound fee 
PS-3 Fingerprints 
PS-4 Report copying 
PS-5 Booking fees 
PS-6 Repossession processing 
PS-7 Timed parking violations 
PS-8 Handicapped parking violations 
PS-9 Burning permit fee 
PS-10 Plan and site review for flammable or combustible liquid storage 
PS-11 Building inspection for fire and life safety 
PS-12 Fireworks and pyrotechnic special effects permit fee 
PS-13 Building and site plan check 
PS-14 Public safety development impact fees 
PS-15 Criminal history check pursuant to California Family Code § 6306 
  
 PUBLIC WORKS MISCELLANEOUS 
  
PW-1 Snow removal 
PW-2 Administration and abatement of weeds and refuse 
PW-3 Right of way abandonment request process 
PW-4 Street sweeping 
PW-5 Storm drain maintenance 
PW-6 Street patching 
PW-7 Large format plots and maps 
PW-8 Encroachment permit for other than construction 
PW-9 Encroachment permit for construction 

1. $50,000 or less of work 
2. More than $50,000 of work 

PW-10 Drainage development impact fees 
  
 SEWER 



 7 
  

  
SW-1 Monthly sewer 
SW-2 Sewer service permit 
SW-3 Sewer service construction main to property 
SW-4 Sewer grease interceptor inspection 
SW-5 Sewer development impact fee 
  
 WATER 
  
WA-1 Monthly water 
WA-2 Water service permit 
WA-3 Water service construction main to curb stop 
WA-4 Water backflow preventers test 
WA-5 Water development impact fees 
WA-6 Water valve box for curb stop valve 

 
B. All fees and charges set pursuant to this chapter and section shall take effect sixty 

days after the city council adopts a resolution, or amended resolution, setting fees 
and charges and after the city administrator signs an executive order stipulating 
that all provisions of this chapter have been complied with, and no written appeal 
has been filed. 

 
C. The schedule of frequency of rate adjustments may be varied by the city 

administrator to adjust revenues sufficient to meet debt service coverage 
requirements of any bond, certificate, or ordinance, resolution, indenture, contract, 
or action under which securities have been issued by the city which contain any 
coverage factor requirement. 

 
D. The city administrator may vary the review schedule listed in this section if, in the 

judgment of the city administrator and a directly affected and requesting department 
head, a gross inequity would be perpetrated by not revising the rate schedule. Any 
such rate revision which deviates from the review schedule as set herein shall be 
reported to the city council at its next succeeding meeting. 

 
3.22.050 - Statutory public meeting. 

 Pursuant to California Government Code Section 66016, the city clerk shall cause 
notice to be provided as set out in Government Code Sections 66016 and 6062a, and 
the city council periodically, at least annually, shall receive at a regularly scheduled 
meeting oral and written presentations concerning fees and charges proposed to be 
increased or added. Such notice, oral and written presentation, and public meeting shall 
be provided prior to the city council taking any action on any new or increased fees or 
charges. At least one such public hearing shall be held annually, in conjunction with the 
city annual budget process and hearing. 

3.22.060 - Provision of data. 



 8 
  

 Pursuant to the California Government Code, at least ten days prior to the required 
public hearing set out herein, the city administrator shall make available to the public 
appropriate data indicating the cost or estimated costs required to support the fees and 
charges for which changes are proposed to be made or fees or charges imposed. The 
city administrator also shall provide a summary of the present fee and charge schedules 
and those proposed at such annual public hearing. A general explanation of such 
changes also shall be published per the requirements of Government Code Section 
6062a. 

3.22.070 - Appeal to city council. 

 A. Any person who feels that any fee or charge determined and set in an excess of 
the percentage of costs reasonably borne to be recovered as set out in this 
chapter, or that such fee or charge has been reviewed prior to or has not been 
reviewed within the review schedule as set out herein, may appeal in writing to the 
city council within five days of action appealed from. 

 
 B. No fee or charge for which an appeal has been filed shall take effect until heard by 

the city council. Such appeal shall be placed on the agenda of the next ensuing 
council meeting. Such appealed fee charge shall take effect immediately upon 
hearing by the city council unless ordered otherwise by the city council by 
ordinance amending this chapter. 

 



 
  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 

9 
 
TO:        CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:      KEITH CALDWELL, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
SUBJECT:     CITY FEES AND CHARGES FY 2012‐2013 
   
DATE:      MARCH 26, 2012 
 
Discussion:  Council Meetings February/March 2012 

 
Attachments:    Resolution No. 12‐11 and Exhibit “A” Amending and Restating Fees and Charges 

Department requests for increases 
 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
Each year all departments are requested to review fees and charges to determine  if they cover the 
full costs reasonably borne for providing those services.   
 
As part of the process, a public hearing was held at the last Council meeting to provide information 
on  proposed  changes  to  the  public  as  required  by  Chapter  3.22  of  the  Bishop Municipal  Code.  
Proposed changes  for Fiscal Year 2012‐2013 were  received  from  the Public Works and Community 
Services Departments.  A restructuring of the rate schedule for Public Works, Planning, Building and 
Water  and  Sewer  has  also  been  submitted.   No  public  comment was  received  during  the  public 
hearing. 
 
To  complete  the  process  a  resolution  amending  and  restating  certain  fees  and  charges  for  city 
services  needs  to  be  adopted.    Resolution  No.  12‐11  is  provided  for  Council  consideration  and 
incorporates the structure changes and fee increases as proposed by Community Services and Public 
Works Departments.    If action  is taken the fees and charges will be updated to be effective for the 
next fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012.  The Water and Sewer Fees for 2012‐2013 as adopted by the 
City Council on December 14, 2009 will be effective on  July 1, 2012 as well.   Community Services 
Department fees will be effective on June 1, 2012 to coincide with the opening of the pool for this 
season. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Review the information and consider adoption of Resolution No. 12‐11 by title only.  
 
 



 
 

1

 
RESOLUTION NO. 12‐11 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BISHOP, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
AMENDING AND RESTATING CERTAIN FEES AND CHARGES FOR CITY SERVICES 

 

  WHEREAS, the City of Bishop has conducted an extensive and exhaustive analysis of its services, 

the  costs  reasonably  borne  of  providing  those  services,  the  beneficiaries  of  those  services,  and  the 

revenues produced by those paying fees and charges for special services; and 

  WHEREAS, the City wishes to comply with both the  letter and the spirit of Article XIIIB of the 

California Constitution and limit the growth of taxes; and 

  WHEREAS, the City desires to establish a policy of recovering the full costs reasonably borne of 

providing special services of a voluntary and  limited nature, such  that general  taxes are not diverted 

from general services of a broad nature and thereby utilized to subsidize unfairly and inequitably such 

services; and 

  WHEREAS, heretofore the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 479 establishing  its policy as to 

the recovery of costs reasonably borne to be recovered from users of City services; adopted Ordinance 

No. 538 updating Section 3.22.040 Schedule of  fees and service charges; and directed staff as  to  the 

methodology for implementing said Ordinances; and 

  WHEREAS, the specific fees to be charged for services must be adopted by the City Council by 

Resolution, after providing notice and holding a public hearing; and 

  WHEREAS, a schedule of fees and charges to be paid by those requesting such special services 

must be adopted so that the City might carry into effect its policies; and 

  WHEREAS,  it  is  the  intention  of  the  City  Council  to  develop  a  revised  schedule  of  fees  and 

charges based on the City’s budget and projected costs reasonably borne; and 

  WHEREAS,  pursuant  to  California  Government  Code  §  66016  the  required  information  on 

proposed new or  increased  fees or  services  charges was provided by mail  and  available  for  general 

public review as required by state law and Bishop Municipal Code Section 3.22.060; and 

  WHEREAS, all requirements of law are hereby found to have been complied with; 

  NOW,  THEREFORE,  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  CITY  OF  BISHOP  finds  after  considering  the 

evidence presented, that the fees imposed hereby do not exceed the City’s costs reasonably borne. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BISHOP DOES RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND 

ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

   

 



 
 

2

   

  SECTION 1.  FEE SCHEDULE ADOPTION.  The following schedule of fees and charges are hereby 

directed  to be computed by and applied by  the various City departments, and to be collected by  the 

appropriate  department  or  the  City  Finance Department  for  the  herein  listed  special  services when 

provided by the City or its designated contractors. 

  SECTION 2.    SEPARATE  FEE  FOR EACH PROCESS.   All  fees  set by  this  resolution  are  for each 

identified  process;  additional  fees  shall  be  required  for  each  additional  process  or  service  that  is 

requested or  required.   Where  fees are  indicated on a per‐unit‐of‐measurement basis,  the  fee  is  for 

each identified unit or portion thereof within the indicated ranges of such units. 

  SECTION  3.    FEES.    The  fees  shall  be  charged  and  collected  for  the  enumerated  services  as 

indicated in Exhibit “A”. 

  SECTION  4.    INTERPRETATIONS.    This  Resolution  may  be  interpreted  by  the  several  City 

department heads in consultation with the City Administrator; should there be a conflict between two 

fees, then the lower in dollar amount of the two shall be applied. 

  SECTION  5.    CONSTITUTIONALITY.    If  any  portion  of  this  Resolution  is  declared  invalid  or 

unconstitutional then it is the intention of the City Council to have passed the entire Resolution and all 

its component parts, and all other sections of this Resolution shall remain in full force and effect. 

  SECTION 6. REPEALER.   All resolutions and other actions of the City Council  in conflict with the 

contents of this Resolution are hereby repealed. 

  SECTION 7.   EFFECTIVE DATE.   This Resolution shall go  into  full  force and effect  immediately.  

Pursuant to Bishop Municipal Code Section 3.22.040 B, fees and charges will be effective  in sixty (60) 

days  after  adoption  and  execution  of  an  executive  order  by  the  City  Administrator  and  no written 

appeal has been filed.  The Community Services Department fees and charges will be effective June 1, 

2012 following the sixty (60) days as stipulated.   Fees and charges for all other departments will not be 

effective until July 1, 2012. 

  PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of March 2012. 

 

                                 
            _____________________________________ 

          DAVID STOTTLEMYRE, MAYOR 
 

ATTEST:  Keith Caldwell, City Clerk 
 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
        Denise Gillespie, Assistant City Clerk 
 



 
 

3

 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF INYO           
 
 
 
     I, Denise Gillespie, Assistant  City  Clerk  for  the  City  of  Bishop,  do  hereby  certify  that  the 

whole  number  of members  of  the  City  Council  of  said  City  of  Bishop  is  five  (5);  that  the 

foregoing Resolution No. 12‐11 was duly passed and adopted by said City Council; approved 

and signed by the Mayor of said City; and attested by the City Clerk of said City, all at a regular 

meeting of said City Council, held on March 26, 2012, and that the same was so passed and 

adopted by the following roll call vote. 

AYES:     

ABSENT:  

NOES:     

ABSTAIN:   

     WITNESS, my hand and the seal of the City of Bishop this ____ day of ____, 2012. 

 
 
                      _________________________________ 
                       Denise Gillespie, Assistant City Clerk   
                         CITY OF BISHOP   
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

4

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

CITY OF BISHOP FEES AND CHARGES 
FISCAL YEAR 2012‐2013 

 
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE SERVICES 

 
NO.                                       TITLE/DESCRIPTION                                                  RECOMMENDED CHARGES   
AF‐1  New/Moved Business Application Process  ‐0‐ 
AF‐2  Business License Fees   
  Four Employees or less and not otherwise specified  $40.00 annually 

  Five Employees, less than ten, and not otherwise specified  $120.00 annually 

  Ten Employees or more and not otherwise specified  $200.00 annually 

  Having no Fixed or Permanent Residence in City which 
conducts business daily in the City 

$50.00 annually per 
vehicle/or person 

  Having no Fixed or Permanent Residence in City which  
does not conduct business daily in the City 

$50.00 daily or $400.00 
annually each vehicle/or 
person 

  Amusements Generally  $200.00 annually 

  Bowling Alleys  $40.00 annually per alley 

  Public Dancing  $200.00 annually 

  Circuses, Carnivals, etc.  $50.00 per day 

  Contractors and Subcontractors  $100.00 annually 
 
 

Itinerant Locksmiths, Tool Sharpeners, etc.  $2.50 per day or  
$100.00 annually 

  Pool Halls, Social Clubs, etc.  $16.00 annually each pool 
table and 
$100.00 annually for each 
card table 

  Professions  $40.00 annually 
  Sound Trucks, Loud Speakers with permanent place of 

business in City 
$100.00 annually 

  Out of City  $12.50 per day or $200.00 
annually 

AF‐3  Bingo Fees  $15.00 annually 
AF‐4  New T.O.T. Registration Certificate  ‐0‐ 

AF‐5  Returned Check (NSF) Processing  $25.00 each 

AF‐6  Printed Materials/Map Production Sale  $1.00 page 

AF‐7  Document Certification/Copying  $.25 page 

AF‐8  Records Research Service  Actual Cost 

AF‐9  City Code and Zoning Code Update  ‐0‐ 

AF‐10  Agenda/Minutes Mailing Service  ‐0‐ 

AF‐11  City Meeting Recording Copies  Actual Cost 

 



 
 

5

COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
NO.                                       TITLE/DESCRIPTION                                                  RECOMMENDED CHARGES   
CS‐1  Auditorium Rental  $50.00 First 4 hours 

$10.00/hour each additional 
hour 

CS‐2  Council Chambers Rental  $75.00 First 4 hours 
$15.00/hour each additional 
hour 

CS‐3  Conference Room Rental  $35.00 First 4 hours 
$5.00/hour each additional 
hour 

CS‐4  Outside Grounds Rental  
(Set up, Clean up, Supplies & Service) 

Actual Cost 

CS‐5  Community Center Development Impact Fees  ‐0‐ 

 
PARKS AND RECREATION 

 
NO.                                       TITLE/DESCRIPTION                                                  RECOMMENDED CHARGES   
PR‐1  Softball Lights  $20.00 an hour 

PR‐2  Tennis Lights  $4.00 per hour/tokens 
$5.00 hour/time clock 

PR‐3  Softball/Baseball Field  $25.00 per field 

PR‐4  Tennis Courts  ‐0‐ 

PR‐5  League Play  Actual Cost 

PR‐6  Pool Rental  $50.00 hour/plus cost of 
aquatic personnel 

PR‐7  Swim Classes 
Individual Lesson 

$35.00 for 8 sessions 
Actual Cost 

PR‐8  Public Swim – Youth  $3.00 
$25.00 – 10 Passes 

 
 

Public Swim – Adult  $5.00 
$20.00 – 5 Passes 

  Public Swim – Family Pass  $42.00 – 18 passes 
  Public Swim/Lap (unlimited use) – Adult  $5.00  ‐ Season Pass $120.00 

  Public Swim – Showers  $5.00 day 

PR‐9  Contract Classes  Actual Cost 

PR‐10  Special City Sponsored Recreation Activities  Actual Cost 
PR‐11  Set up/Clean up Services (Electrical Tables, Etc.)  Actual Cost 

PR‐12  City Park Vendor/Exhibitor Fees/Mule Days  $20.00 per space 
$45.00 camp space 

 
 

City Park Vendor/Exhibitor Fees/Labor Day  $10.00 per space 
$45.00 camp space 

PR‐13  Park Development Impact Fees  ‐0‐ 



 
 

6

 
PUBLIC SAFETY 

 
NO.                                       TITLE/DESCRIPTION                                                  RECOMMENDED CHARGES   
PS‐1  Check Collection Fee  $25.00 
PS‐2  Impound Fee  $125.00 

PS‐3 
 

Fingerprints Rolling either by paper and ink;  
or electronic Live Scan 

$25.00 

PS‐4  Report Copying – Accident Report 
Report Copying – Other Reports 

$20.00 
$20.00 

PS‐5  Booking Fees  $130.00 
PS‐6  Repossession Processing  $15.00 

PS‐7  Parking Fines pursuant to Bishop Municipal Code  
Title 10 – Vehicles and Traffic Chapter 10.28 
Sections 10.28.020 ‐10.28.200 

 
$30.00 each violation 

PS‐8  Handicapped Parking Violations  $255.00 

PS‐9  Burning Permit Fee  ‐0‐ 

PS‐10  Plan and Site Review for Flammable or Combustible 
Liquid Storage 

‐0‐ 
 

PS‐11  Building Inspection for Fire and Life Safety  ‐0‐ 

PS‐12  Fireworks and Pyrotechnic Special Effects Permit Fee  ‐0‐ 

PS‐13  Building and Site Plan Check  ‐0‐ 

PS‐14  Public Safety Development Impact Fees  ‐0‐ 

PS‐15  Criminal History Check 
Pursuant to California Family Code 6306 

$10.00 

 
 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 
Planning Fees 
 
The fee shall be as described in the following table unless the actual cost is greater.  If the actual cost is 
greater, the fee shall be the actual cost. 
 
NO.                                       TITLE/DESCRIPTION                                                  RECOMMENDED CHARGES   
PL‐1  Zone Change Review  $1,500 
PL‐2  Variance Review  $1,000 
PL‐3  Zone Ordinance Amendment Review  $1,500 
PL‐4  Appeals  $300 
PL‐5  Use Permit Review and Process  $1,500 
PL‐6  Specific Plan Review  $1,500 
PL‐7  General Plan Amendment  $1,500 
PL‐8  Categorical Exemption  $120 
PL‐9  Negative Declaration Review and Process  $1,500 
PL‐10  EIR Staff Review  $2,500 
PL‐11  Time Extension Review  $500 



 
 

7

PL‐12  Tentative Parcel Map Review  $2,000 
PL‐13  Tentative Tract Map Review  $2,500 
PL‐14  Final Parcel Map Review  $2,000 
PL‐15  Final Tract Map Review  $2,500 
PL‐16  Certificate of Compliance  $1,000 
PL‐17  Lot Line Adjustment Review  $1,000 

 
Building Fees 
 
NO.                                       TITLE/DESCRIPTION                                                  RECOMMENDED CHARGES   
BL‐1  Building Permits  See Below 
BL‐2  Residential SMIP 

Commercial SMIP 
0.010% of Value 
0.021% of Value 

BL‐3  Building Standards Revolving Fund (BSASRF)  $1.00 for each $25,000 or 
portion 

 
1. State‐Mandated  Strong  Motion  Instrumentation  Program  (SMIP)  and  Building  Standards 

Administration  Special  Revolving  Fund  (BSASRF)  fees  do  not  apply  to  electrical, mechanical  and 
plumbing work permitted independent of building work. 

 
2. Permits,  inspection, and  related  fees  for demolition, grading, building, plumbing, mechanical and 

electrical  shall be  the  sum of a $60 administration  fee, a  valuation  fee, and a plan  check  fee,  if 
required. 

 
3. The valuation fee shall be as described in the following table unless the actual cost is greater.  If the 

actual cost is greater, the valuation fee shall be the actual cost. 
 

Total Valuation  Fee 
$1 to $500  $23.50 
$500 to $2,000  $23.50 for the first $500 plus $3.05 for each additional $100, or 

fraction thereof, to and including $2,000 
$2,001 to $25,000  $69.25 for the first $2,000 plus $14.00 for each additional $1,000, or 

fraction thereof, to and including $25,000 
$25,001 to $50,000  $391.25 for the first $25,000 plus $10.10 for each additional $1,000, 

or fraction thereof, to and including $50,000 
$50,001 to $100,000  $643.75 for the first $50,000 plus $7.00 for each additional $1,000, or 

fraction thereof, to and including $100,000 
$100,001 to $500,000  $993.75 for the first $100,000 plus $5.60 for each additional $1,000, 

or fraction thereof, to and including $500,000 
$500,001 to $1,000,000  $3,233.75 for the first $500,000 plus $4.75 for each additional $1,000, 

or fraction thereof, to and including $1,000,000 
$1,000,001 and up  $5,608.75 for the first $1,000,000 plus $3.15 for each additional 

$1,000, or fraction thereof 
 
4. Except  as  provided  below,  total  valuation  shall  be  determined  using  International  Code  Council 

(ICC) Building Valuation Data current on the permit issue date with a regional modifier of 0.97. 
 
5. For  additions,  remodels,  tenant  improvements,  reroofing,  and  for  electrical,  mechanical,  and 

plumbing  done  independent  of  building work,  total  valuation  shall  be  provided  by  applicant  or 
determined using standard construction estimating practices. 



 
 

8

 
6. The  plan  check  fee, when  required,  shall  be  65%  of  the  valuation  fee  unless  the  actual  cost  is 

greater.  If the actual cost is greater, the plan check fee shall be the actual cost. 
 
7. Investigation permitting of unpermitted work shall be charged at two times the cost of the permit 

had the work been properly permitted. 
 
8. Actual cost shall include additional cost of re‐inspection. 
 
9. Actual cost for work outside of normal business hours shall be based on two hours minimum. 
 
General Public Works Fees 
 
NO.                                       TITLE/DESCRIPTION                                                  RECOMMENDED CHARGES   
PW‐1  Snow Removal  Not used 
PW‐2  Administration and Abatement of Weeds and Refuse  Actual Cost 
PW‐3  Right of Way Abandonment Request Process  Actual Cost 
PW‐4  Street Sweeping  $130 per hour 
PW‐5  Storm Drain Maintenance  Actual Cost 
PW‐6  Street Patching  Actual Cost 
PW‐7  Large Format Plots and Maps  Actual Cost 
PW‐8  Encroachment Permit for other than construction  Actual Cost 
PW‐9  Encroachment Permit for construction 

1. $50,000 or less of work 
2. More than $50,000 work 

0.5%, $20 minimum 
$250 plus 0.1% 

PW‐10  Drainage Development Impact Fees  $0 
 

 
Water and Sewer Fees 

 
Definitions:  For the purposes of water and sewer fees: 
 
1. "Account"  is  a  financial  designation  that  usually  equates  to  one  water  and  one  sewer  service 

connection to one dwelling, premises, or customer and is used in accounting and billing. 

2. "Bar" means bar with alcoholic beverage license. 

3. "Dwelling" means a place of residence with a connection for water service to the city water system. 

4. "Hotel," shall include "motels," "rooming houses," "boarding houses," "lodging houses" and "guest 
homes" and shall be as defined in the Health and Safety Code of the state.  Hotel fees include fees 
for any hotel laundry facility used solely by employees for hotel linen. 

5.  “Island” means one or two fuel dispensing positions usually with a choice of fuels dispensed from 
one or more hoses and associated with a public  restroom.   Fueling  satellites  controlled  from an 
island are considered part of that island. 

6. "Manager’s quarters" means a room or apartment occupied and used exclusively by the manager of 
a hotel, rooming house, motel, mobile home park, trailer park or recreational trailer park. 



 
 

9

7. "Mobile home park," "trailer park" and "recreational trailer park" shall be defined as defined in the 
Health and Safety Code of the state. 

8. "Multiple  family  residence"  includes  condominiums;  apartment  houses;  mobile  homes;  and 
recreational vehicles and trailers in parks. 

9. "Premises" means a lot, parcel of land, building or establishment. 

10. "Restaurant" does not include hospital food service. 

11. "Seat" means number of permitted seats or actual seats, whichever is greater. 

12. "EDU" means  Equivalent Dwelling Unit  and  relates  various water  and  sewer  fees  to  those  for  a 
single family residence. 

 
Monthly Water and Sewer Fees 
The minimum fees for any account equate to fees for 1 EDU.   For non‐residential uses not  listed, fees 
shall equate to 1 EDU per toilet or equivalent. 
 

THESE FEES WILL BE EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2012 
 

  EDU    Monthly Fee 
Description  Water  Sewer  Per  Water (WA‐1)  Sewer (SW‐1) 
Single Family Residence  1  1  Each  $32.00  $27.58 
Multiple Family Residence  0.8  0.8  Unit  $25.60  $22.06 
Church*  1  1  Each  $32.00  $26.59 
Church Recreation Hall*  1  1  Each  $32.00  $26.59 
Hospital*  1/3  1/3  Bed  $10.67  $9.19 
Convalescent Home  1/3  1/3  Bed  $10.67  $9.19 
Lodge or Meeting Hall*  1  1  Each  $32.00  $26.59 
Hall Bar*  1  1  Each  $32.00  $26.59 
Public School  0.04  0.04  Student  $1.28  $0.99 
Other School  0.032  0.032  Student  $1.02  $0.79 
Fairgrounds  7  7  Each  $224.00  $186.10 
Gas Station*  0.4  1.90  Island  $12.80  $52.40 
Self Serve Car Wash*  3  3  Stall  $96.00  $61.17 
Beauty or Barber Shop  1  1  Each  $32.00  $27.58 
Bar*  0.08  0.08  Seat  $2.56  $2.21 
Hotel Manager's Quarters*  1  1  Each  $32.00  $27.58 
Hotel Room*  0.25  0.48  Each  $8.00  $13.24 
Laundry* (see Hotel definition)  3  3  Each  $96.00  $82.74 
Laundromat*  0.8  0.8  Washer  $25.60  $20.47 
Restaurant*  0.10  0.10  Seat  $3.20  $2.76 
Trailer Dump Facility*  2  2  Each  $64.00  $55.16 
 
*These fees are additive for each account 
 
 
 
 



 
 

10

One Time Water and Sewer Fees 

NO.                                       TITLE/DESCRIPTION                                                  RECOMMENDED CHARGES   
WA‐2  Water Service Permit  $50 
WA‐3  Water Service Construction Main to Curb Stop  Actual Cost 
WA‐4  Water Backflow Preventers Test  Actual Cost 
WA‐5  Water Development Impact Fees  $2,000 per EDU 
WA‐6  Water Valve Box for Curb Stop Valve  $0 
SW‐2  Sewer Service Permit  $50 
SW‐3  Sewer Service Construction Main to Property  Actual Cost 
SW‐4  Sewer Grease Interceptor Inspection  Actual Cost 
SW‐5  Sewer Development Impact Fee  $2,000 per EDU 
 
 

























 
  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 
 
 
  

 
 
TO:        CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:      KEITH CALDWELL, CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
         
SUBJECT:    2012‐2013 State Budget – Sunrise Mobile Home Park 
   
DATE:      March 26, 2012 
 
Attachments:  Proposed State of California ‐ Sunrise Mobile Home Park Budget (6 
Months) 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY 
 
The Community  Service Director  and  staff have  completed  the 2012‐2013  Sunrise Mobile 
Home Park State Budget (6 months), and are ready for submittal. 
 
Per State guidelines, the city is requested to provide a detailed budget by the end of April of 
each year.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Council consideration  to approve  the 2012‐2013 State Budget – Sunrise Mobile Home 
Park.  

Assistant City Clerk
Text Box
10







 
  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 
  

 
 
 
 
TO:      CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:    KEITH CALDWELL, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
SUBJECT:  GENERAL PLAN 2011 ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 
   
DATE:    MARCH 26, 2012 
 
Attachments:  Annual Progress Report submitted by Public Services Officer 
 
The attached Annual Progress Report for the General Plan is a requirement mandated by the 
State.  The report provides pertinent information to the Office of Planning and Research on 
the City’s General Plan. 
    
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Review the Annual Progress Report and if appropriate, accept the General Plan 2011 Annual 
Progress Report and authorize submittal to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research. 
 

Assistant City Clerk
Text Box
11































 
  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 

12 
 
  

 
 
TO:        CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM:      KEITH CALDWELL, CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
         
SUBJECT:    DWP LEASE BL‐1481 – PARKING LOT LEASES 
   
DATE:      MARCH 26, 2012 
 
Attachments:  Correspondence from LADWP received March 12, 2012 
        Lease No. 1481 between DWP and City of Bishop 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY 
 
The new five‐year lease for eight city parking lots has been received from the Department of 
Water and Power Bishop Office.  This lease was held over for review by the LADWP since it 
expired June 30, 2008. 
 
The lease has been reviewed by the City Attorney and sent for review by the California JPIA 
Risk Management. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Consider approval of  the LADWP Lease BL‐1481  for  the city parking  lots and authorize the 
execution of the document by the City Administrator. 
 
































































	Agenda March 26 2012
	Study Session Agenda Marcdh 26 2012
	Item 1 Dept Head Reports
	Item 2 Consent Calendar
	Item 3 Public Hrg Env Review Crossfit
	Item 4 Public Hrg CDBG Grant Application
	Item 5 Environmental Review Crossfit
	Item 6 Approval of CDBG Grant Application
	6 2012 CDBG Application.pdf
	01 Application_Summary
	02 Housing_Rehabilitation
	03 Planning_and_Technical_Assistance
	04 Planning_and_Technical_Assistance 2
	PLANNING ACTIVITIES TABLE OF CONTENTS

	04 Planning_and_Technical_Assistance 2
	PLANNING ACTIVITIES TABLE OF CONTENTS

	05 City of Bishop EPLS Search Results
	06 IMACA EPLS Search Results
	07 CDBG Design Phase PHN
	08 Design Phase Council Agenda
	09 CDBG Application PHN
	10 Valley Reconstruction Summary
	11 Valley Vicinity Map
	12 Valley Apartments Location Map
	13 Valley Aerial Location Map
	14 Valley Census Map
	15 Unit Floor Plan
	16 Valley 1st Floor Plan
	17 Valley 2nd Floor Plan
	18 Valley Site Plan
	19 Valley North and East Elevations
	20 Valley South and West Elevations
	21 Valley Rendering
	22 Application Prep Activity Description
	23 Application Prep Final Product Description
	24 Silver Peaks Project Description
	25 Silver Peaks Location Map
	26 Silver Peaks Aerial Location Map
	27 Silver Peaks Census Map
	28 Sewer Study Activity and Final Product Description
	29 NortheastBishopSewer Map
	30 Subrecipient_Agreement
	31 Valley Relocation Plan


	Item 7 Appointment of Commissioner
	Item 8 Ordinance 538 Amending Code Fee and Charge Revenue Cost Comparison System
	Item 9 Resolution Amending City Fees
	Item 10 Sunrise MHP State Budget
	Item 11 2011 General Plan Progress Report
	Item 12 DWP Lease - City Parking Lots



